
HEARING TO BE CONDUCTED UNDER THE CITY OF WESTMINSTER ACT 1999 AND THE 
LICENSING ACT 2003 

 
 

 

City of Westminster 
 

  
 

Committee Agenda 
 

Title: 
 

 Licensing Sub-Committee (6) 

   

Meeting Date: 
 

 Thursday 13th July, 2017 

   

Time: 
 

 10.00 am 

   

Venue: 
 

 Room 3.1, 3rd Floor, 5 Strand, London, WC2 5HR 

   

Members: 
 

 Councillors: 
 

 

  Jean Paul Floru  
Heather Acton 
Aziz Toki 

 

 
 

   

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

  
Members of the public are welcome to attend the meeting 
and listen to the discussion Part 1 of the Agenda.  
 
Admission to the public gallery is by ticket, issued from the 
ground floor reception from 9.30am. If you have a disability 
and require any special assistance please contact the 
Committee Officer (details listed below) in advance of the 
meeting. 
 

   

T
 

 An Induction loop operates to enhance sound for anyone 
wearing a hearing aid or using a transmitter.  If you require 
any further information, please contact the Committee 
Officer, Jonathan Deacon. 
 
Email: jdeacon@westminster.gov.uk  Tel: 020 7641 2783 
Corporate Website: www.westminster.gov.uk 
 
 

 
 

http://www.westminster.gov.uk/


 

 

Note for Members: Members are reminded that Officer contacts are shown at the end of 
each report and Members are welcome to raise questions in advance of the meeting.  
With regard to item 2, guidance on declarations of interests is included in the Code of 
Governance; if Members and Officers have any particular questions they should contact 
the Head of Committee and Governance Services in advance of the meeting please. 
 

AGENDA 

PART 1 (IN PUBLIC)  

1.   MEMBERSHIP  

 To report any changes to the membership. 
 

 

2.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 To receive declarations by Members and Officers of any personal 
or prejudicial interests in matters on this agenda. 
 

 

 Licensing Applications for Determination 
 

 

1.   CAFE BAKU LTD, 22-24 LANSDOWNE ROW, W1 (Pages 1 - 28) 

 App 

No 

Ward  Site Name 

and 

Address 

Application Licensing 

Reference 

Number 

1. West End 

Ward / not 

in 

cumulative 

impact 

area  

Cafe Baku 

Ltd, 22-24 

Lansdown

e Row, W1 

Vary 

existing 

temporary 

licence – 

Section 21 

of City of 

Westminster 

Act 1999  

17/04644/STT
CV 
 
 

 

 
 

 

2.   SERPENTINE GALLERY, KENSINGTON GARDENS, 
EXHIBITION ROAD, W2 

(Pages 29 - 62) 

 App 

No 

Ward / 

Cumulative 

impact 

area  

Site Name 

and 

Address 

Application Licensing 

Reference 

Number 

2. Knightsbrid

ge & 

Belgravia 

Serpentine 

Gallery, 

Kensington 

Variation of 

a premises 

licence – 

17/05302/LIPV 
 
 

 

 



 
 

 

Ward / not 

in 

cumulative 

impact 

area  

Gardens, 

Exhibition 

Road, W2 

Licensing 

Act 2003  

 
 

3.   THE SERPENTINE SECKER GALLERY & THE MAGAZINE, 
SERPENTINE GALLERY, KENSINGTON GARDENS, 
EXHIBITION ROAD, W2 

(Pages 63 - 96) 

 App 

No 

Ward / 

Cumulative 

impact 

area  

Site Name 

and 

Address 

Application Licensing 

Reference 

Number 

3. Knightsbrid

ge & 

Belgravia 

Ward / not 

in 

cumulative 

impact 

area  

The 

Serpentine 

Secker 

Gallery & 

The 

Magazine, 

Serpentine 

Gallery, 

Kensington 

Gardens, 

Exhibition 

Road, W2 

Variation of 

a premises 

licence – 

Licensing 

Act 2003  

17/05352/LIPV 
 
 

 

 
 

 

4.   32 HENRIETTA STREET, WC2 (Pages 97 - 
144) 

 App 

No 

Ward / 

Cumulative 

impact 

area  

Site Name 

and 

Address 

Application Licensing 

Reference 

Number 

4. St James’s 

Ward / 

West End 

Cumulative 

Impact 

Area  

32 

Henrietta 

Street, 

WC2 

New 

Premises 

Licence – 

Licensing 

Act 2003  

17/05529/LIPN 
 
 

 

 
 

 



 
 

 

5.   SKETCH, 9 CONDUIT STREET, W1 (Pages 145 - 
196) 

 App 

No 

Ward / 

Cumulative 

impact 

area  

Site Name 

and 

Address 

Application Licensing 

Reference 

Number 

5. West End 

Ward / 

West End 

Cumulative 

Impact 

Area  

Sketch, 9 

Conduit 

Street, W1 

Variation of 

a Premises 

Licence – 

Licensing 

Act 2003  

17/04660/LIPV 
 
 

 

 
 

 

6.   RESTAURANT, GROUND FLOOR, STRAND PALACE HOTEL, 
372 STRAND, WC2 

(Pages 197 - 
254) 

 App 

No 

Ward / 

Cumulative 

impact 

area  

Site Name 

and 

Address 

Application Licensing 

Reference 

Number 

6. St James’s 

Ward / 

West End 

Cumulative 

Impact 

Area  

Restaurant

, Ground 

Floor, 

Strand 

Palace 

Hotel, 372 

Strand, 

WC2 

New 

Premises 

Licence – 

Licensing 

Act 2003  

17/05581/LIPN 
 
 

 

 
 

 

7.   BAR, GROUND FLOOR, STRAND PALACE HOTEL, 372 
STRAND, WC2 

(Pages 255 - 
312) 

 App 

No 

Ward / 

Cumulative 

impact 

area  

Site Name 

and 

Address 

Application Licensing 

Reference 

Number 

7. St James’s 

Ward / 

West End 

Cumulative 

Impact 

Bar, 

Ground 

Floor, 

Strand 

Palace 

New 

Premises 

Licence – 

Licensing 

Act 2003  

17/05624/LIPN 
 
 

 

 



 
 

 

Area  Hotel, 372 

Strand, 

WC2 

 
 

8.   VICTORY HOUSE, 14 LEICESTER PLACE, WC2 (Pages 313 - 
338) 

 App 

No 

Ward / 

Cumulative 

impact 

area  

Site Name 

and 

Address 

Application Licensing 

Reference 

Number 

8. St James’s 

Ward / 

West End 

Cumulative 

Impact 

Area  

Victory 

House, 14 

Leicester 

Place, 

WC2 

New 

Premises 

Licence – 

Licensing 

Act 2003  

17/05429/LIPN 
 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 
Charlie Parker 
Chief Executive 
7 July 2017 
 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



  Licensing Sub-Committee 
 
Meeting:     Licensing Sub-Committee 
 
Date:      13th July 2017 
 
Classification:    General Release 
 
Premises:     Café Baku Ltd, 22 -24 Lansdowne Row, London,  

W1J 8QL 
 

17/04644/STTCV 
 
Wards Affected:    West End 
 
Cumulative Impact Area:  No 
 
Financial Summary:   None 
 
Report of:     Operational Director for Public Protection & Licensing 
 
1.  Executive Summary 
 
1.1  The Council has received an application to vary the existing temporary licence from Café 

Baku Ltd in respect of the premises situated at 22 – 24 Lansdowne Row, London, W1J 
8QL.  The purpose of the application is to increase the hours when the tables and chairs 
can be used from 23:00 to midnight every day of the week. 

 
1.2  The report sets out the application details, objection, legal context along with other 

considerations that the Licensing Sub-Committee requires to determine this application 
under Section 21 of the City of Westminster Act 1999 (CoW 1999). 

 
1.3 Premises need to apply separately for both planning permission and a temporary licence to 

use the public highway to set up tables and chairs.  A temporary licence is granted for 6 
months.  After the 6 months a further temporary licence is required. 

   
It is rare for the City Council to approve external seating beyond 23:00 hours other than in 
central locations such as Leicester Square (and adjoining streets) and Heddon Street.  The 
Council’s guidance normally does not allow the highway to be used after 23:00 for placing 
tables and chairs.   
 

2.  Options 
 
2.1  That following consideration of the information given orally at the hearing and in writing 

by the applicants and objectors Members may; 
 
2.1.1  Grant the variation as applied for, 
 
2.1.2  Grant the variation subject to any modifications to any part of the application and 

imposition of any additional conditions or restrictions as they think fit, or 
 
2.1.3  Refuse the application. 

page 1

Agenda Item 1



 
3.  Application 
 
3.1  On 4th May 2017 Café Baku Ltd applied to vary the terminal hour for placing tables and 

chairs on the public highway from 23:00 to midnight, Monday to Sunday.  A copy of the 
application is attached as Appendix A1.  

 
3.2  This company have held temporary licences since 2012, and have been continually 

licensed since this time.  The current temporary licence is attached as Appendix A2 and 
seating plan is attached as Appendix A3. 

 
3.3 The premises have planning permission for the use of the public highway for the placing of 

12 tables, 26 chairs and 2 space heaters in an area measuring 1.6m x 15.0m; namely to 
allow the continued use of the pavement for the placing of tables and chairs between the 
hours of 07:00 - 00:00 (daily) for the temporary period until 30 April 2018.  A copy of the 
planning permission is attached as Appendix A4.  

 
4.  Objections 
 
4.1  An objection was received from Environmental Health detailing their concerns  

due to the use of the external area beyond 23:00, as this will have the likely effect of an 
increase in public nuisance.  A copy of the objection is attached as Appendix B1. 
 

5.  Premises Licence 
 

The premises currently hold a premises licence under the Licensing Act 2003 and operate 
as a café. 

  
The licensable activities authorised by the licence are: 

 
Playing of Recorded Music and Sale by Retail of Alcohol: 
Monday to Thursday:    10:00 to 23:30  
Friday to Saturday:    10:00 to 00:00  
Sunday:     12:00 to 22:30  
Sundays before Bank Holidays:  12:00 to 00:00 
 
Late Night Refreshment: 
Monday to Thursday:                         23:00 to 23:30 
Friday to Saturday:                            23:00 to 00:00 
Sundays before Bank Holidays:        23:00 to 00:00 

 
 A copy of the premises licence is attached as Appendix C1  

 
Members will note from the premises licence that condition 12 states: 
 
“All outside tables and chairs shall be removed from the outside area or rendered unusable 
by 23:00 hours each day”.   
 
Therefore if the premises were to operate with the proposed variation to use the outside 
area for tables and chairs until midnight they would be in breach of this condition.  
 

6  Applicants Submissions 
 
6.1  At the time of publication, no response had been received. 
 
  

page 2



7.  Legal Implications 
 
7.1 To place tables and chairs on the public highway requires a temporary licence, which is 

governed by section 21 the City of Westminster Act 1999.  Section 21 (1) and (2) provides:- 
 

(1) The council may if they think fit on the receipt from any person of an application for that 
purpose and accompanied by the appropriate fee grant to that person a temporary licence.  
(2) A temporary licence shall remain in force only for the day or period specified in the 
licence and —  

(a)  shall be in a similar form to a street trading licence with such modifications therein 
as the circumstances require; and  

(b)  shall contain such terms and conditions as the council may specify. 
 

Under the 1999 Act the ‘specified period’ shall not exceed 6 months.   
 

7.2 There are no specific statutory grounds to refuse the grant of a temporary licence. The Sub 
Committee has the discretion to grant the application in whole or in part and attach 
restrictive conditions or accept undertakings.  
 

7.3 Any procedural deficiencies may be challenged by an application to the high court for 
Judicial Review.      

 
 
8. POLICY  

 
8.1 It is the policy of the City Council that licences will only be granted where the activity to be 

authorised by that temporary licence is an authorised planning use.   
 
8.2  On 20 March 2000, the Planning and Transportation Committee adopted a scheme to 

licence tables and chairs on the public highway through the granting of temporary licences.  
Through the scheme tables and chairs would be removed from the public highway by 23:00 
hours. 

  
8.3 Members will note from paragraph 3.3 planning permission has been granted to midnight.  

Although the planning permission has been granted to midnight, members will note from 
paragraph 4.1 Environmental Health has objected on the grounds of the likely increase to 
public nuisance.    

 
8.4 As a standard condition of the temporary licence, the City Council will require the removal 

of the items at specified hours.  The starting times for the placing of tables and chairs will 
vary according to the individual circumstances.  In order to protect the amenity of residents 
both in the immediate vicinity and within the surrounding area, the City Council will limit the 
time that tables and chairs may be left out to 23:00 hours.  Service at the tables should 
cease earlier and customers should be made aware that the tables and chairs must be 
removed by 23:00 hours.  Only in exceptional circumstances will the City Council approve 
applications for the use of tables and chairs on the highway beyond 23:00 hours even if the 
premises themselves have the relevant licences and permissions to operate until a later 
time.  

 
8.5 Temporary licences to place tables and chairs on the public highway are granted for a 

period of 6 months.  After the 6 month period, a further licence is required. 
 
  

page 3



Appendices 
 
A1 – Application Form 
A2 – Temporary Licence 
A3 – Seating Plan 
A4 - Planning Permission 
B1 – Environmental Health Objection 
C1 – Premises Licence 
D1 – Location Map 

 
If you have any questions about this report, or wish to inspect any of the background papers, please  
contact Denise Farrelly on 020 7641 2588 or email dfarrelly@westminster.gov.uk 
 
BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
• City of Westminster Act 1999 
• Rules of Procedure for Licensing Sub-Committee  
• Conditions to be attached to Temporary Licences where street trading involves the use of tables and 

chairs.  
 
 
 
 

page 4



  Application Page 1

Application for a temporary licence involving the use of Tables and Chairs on a street

  Part 2 - Applicant's details 

Last name

Address 

Postcode

Telephone 

Email 

First name 

Title 

  Part 1 - Details of application site 

Name of establishment / business

Is more than one frontage

proposed to be used?

Postcode

Your detailsAgent details

Address of application site

Postcode

Yes

No

Please specify

New applicationIs this a new application or a renewal? Renewal

Existing licence number

YesHave you previously held a street

trading licence for tables and

chairs? No

Date of expiry

I am an agent applying on behalf of the applicant

Variation 

Company name

Westminster City Council 

a

a

Licence search

16/13008/STTCF

17/06/2017

Baku

22 - 24 Lansdowne Row
London

W1J 8QL

a

Mr

Craig

Baylis

Blp
Adelaide House
London Bridge
London

EC4R 9HA

0203 400 2326

craig.baylis@blplaw.com

Mr

Erfan

Zargarian

Café Baku Ltd

15 Queen Anne Gate
London

SW1H 9BU

0203 400 2326

craig.baylis@blplaw.com

a

page 5

dfarrel
Typewritten Text
     Appendix A1



  Application Page 2

  Part 2 - Details of application site (continued) 

Number of tables applied for

Please give number and details of

all other items of furniture

including umbrellas, barriers, etc.

Dimensions, manufacturers

details, specification and

photographs should be supplied.

Number of persons to be seated

Dimensions of the area of street to be used (in metres) /

Dimensions of the area of the street to be used. 
Width Depth

DepthWidth
Dimensions of private forecourt (if any) from building line (in

metres)

Total distance of kerb edge from building line (in metres)

YesDo you intend to place

free-standing heaters within the

proposed area? No

YesDo you intend to place items

other than heaters, tables and

chairs within the proposed area? No

Hours during which the tables and chairs will be on the street (Monday to Sunday)

How many?

YesDo you intend to place planter(s) within the

proposed area?

No How many?

Number of chairs applied for

Monday To

Tuesday To

Wednesday To

Thursday To

Friday To

Saturday To

Sunday To

Hours past 7pm

Total 

Upload attachments

07:00 00:00

07:00 00:00

07:00 00:00

07:00 00:00

07:00 00:00

07:00 00:00

07:00 00:00

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

35.0page 6



  Application Page 3 

  Part 3 - Bathroom facilities

Public Provisions - State the number of toilet provision available.

Please specify the place of

storage of the tables and chairs

and other items when not placed

on the highway. If applicable

specify the storage of the gas

cylinders.

Toilets

Urinals

Sinks

Female Male Disabled Staff (if separate)

Number of internal covers

  Part 4 - Place of storage

Dimensions of storage space (m²)

  Part 5 - Planning permission - if available

Applicants are advised to consult the Planning Policy Guidance document 'Guidelins for the placing of Tables and Chairs

on the Highway' and 'Public Realm Guidance: The Westminster Way'  

 

The guidance documents are available on the Westminster City Council web site.  

 

If you have a current planning permission you will need to provide details below. A temporary licence will not normally be

granted until permission is in force.

Registered number of

planning permission

Date of expiry of

planning permission
16/01814/FULL 31/03/2018

page 7



  Application Page 4

  Part 6 - Declaration and indemnity

DateConfirmation 

Full name 

Name of company

Position in company

  Part 7 - Fraud

RENEWALS ONLY -  I confirm there have been no alterations to the sanitary, storage or waste disposal arrangements

since the current licence was granted.  

The fee for this application is: 

The City Council is under a duty to protect the public funds it administers and to this end may use the information you have

provided on this form within the Council for the prevention and detection of fraud. It may also share this information with

other bodies administering public funds for these purposes. 

 

VARIATION ONLY - I hereby apply for variation of the temporary licence for street trading issued under the City of

Westminster Act 1999. 

 

 

NEW APPLICATION / RENEWAL -  I / we declare that to the best of my / our knowledge the information contained in

this application form and on the submitted plans are correct.  

RENEWALS ONLY -  I confirm no change in the hours, ancillary furniture or other terms and conditions of the licence

is being sought.

£150.00

a 04/05/2017

Craig Baylis

Berwin Leightin Paisner Llp

Partner

page 8



 

 

 
 
 

NOTES 
 
 
The Council may revoke this licence on certain specified 
grounds e.g. for misconduct, failure to comply with licence 
conditions. 
 
 
The holder may employ any other person to ASSIST 
him/her in the conduct of the business without any further 
licence being required, but the licence may not be 
transferred to any other person nor may it be altered or 
tampered with in any way.  Any failure by an Assistant to 
comply with licence conditions will be deemed to be a 
failure by the licence holder. 
 
 
Any breach of this licence is punishable by a penalty not 
exceeding Level 3. 

  
 
 

CITY OF WESTMINSTER 
 
 
 
 
 

CITY OF WESTMINSTER ACT 1999 
 
 
 
 

TEMPORARY LICENCE  
 FOR THE USE OF  

TABLES AND CHAIRS 
 
 

Baku  
22 - 24 Lansdowne Row 

London 
W1J 8QL  

 
LICENCE NO:  

17/06430/STTCF 
 

 

 

page 9

dfarrel_1
Typewritten Text
Appendix A2

dfarrel_2
Typewritten Text



  
17/06430/STTCF 

 

City of Westminster  
 

 

1. THE WESTMINSTER CITY COUNCIL hereby grants to Cafe Baku Limited 

 
A temporary licence to engage in the use of tables and chairs in the City of Westminster from the street outside Baku, 22 - 24 Lansdowne Row, London, W1J 8QL 

 
2. This licence authorises the holder to trade solely in the articles, and in the manner, and at the places and times specified in the Schedule to 

the licence and is granted subject (1) to the conditions made under Section 21(2)(b) of the City of Westminster Act 1999; (2) to any Act 
amending the same and to any Orders made thereunder; and (3) to any other statutory enactment which is in force for the time being. 

 
3. This licence shall remain in force until 17 December 2017 unless it is cancelled or revoked by the Council. 

Dated this: 18 June 2017    Director of Public Protection & Licensing 
               
        SCHEDULE 

Number Of Places 
 

26 

Type and number of other approved 
furniture 

 
TABLES: 12  CHAIRS: 26  HEATERS: 2  PLANTERS: Nil   

Location / Premises 
 

Baku, 22 - 24 Lansdowne Row, London, W1J 8QL 

Dimensions of private forecourt 
 

None  

Dimensions of area licensed 
 

WIDTH: 15.0m  DEPTH: 1.6m 

Day Mon Tues Wed Thurs Fri Sat Sun 

From Time 
 

07:00 
 

 
07:00 

 

 
07:00 

 

 
07:00 

 

 
07:00 

 

 
07:00 

 

 
07:00 

 

To Time 
 

23:00 
 

 
23:00 

 

 
23:00 

 

 
23:00 

 

 
23:00 

 

 
23:00 

 

 
23:00 

 

FURTHER CONDITIONS 
 
(i) The approved furniture shall be removed from the highway no later than 23:00 daily. 
 
  

page 10



page 11

dfarrel_3
Typewritten Text

dfarrel_4
Typewritten Text

dfarrel_5
Typewritten Text
Appendix A3

dfarrel_6
Typewritten Text

dfarrel_7
Typewritten Text

dfarrel_8
Typewritten Text
  

dfarrel_9
Typewritten Text



page 12

dfarrel_10
Typewritten Text
Appendix A4



page 13



page 14



page 15



CITY OF WESTMINSTER                                MEMORANDUM 
 

 

TO   Licensing Officer 
REFERENCE  17/04644/STTCV 
 

 
FROM  Environmental Health Consultation Team  
  4th Floor South, City Hall 
BEING DEALT WITH BY Ian Watson 
TELEPHONE  020 7641 3183 
DATE  10th May 2017 
 

 
RE: Baku, 22 - 24 Lansdowne Row, W1 
 
I have the following comments to make with regard to the variation application to trade 
tables and chairs on the street at the above premises. 
 
The variation is to trade Monday to Sunday 07.00 to 00.00 hours as per planning 
permission, an additional later hour each day. 
 
 
Objection is made to the application as the use of the outside space for the additional later 
hour will have the likely effect of an increase in public nuisance. 
 
 
Should you have any queries regarding the above, please do not hesitate to contact me. 
 
 
 
Ian Watson 
Senior Practitioner Environmental Health (Licensing) 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

page 16

dfarrel_11
Typewritten Text
Appendix B1

dfarrel_12
Typewritten Text
   



 

 

 

City of Westminster 
64 Victoria Street, London, SW1E 6QP 

Schedule 12 
Part A 

WARD: West End 
UPRN: 010033615434 

Premises licence 

 
Regulation 33, 34 

 
 
Premises licence number: 
 

 
17/00268/LIPDPS 

 

Original Reference:  
 

 

12/00738/LIPN 

 
Part 1 – Premises details 
 

Postal address of premises: 
 
Baku Bistro 
22 - 24 Lansdowne Row 
London 
W1J 8QL 
 

Telephone Number: 020 7495 4461 

 

Where the licence is time limited, the dates: 
 
Not applicable 
 

 

Licensable activities authorised by the licence: 
 
Playing of Recorded Music 
Late Night Refreshment 
Sale by Retail of Alcohol 
 

 

The times the licence authorises the carrying out of licensable activities: 
 
Playing of Recorded Music 
 Monday to Thursday: 10:00 to 23:30  
 Friday to Saturday: 10:00 to 00:00  
 Sunday: 12:00 to 22:30  
 Sundays before Bank Holidays: 12:00 to 00:00  
 
Late Night Refreshment 
 Monday to Thursday: 23:00 to 23:30  
 Friday to Saturday: 23:00 to 00:00  
 Sundays before Bank Holidays: 23:00 to 00:00  
 
Sale by Retail of Alcohol 
 Monday to Thursday: 10:00 to 23:30  
 Friday to Saturday: 10:00 to 00:00  
 Sunday: 12:00 to 22:30  
 Sundays before Bank Holidays: 12:00 to 00:00  
 

 

page 17

dfarrel_13
Typewritten Text
Appendix C1

dfarrel_14
Typewritten Text

dfarrel_15
Typewritten Text

dfarrel_16
Typewritten Text

dfarrel_17
Typewritten Text

dfarrel_18
Typewritten Text

dfarrel_19
Typewritten Text

dfarrel_20
Typewritten Text



 

 

The opening hours of the premises: 
 
Monday to Thursday: 07:00 to 00:00 
Friday to Saturday: 07:00 to 00:30 
Sunday: 07:00 to 23:00 
Sundays before Bank Holidays: 07:00 to 00:00 
 

 

Where the licence authorises supplies of alcohol, whether these are on and/or off 
supplies: 
 
Alcohol is supplied for consumption on the Premises. 
 

 
Part 2 
 

Name, (registered) address, telephone number and email (where relevant) of holder of 
premises licence: 
 
Cafe Baku Limited 
15 Queen Anne Gate 
London 
SW1H 9BU 
 

 

Registered number of holder, for example company number, charity number (where 
applicable) 
 
07808904 
 

 

Name, address and telephone number of designated premises supervisor where the 
premises licence authorises the supply of alcohol: 
 
Name: Francois Robert Georges Durnez 
 
Please note: It is the policy of the Licensing Authority not to display the address 
details of a designated premises supervisor. 
 

 

Personal licence number and issuing authority of personal licence held by designated 
premises supervisor where the premises licence authorises for the supply of alcohol: 
 
Licence Number: 2016/01428/LAPER 
Licensing Authority: London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 

 

 
 
 
Date:   10 February 2017 
 
 
This licence has been authorised by Shannon Pring on behalf of the Director - Public 
Protection and Licensing. 

page 18



 

 

Annex 1 – Mandatory conditions 
 
 
1. No supply of alcohol may be made at a time when there is no designated premises 

supervisor in respect of this licence. 
 
2. No supply of alcohol may be made at a time when the designated premises 

supervisor does not hold a personal licence or the personal licence is suspended. 
 
3. Every supply of alcohol under this licence must be made or authorised by a person 

who holds a personal licence. 
 
4.          (1)  The responsible person must ensure that staff on relevant premises do not 

carry out, arrange or participate in any irresponsible promotions in relation to 
the premises. 

 
(2)  In this paragraph, an irresponsible promotion means any one or more of the 

following activities, or substantially similar activities, carried on for the 
purpose of encouraging the sale or supply of alcohol for consumption on the 
premises— 

 
(a)  games or other activities which require or encourage, or are designed to 

require or encourage, individuals to; 
 

(i)  drink a quantity of alcohol within a time limit (other than to drink 
alcohol sold or supplied on the premises before the cessation of the 
period in which the responsible person is authorised to sell or supply 
alcohol), or 

(ii)  drink as much alcohol as possible (whether within a time limit or 
otherwise); 

 
(b)  provision of unlimited or unspecified quantities of alcohol free or for a fixed or 

discounted fee to the public or to a group defined by a particular 
characteristic in a manner which carries a significant risk of undermining a 
licensing objective; 

 
(c)  provision of free or discounted alcohol or any other thing as a prize to 

encourage or reward the purchase and consumption of alcohol over a period 
of 24 hours or less in a manner which carries a significant risk of undermining 
a licensing objective; 

 
(d)  selling or supplying alcohol in association with promotional posters or flyers 

on, or in the vicinity of, the premises which can reasonably be considered to 
condone, encourage or glamorise anti-social behaviour or to refer to the 
effects of drunkenness in any favourable manner; 

 
 (e) dispensing alcohol directly by one person into the mouth of another (other 

than where that other person is unable to drink without assistance by reason 
of a disability). 

 
5.  The responsible person must ensure that free potable water is provided on request to 

customers where it is reasonably available. 
 
6.          (1)  The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder must ensure 

that an age verification policy is adopted in respect of the premises in relation 
to the sale or supply of alcohol. 

 
(2)  The designated premises supervisor in relation to the premises licence must 

ensure that the supply of alcohol at the premises is carried on in accordance 
with the age verification policy. 

page 19



 

 

 

(3) The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person to 

be under 18 years of age (or such older age as may be specified in the 

policy) to produce on request, before being served alcohol, identification 

bearing their photograph, date of birth and either— 

 (a)  a holographic mark, or 

 (b)  an ultraviolet feature. 

 
7.  The responsible person must ensure that— 

(a)  where any of the following alcoholic drinks is sold or supplied for 

consumption on the premises (other than alcoholic drinks sold or supplied 

having been made up in advance ready for sale or supply in a securely 

closed container) it is available to customers in the following measures— 

  (i)  beer or cider: ½ pint;  

(ii)  gin, rum, vodka or whisky: 25 ml or 35 ml; and 

   (iii)  still wine in a glass: 125 ml; 

 
(b)  these measures are displayed in a menu, price list or other printed material 

which is available to customers on the premises; and 
 
(c) where a customer does not in relation to a sale of alcohol specify the quantity 

of alcohol to be sold, the customer is made aware that these measures are 
available. 

 
A responsible person in relation to a licensed premises means the holder of the premise 
licence in respect of the premises, the designated premises supervisor (if any) or any 
individual aged 18 or over who is authorised by either the licence holder or designated 
premises supervisor.  For premises with a club premises certificate, any member or officer of 
the club present on the premises in a capacity that which enables him to prevent the supply of 
alcohol. 
 
8(i) A relevant person shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption on 

or off the premises for a price which is less than the permitted price. 
 
8(ii) For the purposes of the condition set out in paragraph 8(i) above - 
 

(a)  "duty" is to be construed in accordance with the Alcoholic Liquor Duties Act 
1979; 

 
(b)  "permitted price" is the price found by applying the formula - 

 
P = D+(DxV) 

 
Where - 

  
(i) P is the permitted price, 
(ii) D is the amount of duty chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the 

duty     were charged on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol, 
and 

(iii) V is the rate of value added tax chargeable in relation to the alcohol 
as if the value added tax were charged on the date of the sale or 
supply of the alcohol; 

 

page 20



 

 

(c)  "relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is 
in force a premises licence - 

   
(i)  the holder of the premises licence, 
(ii)  the designated premises supervisor (if any) in respect of such a 

licence, or 
(iii)  the personal licence holder who makes or authorises a supply of    

alcohol under such a licence; 
 

(d)   "relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is 
in force a club premises certificate, any member or officer of the club present 
on the premises in a capacity which enables the member or officer to prevent 
the supply in question; and 

 
(e)  "value added tax" means value added tax charged in accordance with the 

Value Added Tax Act 1994. 
 
8(iii). Where the permitted price given by Paragraph 8(ii)(b) above would (apart from this 

paragraph) not be a whole number of pennies, the price given by that sub-paragraph 
shall be taken to be the price actually given by that sub-paragraph rounded up to the 
nearest penny. 

 
8(iv).     (1)  Sub-paragraph 8(iv)(2) below applies where the permitted price given by 

Paragraph 8(ii)(b) above on a day ("the first day") would be different from the 
permitted price on the next day ("the second day") as a result of a change to 
the rate of duty or value added tax. 

(2)  The permitted price which would apply on the first day applies to sales or 
supplies of alcohol which take place before the expiry of the period of 14 
days beginning on the second day. 

 
 

page 21



 

 

Annex 2 – Conditions consistent with the operating Schedule 
 
 
 None 

page 22



 

 

Annex 3 – Conditions attached after a hearing by the licensing authority 
 
 
9. The premises shall only operate as a café:- 
 

(i) in which customers are shown to their table, 
(ii) which provide food in the form of substantial table meals that are prepared on 

the premises and are served and consumed at the table using non 
disposable crockery, 

(iii) which do not provide any take away service of food or drink for immediate 
consumption, 

(iv) where intoxicating liquor shall not be sold, supplied, or consumed on the 
premises otherwise than to persons who are bona fide taking substantial 
table meals and provided always that the consumption of intoxicating liquor 
by such persons is ancillary to taking such meals. 

 
10. Substantial food and non-intoxicating beverages, including drinking water, shall be 

available throughout the permitted hours in all parts of the premises where alcohol is 
sold or supplied for. 

 
11. The supply of Alcohol shall only be by waiter or waitress service. 
 
12.  All outside tables and chairs shall be removed from the outside area or rendered 

unusable by 23:00 hours each day. 
 
13. Except for in any permitted exterior dining area patrons temporarily leaving the 

premises, such as for the purposes of smoking, shall not take any drinks with them in 
open vessels outside the premises. 

 
14. There shall be no striptease or nudity and all persons shall be decently attired at all 

times. 
 
15. No entertainment, performance, service, or exhibition involving nudity or sexual 

stimulation which would come within the definition of a sex establishment in Schedule 
3 to the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 as amended by the 
Greater London Council (General Powers) Act 1986 (whether or not locally adopted), 
shall be provided. 

 
16. No rubbish including bottles will be moved, removed or placed in outside areas 

between 2300 hours and 0700 hours. 
 
17. No deliveries shall take place between 23:00 and 07:00 hours. 
 
18. No collections, including refuse and recyclable food waste, shall take place between 

00:00 and 07:00 hours. 
 
19. No cooking odour or smoke shall emanate from the premises which give rise to a 

nuisance. 
 
20. Flashing or particularly bright lights from the premises shall not cause a nuisance to 

nearby properties. 
 
21. The premises shall install and maintain a comprehensive CCTV system as per the 

minimum requirements of a Metropolitan Police Crime Prevention Officer. All entry 
and exit points will be covered enabling frontal identification of every person entering 
in any light condition. The CCTV system shall continually record whilst the premises 
is open for licensable activities and during all times when customers remain on the 
premises. All recordings shall be stored for a minimum period of 31 days with date 
and time stamping.  Recordings shall be made available immediately upon the 
request of Police or authorised officer throughout the preceding 31 day period. 

page 23



 

 

 
22. A staff member from the premises who is conversant with the operation of the CCTV 

system shall be on the premises at all times when the premises is open to the public. 
This staff member must be able to show a Police or authorised council officer recent 
data or footage with the absolute minimum of delay when requested. 

 
23. The overall capacity for the premises shall not exceed 60. 
 
24. The pavement from the building line to the kerb edge immediately outside the 

premises, including gutter/channel at its junction with the kerb edge, is swept and or 
washed, and litter and sweepings collected and stored in accordance with the 
approved refuse storage arrangements. 

 
25. All waste is to be properly presented and placed out for collection no earlier than 30 

minutes before the scheduled collection times. 
 
26. Notices shall be prominently displayed at exits requesting the public to respect the 

needs of local residents and to leave the premises and the area quietly. 
 
27. No noise shall emanate from the premises nor vibration be transmitted through the 

structure of the premises which gives rise to a nuisance. 
 
28. There shall be no payment made by or on behalf of the licence holder to any person 

for bringing customers to the premises directly off the street. 

page 24



 

 

Annex 4 – Plans 
 

  

page 25



 

 

 

City of Westminster 
64 Victoria Street, London, SW1E 6QP 

Schedule 12 
Part B 

WARD: West End 
UPRN: 010033615434 

Premises licence 
summary 

 
Regulation 33, 34 

 
 

 
Premises licence number: 
 

 
17/00268/LIPDPS 

 
 
Part 1 – Premises details 
 

Postal address of premises: 
 
Baku Bistro 
22 - 24 Lansdowne Row 
London 
W1J 8QL 
 

Telephone Number: 020 7495 4461 

 

Where the licence is time limited, the dates: 
 
Not applicable 
 

 

Licensable activities authorised by the licence: 
 
Playing of Recorded Music 
Late Night Refreshment 
Sale by Retail of Alcohol 
 

 

The times the licence authorises the carrying out of licensable activities: 
 
Playing of Recorded Music 
 Monday to Thursday: 10:00 to 23:30  
 Friday to Saturday: 10:00 to 00:00  
 Sunday: 12:00 to 22:30  
 Sundays before Bank Holidays: 12:00 to 00:00  
 
Late Night Refreshment 
 Monday to Thursday: 23:00 to 23:30  
 Friday to Saturday: 23:00 to 00:00  
 Sundays before Bank Holidays: 23:00 to 00:00  
 
Sale by Retail of Alcohol 
 Monday to Thursday: 10:00 to 23:30  
 Friday to Saturday: 10:00 to 00:00  
 Sunday: 12:00 to 22:30  
 Sundays before Bank Holidays: 12:00 to 00:00  
 

 

page 26



 

 

The opening hours of the premises: 
 
Monday to Thursday: 07:00 to 00:00 
Friday to Saturday: 07:00 to 00:30 
Sunday: 07:00 to 23:00 
Sundays before Bank Holidays: 07:00 to 00:00 
 

 

Where the licence authorises supplies of alcohol, whether these are on and/or off 
supplies: 
 
Alcohol is supplied for consumption on the Premises. 
 

 

Name and (registered) address of holder of premises licence: 
 
Cafe Baku Limited 
15 Queen Anne Gate 
London 
SW1H 9BU 
 

 

Registered number of holder, for example company number, charity number (where 
applicable) 
 
07808904 
 

 

Name of designated premises supervisor where the premises licence authorises for 
the supply of alcohol: 
 
Name: Francois Robert Georges Durnez 

 

 

State whether access to the premises by children is restricted or prohibited: 
 
Restricted 
 

 
 
 
Date:   10 February 2017 
 
 
This licence has been authorised by Shannon Pring on behalf of the Director - Public 
Protection and Licensing.   

 

 

 

page 27



 

Resident Count: 80 

page 28

dfarrel_21
Typewritten Text

dfarrel_22
Typewritten Text
Appendix D1

dfarrel_23
Typewritten Text



            

 City of Westminster 

 

 

 

 
Item No:   

 
   

Date:  13 July 2017 
   

Licensing Ref No:  17/05302/LIPV - Premises Licence Variation 
   

Title of Report:  Serpentine Gallery 
Serpentine Gallery Kensington Gardens 
Exhibition Road 
London 
W2 2UH 

   

Report of:  Director of Public Protection and Licensing 
   

Wards involved:  Knightsbridge And Belgravia 
   

Policy context:  City of Westminster Statement of Licensing Policy  
 

   

Financial summary:  None 
   

Report Author:  Miss Heidi Lawrance 
Senior Licensing Officer 

   

Contact details  Telephone: 020 7641 2751 
Email: hlawrance@westminster.gov.uk 

 

 

Licensing Sub-Committee 
Report 

page 29

Agenda Item 2



 
1. Application 

 
1-A Applicant and premises 

 

Application Type: Variation of a Premises Licence, Licensing Act 2003 
 

Application received 
date: 

18 May 2017 

Applicant: Serpentine Gallery 
 

Premises: Serpentine Gallery 
 

Premises address: Serpentine Gallery 
Kensington Gardens 
Exhibition Road 
London 
W2 2UH 
 

Ward: 
 

Knightsbridge 
& Belgravia.  
 

Cumulative 
Impact Area: 

None.  

Premises description: 
 

The premises is currently operating as an Art gallery.  

Variation description: An art gallery which showcases modern and 
contemporary art. The gallery is situated in Kensington 
Gardens, Exhibition Road, London, W2 2UH. The 
premises comprise of: 
 
1. The Main Gallery 
2. The Marquee 
3. The Pavillion 
4. An Outside Area 
 
This application is to vary the premises licence as follows: 
 

1. To extend the hours for the sale of alcohol to 
between the hours of 11:00 and 00:00 Monday to 
Saturday. 
 

2. To extend the hours for the provision of regulated 
entertainment to between the hours of 1100 and 
00:00 Monday to Saturday. 
 

3. To include the provision of late night refreshment to 
between the hours of 2300 and 00:00 Monday to 
Saturday. 
 

4. To remove condition 33 set out in Annex 2 of the 
premises licence. 
 

5. To extend the opening hours. 
 
 

page 30



Premises licence history: 
 

The premises has been licensed since July 2006.  
 
A copy of the current premises licence can be found at 
Appendix 6 (09/03038/LIPDPS).  
 

Applicant submissions: Following discuss with Royal Parks the applicant has 
agreed to the following:  
 

The terminal hour Monday to Saturday for all licensable 
activities to be amended to midnight which would then 
match the hours for The Magazine (17/05352/LIPV). 
 

 

1-B Current and proposed licensable activities, areas and hours 
 

Regulated Entertainment 
 

Live Music / Recorded Music / Performance of Dance / Anything of a Similar 
Description  
 

 Current  
Hours 

Proposed  
Hours 

Licensable Area 

Start: End: Start: End: 

Monday 11:00 23:00 11:00 00:00  
Please see Plan at Appendix 1  Tuesday 11:00 23:00 11:00 00:00 

Wednesday 11:00 23:00 11:00 00:00 

Thursday 11:00 23:00 11:00 00:00 

Friday 11:00 23:00 11:00 00:00 

Saturday 11:00 23:00 11:00 00:00 

Sunday 11:00 22:30 11:00 22:30 

Seasonal  
variations: 

Current: Proposed: 

Monday to Saturday 11:00 until 
00:00 (Summer Events)  

 
No Change  Non-standard  

timings: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

page 31



Late night refreshment 
 

Indoors, outdoors or both Current : Proposed: 

Both  Both  

 Current  
Hours 

Proposed  
Hours 

Licensable Area 

Start: End: Start: End: 

Monday   23:00 00:00  
Please see Plan at Appendix 1 Tuesday   23:00 00:00 

Wednesday   23:00 00:00 

Thursday   23:00 00:00 

Friday   23:00 00:00 

Saturday   23:00 00:00 

Sunday     

Seasonal 
variations/ 
Non-standard 
timings: 

Current: Proposed: 

 
Monday to Sunday : 23:00 until 
00:00 (Summer Events)  
 

 
 

 

Sale by Retail of Alcohol 
 

On or off sales Current : Proposed: 

On Sales  On Sales  

 Current  
Hours 

Proposed  
Hours 

Licensable Area 

Start: End: Start: End: Current: Proposed: 

Monday 11:00 23:00 11:00 00:00  
Please see Plan at Appendix 1  Tuesday 11:00 23:00 11:00 00:00 

Wednesday 11:00 23:00 11:00 00:00 

Thursday 11:00 23:00 11:00 00:00 

Friday 11:00 23:00 11:00 00:00 

Saturday 11:00 23:00 11:00 00:00 

Sunday 12:00 22:30 12:00 22:30 

Seasonal 
variations/ 
Non-standard 
timings: 

Current: Proposed: 

 
Monday to Sunday: 23:00 until 
00:00 (Summer Events).   
 

 
No Change.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

page 32



Hours premises are open to the public 
 

 Current  
Hours 

Proposed  
Hours 

Premises Area 

Start: End: Start: End: Current: Proposed: 

Monday 10:00 23:00 10:00 00:00  
Please see plan at Appendix 1  Tuesday 10:00 23:00 10:00 00:00 

Wednesday 10:00 23:00 10:00 00:00 

Thursday 10:00 23:00 10:00 00:00 

Friday 10:00 23:00 10:00 00:00 

Saturday 10:00 23:00 10:00 00:00 

Sunday 10:00 22:30 10:00 22:30 

Seasonal 
variations/ 
Non-standard 
timings: 

Current: Proposed: 

 
Monday to Sunday: 11:00 until 
00:00 (Summer Events).   
 

 
No Change.  

 

1-C Layout alteration 
 

 
No change applied for.  

 

1-D Conditions being varied, added or removed 
 

Condition Proposed variation 

 
Condition 33 
 
The hours permitted for Sale of Alcohol, 
Live Music, Playing of Recorded Music, 
Provision of facilities for making music and 
Provision of facilities for dancing may be 
extended until 00:00 (midnight). 
 

 
To be removed  

Adult entertainment: Current position: Proposed position: 

Not applicable  Not applicable.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

page 33



2. Representations 
 

2-A Responsible Authorities 
 

Responsible 
Authority: 

Environmental Health Consultation Team  (Withdrawn) 

Representative:  Mr Ian Watson  
 

Received:  
 

7th June 2017  

  
This representation is based on the operating schedule submitted. 

 

The applicant is seeking the following 

 

1. To increase the hours for the supply of alcohol ‘On’ the premises Monday to 
Saturday from 23.00 hours to 01.00 hours the following day. 

2. To increase the hours for the provision of late night refreshment ‘Indoors’ and 
‘Outdoors’ Monday to Saturday from 23.00 hours to 01.00 hours the following day. 

3. To increase the hours for regulated entertainment ‘Indoors’ and ‘Outdoors’ Monday 
to Saturday from 09.00 hours to 01.00 hours the following day. 

4. To remove condition 33 concerning the annual summer event. 
 

I wish to make the following representation 

 

1. The additional hours requested for the Supply of Alcohol will have the likely effect of 
causing an increase in Public Nuisance within the area. 

2. The additional hours requested for the provision of Late Night Refreshment will have 
the likely effect of causing an increase in Public Nuisance within the area. 

3. The additional hours requested for the provision of regulated entertainment will 
impact on Public Safety and have the likely effect of causing an increase in Public 
Nuisance within the area. 

4. No objection. 
 

The applicant has not provided any conditions in support of the application. A check on 
the noise history will be made to evaluate if the current conditions are sufficient. 

 
Following a meeting with the applicant, Environmental Health have now 
withdrawn their representation.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

page 34



Responsible 
Authority: 

Metropolitan Police Service (Withdrawn) 

Representative: PC Michael Day  
 

Received: 
 

15th June 2017  

 
I am writing to inform you that the Metropolitan Police, as a responsible authority, will be 
objecting to this application. It is our belief that if granted the application would 
undermine the Licensing Objectives. 
 
Following discussions with the applicant, the Metropolitan Police Service have 
now withdrawn their representation.  
 

2-B Other Persons 
 

Name: Mr John Zamit  

Address and/or Residents 
Association: 

South East Bayswater Residents Association 
(SEBRA) 

Status: Valid In support or opposed: Opposed  

Received:  
 

14th June 2017  

 
The South East Bayswater Residents' Association (SEBRA) objects strongly to this 
variation application. 
 
Current hours should be sufficient and we see no reason why any extended hors should 
be granted. 
 
Kensington Gardens closes at dusk and adjoin Hyde Park road network closes at 
midnight to all traffic we understand. We know at Victoria Gate at j/w Bayswater Road 
the gate closes at midnight and believe same true on all other gates surrounding park. 
 
We are concerned as to noise nuisance, additional traffic in surrounding areas late t 
night/ early hours of morning. 
 
We are also concerned as effect of late night activity effecting wild life in both parks. 
 

Name: Mr Dennis Clark  

Address and/or Residents 
Association: 

On behalf of The Royal Parks  
The Old police House  
Hyde Park  
London  
 

Status: Valid In support or opposed: Opposed  

Received:  
 

15th June 2017  

 
The Serpentine Gallery requires access along West Carriage Drive, within Hyde Park, 

page 35



for its operations. This licence application will increase the regularity and scale of 
vehicular and other activity when the park is closed. The Royal Parks have no plans to 
extend park opening hours beyond the current midnight closure. 
 
On this basis therefore The Royal Parks objects to this application. 
 
 

Name: Mr Paul Meitner – Licensing Representative  

Address and/or Residents 
Association 

Knightsbridge Association  
 

Status: Valid In support of opposed: Opposed  

Received:  
 

15th June 2017  

 
I write to object to the grant the above application, on the basis that the likely impact of 
the application, if granted, would be to harm the licensing objectives of prevention of 
public nuisance. 
 
Background 
 
Since 1961 the Knightsbridge Association (“KA”) has promoted the interests of 
residents, businesses and visitors of the Knightsbridge neighbourhood. Knightsbridge is 
not a well defined term but, roughly, it includes the area from Hyde Park Corner on the 
east to Queen’s Gate on the west and from Hyde Park on the north to Brompton Road 
on the south. 
 
The Knightsbridge Association is a not for profit, non-political, voluntary organisation 
representing local interests on all residential and commercial planning applications and 
monitors licensing applications. It also monitors Street cleaning and lighting and liaises 
with the police on crime prevention. 
 
Many of these residents have communicated their concerns to us and the Knightsbridge 
Association’s representation reflects these concerns. We understand that these 
residents are likely to make their own representations to the Premises Licensing 
Committee. 
 
Prevention of public nuisance and protection of children 
 

We are concerned about this particular application, on the grounds of prevention of 
public nuisance, specifically the additional noise and disruption to the lives of local 
residents as a result of the proposed extension of hours. The application envisages the 
extension to the hours for the sale of alcohol and regulated entertainment to between 
10.00 a.m. and 1.00 a.m. Monday to Saturday and 12.00 to 1.00 a.m. on Sundays prior 
to a bank holiday, with an extension of closing time from 23.00 to 1.00 a.m. on Mondays 
to Saturdays and Sundays before a public holiday. 
 
The above proposed hours are well outside “Core Hours” and will turn an oasis of piece 
into a a “Stress Area”. Kensington Gardens is not a destination for late night 
entertainment and should retain its current character. The residential apartments in 
Exhibition Road and Lancaster Gate will become subjected to late night disturbance 
resulting from the dispersal of clientele, up to and beyond 1 a.m. Nor is noise and 

page 36



disturbance to hotel guests acceptable. KA has as a result received a number of strong 
objections. 
 
There are already licensed premises at the location, but extended hours as envisaged 
will mean more people and more potential for night time disturbance. It is unclear why a 
significantly later finishing time is appropriate now when it was not when the original 
application was submitted.  
 
Increased consumption of alcohol is usually accompanied by the playing of loud music 
and has the potential to cause nuisance. Given the location of the premises, increased 
consumption of alcohol will inevitably lead to greater risk of public nuisance well into the 
night. 
 
Accordingly, we lodge our objection and ask the Sub-Committee to take this 
representation into account when considering the application. Please let me know the 
date of the application once it is known, so that either I or another representative of the 
KA can attend. 
 

 
3. Policy & Guidance 

 
The following policies within the City Of Westminster Statement of Licensing Policy 
apply: 
 

Policy HRS1 applies (i) Applications for hours within the core hours set out below in 
this policy will generally be granted, subject to not being 
contrary to other policies in the Statement of Licensing Policy. 

(ii) Applications for hours outside the core hours set out below 
in this policy will be considered on their merits, subject to other 
relevant policies. 

 

Policy PB1 applies: 
 

Applications will only be granted if it can be demonstrated that 
the proposal meets the relevant criteria in Policies CD1, PS1, 
PN1 and CH1. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

page 37



4. Appendices 
 

Appendix 1 
 

Premises plans 

Appendix 2 
 

Applicant supporting documents  

Appendix 3 
 

Premises history 
 

Appendix 4 
 

Proposed conditions 

Appendix 5 Residential map and list of premises in the vicinity 
 

Appendix 6 Current Premises Licence - 09/03038/LIPDPS 
 

 
Report author: Miss Heidi Lawrance 

Senior Licensing Officer 

Contact: Telephone: 020 7641 2751 
Email: hlawrance@westminster.gov.uk 
 

 
 
If you have any queries about this report or wish to inspect one of the 
background papers please contact the report author. 

 
Background Documents – Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1972 
 

1 Licensing Act 2003 N/A 
 

2 City of Westminster Statement of Licensing  
Policy  

7th January 2016 

3 Amended Guidance issued under section 182 of  
the Licensing Act 2003  

March 2015 

4 Application Form  18th May 2017  

5 Representation – Environmental Health             7th June 2017  

6 Representation – MET Police 15th June 2017  

7 Representation – SEBRA  14th June 2017  

8 Representation – The Royal Parks  15th June 2017 

9 Representation – Knightsbridge Association  15th June 2017 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

page 38



        Appendix 1 
Premises Plans 
 

 
 
 

page 39



 

 
 
 
 

page 40



 

 
 
 
 

page 41



 

page 42



     Appendix 2 
Applicant Supporting Documents 
 
None submitted.  

 

page 43



Appendix 3 
Licence & Appeal History  
 

 

 
Application 
 

 
Details of 
Application 

 
Date Determined 

 
Decision 

 
06/04859/LIPN 

 
Application for a new 
premises licence  

 
20th July 2006 

 
Granted by 
Licensing Sub-
Committee  
 

 
06/08227/LIPV 

 
Application to vary 
the premises licence  
 
The Gallery also wish 
to apply to remove 
the condition on their 
existing licence 
which requires the 
use of plastic cups in 
serving alcohol.  The 
Gallery wish to be 
able to use glass 
cups also in serving 
alcoholic drinks at 
private or sponsored 
events. 
 

 
26th October 2006 

 
Granted under 
Delegated Authority  

 
07/04973/LIPV 

 
Application to vary 
the premises licence 
 
A one-off, invitation 
only annual fund-
raising event. The 
event is to be held in 
the Gallery and a 
temporary structure 
in the area 
immediately adjacent 
to the Gallery. The 
applicant seeks an 
extension of hours 
until 00:00 for The 
Sale By Retail of 
Alcohol, Recorded 
Music & The 
Provision of Facilities 
for Making Music. 
The event is 

 
5th July 2007 

 
Granted under 
Delegated Authority 

page 44



scheduled to begin at 
18:00 

 
08/06061/LIPV 

 
Application to vary 
the premises licence 
 

 
7th August 2008  

 
Granted under 
Delegated Authority 

 
08/11407/LIPDPS 

 
Application to Vary 
the Designated 
Premises Supervisor  
 

 
31st December 
2008 

 
Granted under 
Delegated Authority 

 
09/03038/LIPDPS 

 
Application to Vary 
the Designated 
Premises Supervisor  
 

 
6th May 2009 

 
Granted under 
Delegated Authority 

 
There is no appeal history 

page 45



Appendix 4 
 

CONDITIONS CONSISTENT WITH THE OPERATING SCHEDULE AND CONDITIONS 
PROPOSED BY A PARTY TO THE HEARING  
 
 
When determining an application to vary a premises licence under the provisions of the 
Licensing Act 2003, the licensing authority must, unless it decides to reject the application, grant 
the licence subject to the conditions which are indicated as mandatory in this schedule. 
 
At a hearing the licensing authority may, in addition, and having regard to any representations 
received, grant the licence subject to such conditions which are consistent with the operating 
schedule submitted by the applicant as part of their application, or alter or omit these conditions, 
or add any new condition to such extent as the licensing authority considers appropriate for the 
promotion of the licensing objectives. 
 
This schedule lists those conditions which are consistent with the operating schedule, or 
proposed as appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives by a responsible authority 
or an interested party as indicated. These conditions have not been submitted by the licensing 
service but reflect the positions of the applicant, responsible authority or interested party and 
have not necessarily been agreed 
 
Conditions: On Current Licence -  
 
Mandatory: 
 

1. No supply of alcohol may be made at a time when there is no designated 
premises supervisor in respect of this licence. 

 
2. No supply of alcohol may be made at a time when the designated premises 

supervisor does not hold a personal licence or the personal licence is 
suspended. 

 
3. Every supply of alcohol under this licence must be made or authorised by a 

person who holds a personal licence. 
 
4.          (1)  The responsible person must ensure that staff on relevant premises do 

not carry out, arrange or participate in any irresponsible promotions in 
relation to the premises. 

 
(2)  In this paragraph, an irresponsible promotion means any one or more of 

the following activities, or substantially similar activities, carried on for the 
purpose of encouraging the sale or supply of alcohol for consumption on 
the premises— 

 
(a)  games or other activities which require or encourage, or are designed to 

require or encourage, individuals to; 
 

(i)  drink a quantity of alcohol within a time limit (other than to drink 
alcohol sold or supplied on the premises before the cessation of the 
period in which the responsible person is authorised to sell or 
supply alcohol), or 

(ii)  drink as much alcohol as possible (whether within a time limit or 
otherwise); 

page 46



 
(b)  provision of unlimited or unspecified quantities of alcohol free or for a fixed 

or discounted fee to the public or to a group defined by a particular 
characteristic in a manner which carries a significant risk of undermining a 
licensing objective; 

 
(c)  provision of free or discounted alcohol or any other thing as a prize to 

encourage or reward the purchase and consumption of alcohol over a 
period of 24 hours or less in a manner which carries a significant risk of 
undermining a licensing objective; 

 
(d)  selling or supplying alcohol in association with promotional posters or 

flyers on, or in the vicinity of, the premises which can reasonably be 
considered to condone, encourage or glamorise anti-social behaviour or to 
refer to the effects of drunkenness in any favourable manner; 

 
 (e) dispensing alcohol directly by one person into the mouth of another (other 

than where that other person is unable to drink without assistance by 
reason of a disability). 

 
5.  The responsible person must ensure that free potable water is provided on 

request to customers where it is reasonably available. 
 
6.          (1)  The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder must 

ensure that an age verification policy is adopted in respect of the premises 
in relation to the sale or supply of alcohol. 

 
(2)  The designated premises supervisor in relation to the premises licence 

must ensure that the supply of alcohol at the premises is carried on in 
accordance with the age verification policy. 

 

(3) The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person 

to be under 18 years of age (or such older age as may be specified in the 

policy) to produce on request, before being served alcohol, identification 

bearing their photograph, date of birth and either— 

 (a)  a holographic mark, or 

 (b)  an ultraviolet feature. 

 
7.  The responsible person must ensure that— 

(a)  where any of the following alcoholic drinks is sold or supplied for 

consumption on the premises (other than alcoholic drinks sold or supplied 

having been made up in advance ready for sale or supply in a securely 

closed container) it is available to customers in the following measures— 

  (i)  beer or cider: ½ pint;  

(ii)  gin, rum, vodka or whisky: 25 ml or 35 ml; and 

   (iii)  still wine in a glass: 125 ml; 

page 47



 
(b)  these measures are displayed in a menu, price list or other printed 

material which is available to customers on the premises; and 
 
(c) where a customer does not in relation to a sale of alcohol specify the 

quantity of alcohol to be sold, the customer is made aware that these 
measures are available. 

 
A responsible person in relation to a licensed premises means the holder of the premise 
licence in respect of the premises, the designated premises supervisor (if any) or any 
individual aged 18 or over who is authorised by either the licence holder or designated 
premises supervisor.  For premises with a club premises certificate, any member or 
officer of the club present on the premises in a capacity that which enables him to 
prevent the supply of alcohol. 
 
8(i) A relevant person shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption 

on or off the premises for a price which is less than the permitted price. 
 
8(ii) For the purposes of the condition set out in paragraph 8(i) above - 
 

(a)  "duty" is to be construed in accordance with the Alcoholic Liquor Duties 
Act 1979; 

 
(b)  "permitted price" is the price found by applying the formula - 

 
P = D+(DxV) 

 
Where - 

  
(i) P is the permitted price, 
(ii) D is the amount of duty chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if 

the duty     were charged on the date of the sale or supply of the 
alcohol, and 

(iii) V is the rate of value added tax chargeable in relation to the alcohol 
as if the value added tax were charged on the date of the sale or 
supply of the alcohol; 

 
(c)  "relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there 

is in force a premises licence - 
   

(i)  the holder of the premises licence, 
(ii)  the designated premises supervisor (if any) in respect of such a 

licence, or 
(iii)  the personal licence holder who makes or authorises a supply of    

alcohol under such a licence; 
 

(d)   "relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there 
is in force a club premises certificate, any member or officer of the club 
present on the premises in a capacity which enables the member or 
officer to prevent the supply in question; and 

 

page 48



(e)  "value added tax" means value added tax charged in accordance with the 
Value Added Tax Act 1994. 

 
8(iii). Where the permitted price given by Paragraph 8(ii)(b) above would (apart from 

this paragraph) not be a whole number of pennies, the price given by that sub-
paragraph shall be taken to be the price actually given by that sub-paragraph 
rounded up to the nearest penny. 

 
8(iv).     (1)  Sub-paragraph 8(iv)(2) below applies where the permitted price given by 

Paragraph 8(ii)(b) above on a day ("the first day") would be different from 
the permitted price on the next day ("the second day") as a result of a 
change to the rate of duty or value added tax. 

(2)  The permitted price which would apply on the first day applies to sales or 
supplies of alcohol which take place before the expiry of the period of 14 
days beginning on the second day. 

 
Annex 2 – Conditions consistent with the operating Schedule 
 
9.  SIA licensed security shall be used when over 150 attend a single event. 
 
10.  Guests who attend private events, sponsored events and gallery events shall be 

encouraged to leave quietly. 
 
11.  The immediate exterior shall be kept free of litter. 
 
12. Professional licensed security guards shall secure the Summer Party. 
 
13.  Regulated Entertainment shall only be provided at private hire events and to 

invited guests and not general public. 
 
14. Alcoholic drinks will be provided in glass cups only to persons attending the 

gallery for the purposes of private hire for sponsored events and ancillary to their 
attendance for such purposes. 

 
15.  Staffs shall be trained to ensure that glasses are kept behind the bar and the 

additional door supervisors shall ensure that no glasses are taken outside the 
premises. 

 
16.  All staff shall be trained to assist with fire safety. There shall be 14 First Aiders, 3 

of who shall be present at every event. 
 
17.  Fire extinguishers and blankets shall be kept on the premises. 
 
18.  Any entertainment, performance, service, or exhibition involving nudity or sexual 

stimulation which would come within the definition of a sex establishment in 
Schedule 3 to the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 as 
amended by the Greater London Council (General Powers) Act 1986, (whether 
or not locally adopted), shall not be provided. 

 
19.  When Regulated Entertainment is carried out, the number of persons 

accommodated at any one time in the Gallery (excluding staff) shall not exceed 

page 49



300. In order for this capacity to be permitted, a total of at least three fire exits at 
a width of no less than 1050mm shall be maintained at all times. 

 
20.  Accommodation figures for any temporary structures shall be set in line with the 

Technical Standards for Places of Entertainment, and agreed with the 
Environmental Health Consultation Team prior to the first event taking place. 

 
21.  The provision of Regulated Entertainment shall be restricted to pre-booked 

functions only 
 
22.  The provision of Live Music is limited to no more than 10 performers save with 

the prior consent of the Environmental Health Consultation Team. 
 
23.  No striptease, no nudity and all persons to be decently attired at all times 
 
24.  Upon the initial erection of any temporary structures (such as the Pavilion and 

Marquee), an inspection must be carried out (and/or if there are any changes to 
the structure and layout) by the Environmental Health Consultation Team prior to 
the first event taking place. The following information must be supplied to the 
Environmental Health Consultation Team 21 days prior to the first event taking 
place: 

 
a)  Risk assessments for the temporary structures are to be produced by the 

Designated Premises Supervisor, including those supplied from any 
contractors brought in. 

 
b)  Emergency exits and entrances to the event area must be provided with 

clearly visible signage. 
 

c)  Details of all marquees, tented structures and temporary structures should 
be provided including emergency exits and appropriate signage. 

 
d)  All temporary structures shall be stable, securely fixed to the floor and 

where appropriate suitably certified by the building control division. 
 

e)  The Designated Premises Supervisor must ensure that competent 
persons are employed to assess the electrical requirements at the event 
and the compatibility of the electricity supply with the equipment to be 
used. Appropriate safety devices (such as 30mA Residual Current 
Devices at Source) must be used for electrical apparatus, particularly for 
any electrical equipment exposed to adverse conditions or electrical 
equipment to be used in association with hand held devices (e.g. 
microphones). These should comply with the latest edition of BS 4293. 
The competent person must make a certificate of inspection of the 
electrical installation available for inspection. 

 
f)  When the exterior gardens are used for an event outside of daylight hours 

a suitable system of both primary and secondary lighting shall be 
provided. 

 

page 50



g)  Prior to the installation of any temporary generator the following details 
shall be submitted by the Contractor to the Council for discussion and 
approval:- 

 
i)  Contact details of Person(s) responsible for the Generator(s) during 

the Event; 
ii)  Location of temporary Generator(s) with accompanying Map if 

appropriate and duration of installation;  
iii) Type and Make of Generator(s) proposed; 
iv)  Operating Voltage; 
v)  Load(s) to be fed from Generator(s); 
vi)  Cable routing and termination arrangements such as fixings and 

connections and protective measures taken; 
vii)  Earthing arrangements, including supporting documentation such 

as Test Results for Earth Rods used; 
viii)  Supplementary Earthing arrangements, such as for fencing Cable 

Bridges, Viewing Stands, and/or Loads; 
ix)  Protection arrangements (e.g. fencing proposed to prevent 

unauthorised access); 
x)  Oil Supply Storage proposals and details of refuelling 

arrangements; 
xi)  Details and locations of all Extinguishers proposed. 

 
h)  Following the Generator(s) installation an Inspection shall be made by the 

Council to confirm the suitability of the Works. Any necessary corrections, 
alterations and/or additions required shall be communicated to the 
Person(s) responsible for the Generator(s) who shall complete these 
Works before the Generator(s) is used. 

 
i)  During the operation of the Generator(s) the Council shall make spot 

checks to confirm the continued safe working of the installation. Any 
unsafe operation shall again be communicated to the Person(s) 
responsible for remedial action. 

 
j)  All step hazards/nosings shall be clearly marked with high visibility paint or 

a suitable equivalent. 
 

k)  At all times while the public is present a sufficient number of trained 
stewards shall be available. 

 
 
25.  All emergency doors shall be maintained effectively self closing and not held 

open other than by an approved device. 
 
26.  All exit doors shall be available at all material times without the use of a key, 

code, card or similar means. 
 
27.  No person shall give at the premises any exhibition, demonstration or 

performance of hypnotism, mesmerism or any similar act or process which 
produces or is intended to produce in any other person any form of induced 
sleep or trance in which susceptibility of the mind of that person to suggestion or 
direction is increased or intended to be increased. 

page 51



 
NOTE: (1) This rule does not apply to exhibitions given under the provisions of 
Section 2(1A) and 5 of the Hypnotism Act 1952. 

 
28.  The approved arrangements at the premises, including means of escape 

provisions, emergency warning equipment, the electrical installation and 
mechanical equipment, shall at all material times be maintained in good condition 
and full working order. 

 
29.  The certificates listed below shall be submitted to the Licensing Authority upon 

written request: 
 

(a)  Any emergency lighting battery or system 
(b)  Any electrical installation 
(c)  Any emergency warning system 

 
30.   The means of escape provided for the premises shall be maintained 

unobstructed, free of trip hazards, be immediately available and clearly identified 
in accordance with the plans provided. 

 
31.  Curtains and hangings shall be arranged so as not to obstruct emergency signs. 
 
32.  Special effects of any type, or fireworks, shall not be permitted unless previously 

approved by the Council. 
 
33.  Flashing or particularly bright lights on or outside the premises will not be 

permitted to cause a nuisance to nearby properties (save insofar as they are 
necessary for the prevention of crime). 

 
34.  All staff shall be made aware of the procedure to be adopted in the event of an 

emergency. 
 

The following conditions are only applicable to an annual summer event (`The 
Summer Event) to take place no earlier than June 1 and no later than 30 
September each year, the actual date to be notified in advance to the Licensing 
Authority. 

 
35.  The hours permitted for Sale of Alcohol, Live Music, Playing of Recorded Music, 

Provision of facilities for making music and Provision of facilities for dancing may 
be extended until 00:00 (midnight). 

 
36. Alcohol will be served only to persons attending by invitation and ancillary to their 

attendance at the event. 
 
37. No persons will be allowed into the event without a pre-paid invitation. 
 
38. The event shall not be opened to the public. 
 
39. The maximum number of person allowed for the event shall not be more than 

permitted by the licence. 
 

page 52



40. There shall be no less than 21 SIA licensed Security Guards in constant 
supervision of the perimeter fencing during the event. 

 
41. Not less than One Security Guard shall be assigned to each gate and no gate 

shall be left unattended throughout the event. 
 
Annex 3 – Conditions attached after a hearing by the licensing authority 

 
42.  Maximum number of persons on the premises at any one time shall be as follows 

(inclusive of staff): 
The Main Gallery:  350 
The Marquee : 520 
The Pavillion :  to be agreed annually with the Environmental Health 

Consultation Team 
  
43.  The supply of alcohol in the Gallery, Pavilion and Marquee shall be ancillary to 

Art Exhibitions and/ or for pre-booked events only. 
 
44.  Suitable beverages other than alcohol (including drinking water) and substantial 

refreshment shall be equally available during the permitted hours. 
 
45. No noise shall emanate from the premises, which gives rise to a nuisance. 
 
46.  Children are to be restricted from the bar areas. 
 
47. There may be up to 6 champagne breakfasts allowed per annum between 08:00 

- 11:00 at which alcohol shall only be ancillary to food. 

page 53



 Appendix 5 
Residential Map and List of Premises in the Vicinity 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

page 54



Appendix 6  
Current Premises Licence - 09/03038/LIPDPS 
 

 
 

page 55



 
 

page 56



 

 
 

page 57



 
 

page 58



 
 

page 59



 
 

page 60



 
 

page 61



 

page 62



            

 City of Westminster 

 

 

 

 
Item No:   

 
   

Date:  13 July 2017 
   

Licensing Ref No:  17/05352/LIPV - Premises Licence Variation 
   

Title of Report:  The Serpentine Secker Gallery and The Magazine 
Serpentine Gallery Kensington Gardens 
Exhibition Road 
London 
W2 3XA 

   

Report of:  Director of Public Protection and Licensing 
   

Wards involved:  Knightsbridge And Belgravia 
   

Policy context:  City of Westminster Statement of Licensing Policy  
 

   

Financial summary:  None 
   

Report Author:  Miss Heidi Lawrance 
Senior Licensing Officer 

   

Contact details  Telephone: 020 7641 2751 
Email: hlawrance@westminster.gov.uk 

 

 

Licensing Sub-Committee 
Report 

page 63

Agenda Item 3



 
1. Application 

 
1-A Applicant and premises 

 

Application Type: Variation of a Premises Licence, Licensing Act 2003 
 

Application received 
date: 

18 May 2017 

Applicant: The Serpentine Trust 
 

Premises: The Serpentine Secker Gallery and The Magazine 
 

Premises address: Serpentine Gallery 
Kensington Gardens 
Exhibition Road 
London 
W2 3XA 

Ward: 
 

Knightsbridge 
& Belgravia 
 

Cumulative 
Impact Area: 

None.  

Premises description: 
 

The premises is currently operating as a gallery and 
exhibition area with a restaurant.  
 

Variation description: The premises comprise of: 
 
1. A Gallery Area. 
2. A Restaurant Area. 
3. An Outdoor Area. 
 
This application is to vary the premises licence as follows: 
 
1. To extend the hours for the sale of alcohol to between 
the hours of 10:00 and 00:00 Monday to Saturday and 
12:00 and 00:00 on Sundays immediately prior to a bank 
holiday. 
 
2. To extend the hours for the provision of regulated 
entertainment to between the hours of 00:00 and 00:00 
Monday to Saturday and on Sundays immediately prior to 
a bank holiday. 
 
3. To extend the hours for the provision of late night 
refreshment to between the hours of 23:00 and 00:00 
Monday to Saturday and on Sundays prior to a bank 
holiday. 
 
4. To amend the opening hours. 
 

Premises licence history: 
 

The premises has been licensed since May 2013.  
 
A copy of the current licence can be found at Appendix 6  
 
 

page 64



Applicant submissions: The applicant has had discussions with Royal Parks and 
have amended the applications as follows: 
 
The terminal hour Monday to Thursday for all licensable 
activities to be amended to midnight which matches the 
hours for Friday and Saturday. 
 

 

1-B Current and proposed licensable activities, areas and hours 
 

Regulated Entertainment 
 

Provision of Plays / Exhibition of Film / Live Music / Recorded Music / 
Performance of Dance / Anything of a Similar Description  
 

 Current  
Hours 

Proposed  
Hours 

Licensable Area 

Start: End: Start: End: 

Monday 09:00 23:30 09:00 00:00  
Please see plans at Appendix 1. Tuesday 09:00 23:30 09:00 00:00 

Wednesday 09:00 23:30 09:00 00:00 

Thursday 09:00 23:30 09:00 00:00 

Friday 09:00 00:00 09:00 00:00 

Saturday 09:00 00:00 09:00 00:00 

Sunday 09:00 22:30 09:00 22:30 

Seasonal  
variations: 

Current: Proposed: 

Sundays before bank holidays 
09:00 until 00:00  
 
From the end of permitted hours 
on new years eve until the start of 
permitted hours on New Years 
Eve.   

Sundays immediately prior to a 
bank holiday 09:00 to 00:00. 
 
From the end of permitted hours 
on new years eve until the start of 
permitted hours on New Years 
Eve.   

Non-standard  
timings: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

page 65



Late night refreshment 
 

Indoors, outdoors or both Current : Proposed: 

Both  Both  

 Current  
Hours 

Proposed  
Hours 

Licensable Area 

Start: End: Start: End: 

Monday 23:00 23:30 23:00 00:00  
Please see plans at Appendix 1. Tuesday 23:00 23:30 23:00 00:00 

Wednesday 23:00 23:30 23:00 00:00 

Thursday 23:00 23:30 23:00 00:00 

Friday 23:00 00:00 23:00 00:00 

Saturday 23:00 00:00 23:00 01:00 

Sunday     

Seasonal 
variations/ 
Non-standard 
timings: 

Current: Proposed: 

Sundays before bank holidays 
23:00 until 00:00  
 
From the end of permitted hours 
on new years eve until the start of 
permitted hours on New Years 
Eve.   

Sundays immediately prior to a 
bank holiday 23:00 to 00:00. 
 
From the end of permitted hours 
on new years eve until the start of 
permitted hours on New Years 
Eve.   

 

Sale by Retail of Alcohol 
 

On or off sales Current : Proposed: 

On Sales On Sales  

 Current  
Hours 

Proposed  
Hours 

Licensable Area 

Start: End: Start: End: 

Monday 10:00 23:30 10:00 00:00  
Please see plans at Appendix 1. Tuesday 10:00 23:30 10:00 00:00 

Wednesday 10:00 23:30 10:00 00:00 

Thursday 10:00 23:30 10:00 00:00 

Friday 10:00 00:00 10:00 00:00 

Saturday 10:00 00:00 10:00 00:00 

Sunday 12:00 10:00 00:00 22:30 

Seasonal 
variations/ 
Non-standard 
timings: 

Current: Proposed: 

Sundays before bank holidays 
12:00 until 00:00  
 
From the end of permitted hours 
on new years eve until the start of 
permitted hours on New Years 
Eve.   

Sundays immediately prior to a 
bank holiday 12:00 to 00:00. 
 
From the end of permitted hours 
on new years eve until the start of 
permitted hours on New Years 
Eve.  

 
 
 
 
 
 

page 66



Hours premises are open to the public 
 

 Current  
Hours 

Proposed  
Hours 

Premises Area 

Start: End: Start: End: 

Monday 09:00 23:30 09:00 00:30  
Please see plans at Appendix 1. Tuesday 09:00 23:30 09:00 00:30 

Wednesday 09:00 23:30 09:00 00:30 

Thursday 09:00 23:30 09:00 00:30 

Friday 09:00 00:00 09:00 00:30 

Saturday 09:00 00:00 09:00 00:30 

Sunday 09:00 22:30 09:00 22:30 

Seasonal 
variations/ 
Non-standard 
timings: 

Current: Proposed: 

Sundays before bank holidays 
09:00 until 00:00  
 
From the end of permitted hours 
on new years eve until the start of 
permitted hours on New Years 
Eve.   

Sundays immediately prior to a 
bank holiday 09:00 to 00:30. 
 
From the end of permitted hours 
on new years eve until the start of 
permitted hours on New Years 
Eve.   

 

1-C Layout alteration 
 

 
None applied for. 

 

1-D Conditions being varied, added or removed 
 

 
No changes being applied for.  

Adult entertainment: Current position: Proposed position: 

Not applicable  Not applicable.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

page 67



2. Representations 
 

2-A Responsible Authorities 
 

Responsible 
Authority: 

Environmental Health Consultation Team (Withdrawn) 

Representative:  Mr Ian Watson  
 

Received:  
 

7th June 2017 

  
I refer to the application for variation of the Premises Licence. 

 

This representation is based on the operating schedule submitted. 

 

The applicant is seeking the following 

 

1. To increase the hours for the supply of alcohol ‘On’ the premises Monday to 
Saturday 10.00 hours to 01.00 hours the following day. Sundays immediately prior to 
a Bank Holiday 12.00 to 01.00 hours. 

2. To increase the hours for the provision of late night refreshment ‘Indoors’ and 
‘Outdoors’ Monday to Saturday from 23.00 hours to 01.00 hours the following day. 
Sundays immediately prior to a Bank Holiday 23.00 to 01.00 hours. 

3. To increase the hours for regulated entertainment ‘Indoors’ and ‘Outdoors’ Monday 
to Saturday from 09.00 hours to 01.00 hours the following day. Sundays immediately 
prior to a Bank Holiday 09.00 to 01.00 hours. 

 

I wish to make the following representation 

 

1. The additional hours requested for the Supply of Alcohol will have the likely effect of 
causing an increase in Public Nuisance within the area. 

2. The additional hours requested for the provision of Late Night Refreshment will have 
the likely effect of causing an increase in Public Nuisance within the area. 

3. The additional hours requested for the provision of regulated entertainment will 
impact on Public Safety and have the likely effect of causing an increase in Public 
Nuisance within the area. 

 

The applicant has not provided any conditions in support of the application. A check on 
the noise history will be made to evaluate if the current conditions are sufficient. 

 
 
Following a meeting with the applicant, Environmental Health have now 
withdrawn their representation.  
 
 
 
 

page 68



Responsible 
Authority: 

Metropolitan Police Service (Withdrawn) 

Representative: PC Michael Day  
 

Received: 
 

15th June 2017  

 
I am writing to inform you that the Metropolitan Police, as a responsible authority, will be 
objecting to this application. It is our belief that if granted the application would 
undermine the Licensing Objectives. 
 
Following discussions with the applicant, the Metropolitan Police have now 
withdrawn their representation.  
 

 

2-B Other Persons 
 

Name: Mr Dennis Clarke 

Address and/or Residents 
Association: 

On behalf of The Royal Parks  
The Old Police House  
Hyde Park  
London  

Status: Valid In support or opposed: Opposed  

Received:  
 

15th June 2017 

 
The Magazine/Serpentine Gallery requires access along West Carriage Drive, within 
Hyde Park, for its operations. This licence application will increase the regularity and 
scale of vehicular and other activity when the park is closed. The Royal Parks have 
no plans to extend park opening hours beyond the current midnight closure. 
 
On this basis therefore The Royal Parks objects to this application. 
 

Name: Paul Meitner - Licensing Representative 
 

Address and/or Residents 
Association: 

Knightsbridge Association 

Status: Valid In support or opposed: Opposed  

Received:  
 

15th June 2017  

I write to object to the grant ot the above application, on the basis that the likely impact 
of the application, if granted, would be to harm the licensing objectives of prevention of 
public nuisance. 
 
Background 
 
Since 1961 the Knightsbridge Association (“KA”) has promoted the interests of 
residents, businesses and visitors of the Knightsbridge neighbourhood. Knightsbridge is 
not a well defined term but, roughly, it includes the area from Hyde Park Corner on the 
east to Queen’s Gate on the west and from Hyde Park on the north to Brompton Road 

page 69



on the south. 
 
The Knightsbridge Association is a not for profit, non-political, voluntary organisation 
representing local interests on all residential and commercial planning applications and 
monitors licensing applications. It also monitors Street cleaning and lighting and liaises 
with the police on crime prevention. 
 
Many of these residents have communicated their concerns to us and the Knightsbridge 
Association’s representation reflects these concerns. We understand that these 
residents are likely to make their own representations to the Premises Licensing 
Committee. 
 
Prevention of public nuisance and protection of children 
 
We are concerned about this particular application, on the grounds of prevention of 
public nuisance, specifically the additional noise and disruption to the lives of local 
residents as a result of the proposed extension of hours. The application envisages the 
extension to the hours for the sale of alcohol and regulated entertainment to between 
10.00 a.m. and 1.00 a.m. Monday to Saturday and 12.00 to 1.00 a.m. on Sundays prior 
to a bank holiday, with an extension of closing time from 23.00 to 1.00 a.m. on Mondays 
to Saturdays and Sundays before a public holiday. The above proposed hours are well 
outside “Core Hours” and will turn an oasis of piece into a a “Stress Area”. Kensington 
Gardens is not a destination for late night entertainment and should retain its current 
character. The residential apartments in Exhibition Road and Lancaster Gate will 
become subjected to late night disturbance resulting from the dispersal of clientele, up 
to and beyond 1 a.m. Nor is noise and disturbance to hotel guests acceptable. KA 
has as a result received a number of strong objections.  
 
There are already licensed premises at the location, but extended hours as envisaged 
will mean more people and more potential for night time disturbance. It is unclear why a 
significantly later finishing time is appropriate now when it was not when the original 
application was submitted. 
 
Increased consumption of alcohol is usually accompanied by the playing of loud music 
and has the potential to cause nuisance. Given the location of the premises, increased 
consumption of alcohol will inevitably lead to greater risk of public nuisance well into the 
night. 
 
Accordingly, we lodge our objection and ask the Sub-Committee to take this 
representation into account when considering the application. Please let me know the 
date of the application once it is known, so that either I or another representative of the 
KA can attend. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

page 70



3. Policy & Guidance 
 

The following policies within the City Of Westminster Statement of Licensing Policy 
apply: 
 

Policy HRS1 applies: (i) Applications for hours within the core hours set out below in 
this policy will generally be granted, subject to not being 
contrary to other policies in the Statement of Licensing Policy. 

(ii) Applications for hours outside the core hours set out below 
in this policy will be considered on their merits, subject to other 
relevant policies. 

 

Policy MD1 applies: 
 

Applications will only be granted if it can be demonstrated that 
the proposal meets the relevant criteria in Policies CD1, PS1, 
PN1 and CH1. 

 

Policy PB1 applies: 
 

Applications will only be granted if it can be demonstrated that 
the proposal meets the relevant criteria in Policies CD1, PS1, 
PN1 and CH1. 
 

 
4. Appendices 

 
Appendix 1 
 

Premises plans 

Appendix 2 
 

Applicant supporting documents  

Appendix 3 
 

Premises history 
 

Appendix 4 
 

Proposed conditions 

Appendix 5 Residential map and list of premises in the vicinity 
 

Appendix 6  Current Premises Licence - 14/07459/LIPV 
 

 
Report author: Miss Heidi Lawrance 

Senior Licensing Officer 

Contact: Telephone: 020 7641 2751 
Email: hlawrance@westminster.gov.uk 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

page 71



If you have any queries about this report or wish to inspect one of the 
background papers please contact the report author. 

 
Background Documents – Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1972 
 

1 Licensing Act 2003 N/A 
 

2 City of Westminster Statement of Licensing  
Policy  

7th January 2016 

3 Amended Guidance issued under section 182 of  
the Licensing Act 2003  

March 2015 

4 Application form  18th May 2017  

5 Representation – Environmental Health Team  7th June 2017 

6 Representation – MET Police Service          15th June 2017  

7 Representation – Royal Parks 15th June 2017 

8 Representation – Knightsbridge Ass.  15th June 2017  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

page 72



         Appendix 1 
Premises Plans 
 

 

page 73



      Appendix 2 
Applicant Supporting Documents 

 
None submitted.  

page 74



Appendix 3 
Licence & Appeal History  
 

 

 
Application 
 

 
Details of 
Application 

 
Date Determined 

 
Decision 

 
13/01308/LIPN 

 
Application for a new 
premises licence  
 

 
2nd May 2013  

 
Granted by 
Licensing Sub 
Committee  
 

 
14/07459/LIPV 

 
Application to vary 
the premises licence 
 
Delete the existing 
condition 11 in Annex 
3 of the premises 
licence and replace it 
with the following 
new condition 11; 
 
"The maximum 
number of persons 
accommodated at 
any one time at the 
premises (excluding 
staff) shall be 500."  
 

 
6th October 2014 

 
Granted under 
Delegate Authority.  

 
There is no appeal history 

page 75



Appendix 4 
 

CONDITIONS CONSISTENT WITH THE OPERATING SCHEDULE AND CONDITIONS 
PROPOSED BY A PARTY TO THE HEARING  
 
When determining an application to vary a premises licence under the provisions of the 
Licensing Act 2003, the licensing authority must, unless it decides to reject the application, grant 
the licence subject to the conditions which are indicated as mandatory in this schedule. 
 
At a hearing the licensing authority may, in addition, and having regard to any representations 
received, grant the licence subject to such conditions which are consistent with the operating 
schedule submitted by the applicant as part of their application, or alter or omit these conditions, 
or add any new condition to such extent as the licensing authority considers appropriate for the 
promotion of the licensing objectives. 
 
This schedule lists those conditions which are consistent with the operating schedule, or 
proposed as appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives by a responsible authority 
or an interested party as indicated. These conditions have not been submitted by the licensing 
service but reflect the positions of the applicant, responsible authority or interested party and 
have not necessarily been agreed 
 
Conditions: On Current Licence -  
 
Mandatory: 
 

1. No supply of alcohol may be made at a time when there is no designated 
premises supervisor in respect of this licence. 

 
2. No supply of alcohol may be made at a time when the designated premises 

supervisor does not hold a personal licence or the personal licence is 
suspended. 

 
3. Every supply of alcohol under this licence must be made or authorised by a 

person who holds a personal licence. 
 
4.          (1)  The responsible person must ensure that staff on relevant premises do 

not carry out, arrange or participate in any irresponsible promotions in 
relation to the premises. 

 
(2)  In this paragraph, an irresponsible promotion means any one or more of 

the following activities, or substantially similar activities, carried on for the 
purpose of encouraging the sale or supply of alcohol for consumption on 
the premises— 

 
(a)  games or other activities which require or encourage, or are designed to 

require or encourage, individuals to; 
 

(i)  drink a quantity of alcohol within a time limit (other than to drink 
alcohol sold or supplied on the premises before the cessation of the 
period in which the responsible person is authorised to sell or 
supply alcohol), or 

(ii)  drink as much alcohol as possible (whether within a time limit or 
otherwise); 

 

page 76



(b)  provision of unlimited or unspecified quantities of alcohol free or for a fixed 
or discounted fee to the public or to a group defined by a particular 
characteristic in a manner which carries a significant risk of undermining a 
licensing objective; 

 
(c)  provision of free or discounted alcohol or any other thing as a prize to 

encourage or reward the purchase and consumption of alcohol over a 
period of 24 hours or less in a manner which carries a significant risk of 
undermining a licensing objective; 

 
(d)  selling or supplying alcohol in association with promotional posters or 

flyers on, or in the vicinity of, the premises which can reasonably be 
considered to condone, encourage or glamorise anti-social behaviour or to 
refer to the effects of drunkenness in any favourable manner; 

 
 (e) dispensing alcohol directly by one person into the mouth of another (other 

than where that other person is unable to drink without assistance by 
reason of a disability). 

 
5.  The responsible person must ensure that free potable water is provided on 

request to customers where it is reasonably available. 
 
6.          (1)  The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder must 

ensure that an age verification policy is adopted in respect of the premises 
in relation to the sale or supply of alcohol. 

 
(2)  The designated premises supervisor in relation to the premises licence 

must ensure that the supply of alcohol at the premises is carried on in 
accordance with the age verification policy. 

 

(3) The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person 

to be under 18 years of age (or such older age as may be specified in the 

policy) to produce on request, before being served alcohol, identification 

bearing their photograph, date of birth and either— 

 (a)  a holographic mark, or 

 (b)  an ultraviolet feature. 

 
7.  The responsible person must ensure that— 

(a)  where any of the following alcoholic drinks is sold or supplied for 

consumption on the premises (other than alcoholic drinks sold or supplied 

having been made up in advance ready for sale or supply in a securely 

closed container) it is available to customers in the following measures— 

  (i)  beer or cider: ½ pint;  

(ii)  gin, rum, vodka or whisky: 25 ml or 35 ml; and 

   (iii)  still wine in a glass: 125 ml; 

 

page 77



(b)  these measures are displayed in a menu, price list or other printed 
material which is available to customers on the premises; and 

 
(c) where a customer does not in relation to a sale of alcohol specify the 

quantity of alcohol to be sold, the customer is made aware that these 
measures are available. 

 
A responsible person in relation to a licensed premises means the holder of the premise 
licence in respect of the premises, the designated premises supervisor (if any) or any 
individual aged 18 or over who is authorised by either the licence holder or designated 
premises supervisor.  For premises with a club premises certificate, any member or 
officer of the club present on the premises in a capacity that which enables him to 
prevent the supply of alcohol. 
 
8(i) A relevant person shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption 

on or off the premises for a price which is less than the permitted price. 
 
8(ii) For the purposes of the condition set out in paragraph 8(i) above - 
 

(a)  "duty" is to be construed in accordance with the Alcoholic Liquor Duties 
Act 1979; 

 
(b)  "permitted price" is the price found by applying the formula - 

 
P = D+(DxV) 

 
Where - 

  
(i) P is the permitted price, 
(ii) D is the amount of duty chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if 

the duty     were charged on the date of the sale or supply of the 
alcohol, and 

(iii) V is the rate of value added tax chargeable in relation to the alcohol 
as if the value added tax were charged on the date of the sale or 
supply of the alcohol; 

 
(c)  "relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there 

is in force a premises licence - 
   

(i)  the holder of the premises licence, 
(ii)  the designated premises supervisor (if any) in respect of such a 

licence, or 
(iii)  the personal licence holder who makes or authorises a supply of    

alcohol under such a licence; 
 

(d)   "relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there 
is in force a club premises certificate, any member or officer of the club 
present on the premises in a capacity which enables the member or 
officer to prevent the supply in question; and 

 
(e)  "value added tax" means value added tax charged in accordance with the 

Value Added Tax Act 1994. 

page 78



 
8(iii). Where the permitted price given by Paragraph 8(ii)(b) above would (apart from 

this paragraph) not be a whole number of pennies, the price given by that sub-
paragraph shall be taken to be the price actually given by that sub-paragraph 
rounded up to the nearest penny. 

 
8(iv).     (1)  Sub-paragraph 8(iv)(2) below applies where the permitted price given by 

Paragraph 8(ii)(b) above on a day ("the first day") would be different from 
the permitted price on the next day ("the second day") as a result of a 
change to the rate of duty or value added tax. 

(2)  The permitted price which would apply on the first day applies to sales or 
supplies of alcohol which take place before the expiry of the period of 14 
days beginning on the second day. 

 
9. Admission of children to the premises must be restricted in accordance with the 

film classification recommended by the British Board of Film Classification or 
recommended by this licensing authority as appropriate. 

 
10. All persons guarding premises against unauthorised access or occupation or 

against outbreaks of disorder or against damage (door supervisors) must be 
licensed by the Security Industry Authority. 

 
Annex 2 – Conditions consistent with the operating Schedule 
 
11. The maximum number of persons accommodated at any one time at the 

premises (excluding staff) shall be: 
 

a) In the restaurant 120 persons (seated capacity) or up to 300 persons 
(non-seated capacity) 

b) In the Gallery 300 persons 
 

Provided that the maximum capacity for both Gallery and Restaurant combined 
is not more than 300 persons, and 500 for ticketed and/or pre-booked or private 
events (excluding staff). 

 
Annex 3 – Conditions attached after a hearing by the licensing authority 
 
12. The premises shall install and maintain a comprehensive CCTV system as per 

the minimum requirements of a Metropolitan Police Crime Prevention Officer. All 
entry and exit points will be covered enabling frontal identification of every 
person entering in any light condition. The CCTV system shall continually record 
whilst the premises is open for licensable activities and during all times when 
customers remain on the premises. All recordings shall be stored for a minimum 
period of 31 days with date and time stamping. Recordings shall be made 
available immediately upon the request of Police or authorised officer throughout 
the preceding 31 day period. 

 
13. A staff member from the premises who is conversant with the operation of the 

CCTV system shall be on the premises at all times when the premises is open to 
the public. This staff member must be able to show a Police or authorised council 
officer recent data or footage with the absolute minimum of delay when 
requested. 

page 79



 
14. A minimum of 3 SIA licensed security personnel shall be used when over 150 

persons attend a single event in the Gallery Area or Outdoor Area. 
 
15. Any special effects or mechanical installations shall be arranged and stored so 

as to minimise any risk to the safety of those using the premises. The following 
special effects will only be used on 10 days prior notice being given to the 
Licensing Authority where consent has not previously been given. 

 
o dry ice and cryogenic fog 
o smoke machines and fog generators 
o pyrotechnics including fire works 
o firearms 
o lasers 
o explosives and highly flammable substances. 
o real flame. 
o strobe lighting. 

 
16. No person shall give at the premises any exhibition, demonstration or 

performance of hypnotism, mesmerism or any similar act or process which 
produces or is intended to produce in any other person any form of induced 
sleep or trance in which susceptibility of the mind of that person to suggestion or 
direction is increased or intended to be increased. 

 
NOTE: (1) This rule does not apply to exhibitions given under the provisions of 
Section 2(1A) and 5 of the Hypnotism Act 1952.  

 
17. No cinema style seating shall be used without the prior consent of the 

Environmental Health Consultation Team. 
 
18. No noise shall emanate from the premises nor vibration be transmitted through 

the structure of the premises which gives rise to a nuisance. 
 
19. Loudspeakers shall not be located in the entrance lobby or outside the premises 

building. 
 
20. There shall be no admittance or re-admittance to the premises after 23:00.  
 
21. Notices shall be prominently displayed at all exits requesting patrons to respect 

the needs of local residents and businesses and leave the area quietly. 
 
22. The supply of alcohol in the Restaurant Area shall be. 
 

22.1 -  by waiter or waitress service only 
22.2 -  to persons seated taking a table meal there and for consumption by such 

persons as ancillary to their meal 
 

Save that the conditions 23.1 and 23.2 do not apply to: 
 

(a) a maximum of 12 persons seated and 12 persons standing in the 
designated Bar Area as marked on the plan submitted 

(b) persons attending a pre-booked or ticketed event at the premises. 

page 80



  
23. There shall be no striptease or nudity, and all persons shall be decently attired at 

all times unless the premises are operating under the authority of a Sexual 
Entertainment Venue Licence. 

 
24. An incident log shall be kept at the premises, and made available on request to 

an authorised officer of the City Council or the Police, which will record the 
following: 

 
a) all crimes reported to the venue 
b) all ejections of patrons 
c) any complaints received 
d) any incidents of disorder 
e) all seizures of drugs or offensive weapons 
f) any faults in the CCTV system or searching equipment or scanning 

equipment 
g) any refusal of the sale of alcohol 
h) any visit by a relevant authority or emergency service. 

 
25. No alcohol shall be consumed more than 30 minutes after the permitted hour for 

the supply of alcohol. 
 
26. Patrons permitted to temporary leave and then re-enter the premises, e.g. to 

smoke, shall not be permitted to take drinks or glass containers with them. 
 
27. The Outside Area within the site boundary as shown on the plan submitted 

(drawing number 1608K index C4) shall be kept free of litter. 
 
28. Regulated entertainment, save for regulated entertainment that is ancillary to a 

public art exhibition, shall only be provided at private hire events and to invited 
guests and not the general public. 

 
29. When the Outside Area is used outside of daylight hours a suitable system of 

both primary and secondary lighting shall be provided. 
 
30. A Challenge 21 or 25 scheme shall be operated at the premises where the only 

acceptable forms of identification are recognised photographic identification 
cards, such as a driving licence or passport.  

 
31. No regulated entertainment shall be provided in the Outside Area shall be 

provided after 23:00 hours.  

page 81



Appendix 5 
Residential Map and List of Premises in the Vicinity   
 

 
 

page 82



Appendix 6 
Premises Licence - 14/07459/LIPV 
 

 
 

page 83



 
 

page 84



 

page 85



 

 
 

page 86



 

page 87



 

page 88



 
 

page 89



 
 

page 90



 
 

page 91



 
 
 

page 92



 
 
 

page 93



 
 

page 94



 

page 95



This page is intentionally left blank



            

 City of Westminster 

 

 

 

 
Item No:   

 
   

Date:  13 July 2017 
   

Licensing Ref No:  17/05529/LIPN - New Premises Licence 
   

Title of Report:  32 Henrietta Street 
London 
WC2E 8NA 

   

Report of:  Director of Public Protection and Licensing 
   

Wards involved:  St James's 
   

Policy context:  City of Westminster Statement of Licensing Policy  
 

   

Financial summary:  None 
   

Report Author:  Miss Heidi Lawrance 
Senior Licensing Officer 

   

Contact details  Telephone: 020 7641 2751 
Email: hlawrance@westminster.gov.uk 

 

 

Licensing Sub-Committee 
Report 

page 97

Agenda Item 4



 
1. Application 

 
1-A Applicant and premises 

 

Application Type: New Premises Licence, Licensing Act 2003 
 

Application received 
date: 

22 May 2017 

Applicant: Oystermen Events Limited 
 

Premises:  

Premises address: 32 Henrietta Street 
London 
WC2E 8NA 
 

Ward: 
 

St James’s 

Cumulative 
Impact Area: 

West End  

Premises description: 
 

 

Premises licence history: 
 

This an application for a new premises and therefore no 
history exist.  
 

Applicant submissions: Please see document attached at Appendix 2 
 

 

1-B Proposed licensable activities and hours 
 

Late Night Refreshment: Indoors, outdoors or both Both  
 

Day: Mon Tues Wed Thur Fri Sat Sun 
 

Start: 23:00 23:00 23:00 23:00 23:00 23:00  

End: 23:30 23:30 23:30 23:30 00:00 00:00  

Seasonal variations/ Non-
standard timings: 

Sunday immediately prior to a Bank Holiday 23:00 to 
00:00. 
 
New Year's Eve all activities are permitted throughout the 
night until the start of permitted hours on New Year's 
Day. 

 

Sale by retail of alcohol On or off sales or both: 
 

Both  

Day: Mon Tues Wed Thur Fri Sat Sun 
 

Start: 10:00 10:00 10:00 10:00 10:00 10:00 10:00 

End: 23:30 23:30 23:30 23:30 00:00 00:00 22;30 

Seasonal variations/ Non-
standard timings: 

Sunday immediately prior to a Bank Holiday 12:00 to 
00:00. 
 
New Year's Eve all activities are permitted throughout the 
night until the start of permitted hours on New Year's 
Day. 

page 98



Hours premises are open to the public 
 

Day: Mon Tues Wed Thur Fri Sat Sun 
 

Start: 08:00 08:00 08:00 08:00 08:00 08:00 08:00 

End: 00:00 00:00 00:00 00:00 00:30 00:30 23:00 

Seasonal variations/ Non-
standard timings: 

Sunday immediately prior to a Bank Holiday 08:00 to 
00:30. 
 
New Year's Eve all activities are permitted throughout the 
night until the start of permitted hours on New Year's 
Day. 
 

Adult Entertainment:  Not applicable.  
 

 
 

2. Representations 
 

2-A Responsible Authorities 
 

Responsible 
Authority: 

Licensing Authority  

Representative:  Mr David Sycamore  
 

Received:  
 

15th June 2017  

  
As a responsible authority under section 13 (4) of the Licensing Act 2003 as amended 
under the Police and Social Responsibility Act 2011 the Licensing Authority have 
considered your application in full. The Licensing Authority has concerns in relation to 
this application and how the premises would promote the Licensing Objectives:  
 
 •           Public Nuisance  
 
•           Prevention of Crime & Disorder  
 
•           Public Safety  
 
It is difficult to fully assess the application as the description of the premises is  
‘Licensed Premises’ and the plan appears to show no fixed seating. The premises is 
located in the Cumulative Impact Area as defined in the Westminster City Council 
Licensing Policy.  
 
The application for alcohol on and off the premises is currently outside of those as 
stated in the statement of licensing policy.(HRS1) We would ask that the provision of off 
sales is reduced to core hours and on Sunday, the start time of on sales is moved to 
12:00hrs so they are in line with core hours. We also note that the full model condition 
66 has not been offered.  
 
  

page 99



 
As there is no proposed capacity, it is again difficult to assess the applications full 
cumulative impact and as such, CIP1 is difficult to assess. As this is a new premises, 
with no previous history, any additional people will add to cumulative impact.  
 
Please accept this as a formal representation and we look forward to receiving some 
more information and amendments so we might withdraw our representation.  
 

Responsible 
Authority: 

Environmental Health Consultation Team  

Representative: Mr Ian Watson  
 

Received: 
 

16th June 2017  

 
The premises are located within the West End Cumulative Impact Area as stated 
in the City of Westminster’s Statement of Licensing Policy. 

 
The applicant has submitted floor plans of the premises dated March 2017. 

 

This representation is based on the plans and operating schedule submitted. 

 

The applicant is seeking the following 

 

1. To provide for the Supply of Alcohol ‘On’ and ‘Off’ the premises Monday to Thursday 
10.00 to 23.30 hours, Friday and Saturday 10.00 and 00.00 hours and Sunday 
between 10.00 to 22.30 hours. Sunday immediately before a Bank Holiday 12.00 to 
00.00 hours and New Year’s Eve to New Year’s Day. 
 

2. To provide Late Night Refreshment ‘Indoors’ and ‘Outdoors’ Monday to Thursday 
23.00 to 23.30 hours, Friday and Saturday 23.00 and 00.00 hours. Sunday 
immediately before a Bank Holiday 23.00 to 00.00 hours and New Year’s Eve to 
New Year’s Day. 

 

I wish to make the following representation 

 

1. The hours requested for the Supply of Alcohol will have the likely effect of causing 
an increase in Public Nuisance within the West End Cumulative Impact area. 
 

2. The hours requested to permit the provision of late night refreshment will have the 
likely effect of causing an increase in Public Nuisance and impact on Public Safety 
within the West End Cumulative Impact area. 

 

The applicant has provided additional information with the application which is being 
addressed. 

 
 

page 100



Responsible 
Authority: 

Metropolitan Police Service  (Withdrawn) 

Representative:  PC Sandy Russell 
 

Received:  
 

25th May 2017  

  
I am writing to inform you that the Metropolitan Police, as a responsible authority, will be 
objecting to this application. At this stage it is our belief that if granted the application 
would undermine the Licensing Objectives. 
  
The conditions submitted in the application are acceptable to police. We require the 
following further condition: 
  

 Patrons permitted to temporarily leave and then re-enter the premises, e.g. to 
smoke, shall not be permitted to take drinks or glass containers with them.  

  
 Should you client be willing to agree to the above condition being added to any future 
operating schedule we may be in a position to withdraw our representation. 
 
The applicant has agreed to the condition above and as a result the MET Police 
Service have WITHDRAWN their representation.  
 
 
 

2-B Other Persons 
 

Name: Mr Paul Goulding 

Address and/or Residents 
Association: 

Flat 2 
34A Henrietta Street 
London 
WC2E 8NA  

Received:  
 

11th June 2017  

The application relates to premises immediately adjoining our small residential block. 
We object to a licence to sell alcohol, or to have tables outside, after 1030pm. This is 
due to likely noise and disturbance late at night and its impact on the peaceful 
enjoyment of our home. 
 

 Name: Mrs Linda Campin 

Address and/or Residents 
Association: 

Flat 1  
34A Henrietta Street 
London 
WC2E 8NA  

Received:  
 

6th June 2017  

These premises were previously a sandwich shop /diner that was open until 5pm. It did 
not serve alcohol. 
 
Henrietta Street is a mixed residential and commercial street with a few restaurants. 

page 101



There has been an increase in the proportion of residential property in the street over 
the last few years. 
 
Covent garden is a busy area and already has a substantial number of licensed 
premises. We do not see the need to have another one. 
 
There was no pre-consultation with immediate neighbours as to the impact of the 
creation of a new licensed premises. 
 
In the proposed conditions of the applications it suggests that the premises are to be 
operated as a restaurant. The applications states alcohol will only be sold to those that 
are seated eating food, but it does not give any indication of the number of tables that 
will be provided or the number of people that will be allowed in the premises. 
 
The layout in the plan makes it look like a bar. 
 
This is a a very small site and it is very concerning that there may be a significant 
number of people in it. 
 
It also makes reference to tables outside. Currently there are no tables outsides these 
premises. 
 
We already have problems with people sitting on the steps outside our front door and 
people loitering around the entrance. The entrance to this site is very near to our front 
door and we would be concerned about any diners who come outside of the restaurant 
to smoke. If it in fact operates more like a bar there is likely to be substantial noise and 
disruption well into the night with these proposed late opening hours. 
 
This is a significant change in use from a much loved sandwich shop closing at 5pm to 
a restaurant /bar open after midnight. We strongly object to the application for a license 
to serve alcohol and the increased opening hours.  
 

  

3. Policy & Guidance 
 

The following policies within the City Of Westminster Statement of Licensing Policy 
apply: 
 

Policy HRS1 applies (i) Applications for hours within the core hours set out below in 
this policy will generally be granted, subject to not being 
contrary to other policies in the Statement of Licensing Policy. 

(ii) Applications for hours outside the core hours set out below 
in this policy will be considered on their merits, subject to other 
relevant policies. 

 

Policy RNT2 applies: 

 

Applications will be granted subject to other policies in this 
Statement and subject to the relevant criteria in Policies CD1, 
PS1, PN1 and CH1, provided it can be demonstrated that they 
will not add to cumulative impact in the Cumulative Impact 
Areas. 

page 102



Policy CIA1 applies: 

 

(i) It is the Licensing Authoritys policy to refuse applications in 
the Cumulative Impact Areas for: pubs and bars, fast food 
premises, and premises offering facilities for music and 
dancing; other than applications to vary hours within the Core 
Hours under Policy HRS1. 

(ii) Applications for other licensable activities in the Cumulative 
Impact Areas will be subject to other policies, and must 
demonstrate that they will not add to cumulative impact in the 
Cumulative Impact Areas. 
 

 
4. 

 
Appendices 
 

Appendix 1 
 

Premises plans 

Appendix 2 
 

Applicant supporting documents  

Appendix 3 
 

Premises history 
 

Appendix 4 
 

Proposed conditions 

Appendix 5 Residential map and list of premises in the vicinity 
 

 
Report author: Miss Heidi Lawrance 

Senior Licensing Officer 

Contact: Telephone: 020 7641 2751 
Email: hlawrance@westminster.gov.uk 
 

 
If you have any queries about this report or wish to inspect one of the 
background papers please contact the report author. 

 
Background Documents – Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1972 
 

1 Licensing Act 2003 N/A 
 

2 City of Westminster Statement of Licensing  
Policy  

7th January 2016 

3 Amended Guidance issued under section 182 of  
the Licensing Act 2003  

March 2015 

4 Application Form  22nd May 2017 

5 Representation – Licensing Authority           15th June 2017 

6 Representation – Environmental Health  16th June 2017 

7 Representation – MET Police (withdrawn) 25th May 2017 

7 Representation – Mr P Goulding  11th June 2017 

8 Representation – Ms L Campin  6th June 2017 

 
 

page 103



 
         Appendix 1 

Premises Plans 
 

 

page 104



     Appendix 2 
Applicant Supporting Documents 
 

Proposed Conditions 
32 Henrietta Street, London, WC2E 8NA 

 
1.  The premises shall only operate as a restaurant 

(i)  in which customers are shown to their table, 
(ii)  where the supply of alcohol is by waiter or waitress service only, 
(iii)  which provide food in the form of substantial table meals that are prepared 

on the premises and are served and consumed at the table using non 
disposable crockery or chopsticks, 

(iv)  which do not provide any take away service of food or drink for immediate 
consumption, 

(v)  where alcohol shall not be sold, supplied, or consumed on the premises 
otherwise than to persons who are seated in the premises and bona fide 
taking substantial table meals there and provided always that the 
consumption of alcohol by such persons is ancillary to taking such meals. 

 
Notwithstanding this condition customers are permitted to take from the premises 
part consumed and resealed bottles of wine supplied ancillary to their meal.  
 

2.  There shall be no sales of hot food or hot drink for consumption 'Off" the 
premises after 23.00 hours. 

 
3.  The maximum number of persons permitted in the premises at any one time 

(excluding staff) shall not exceed:- 
Ground Floor – 
 

4.  The premises shall install and maintain a comprehensive CCTV system as per 
the minimum requirements of the Westminster Police Licensing Team. All entry 
and exit points will be covered enabling frontal identification of every person 
entering in any light condition. The CCTV system shall continually record whilst 
the premises is open for licensable activities and during all times when 
customers remain on the premises. All recordings shall be stored for a minimum 
period of 31 days with date and time stamping. Viewing of recordings shall be 
made available immediately upon the request of Police or authorised officer 
throughout the preceding 31 day period. 

 
5.  A staff member from the premises who is conversant with the operation of the 

CCTV system shall be on the premises at all times when the premises are open. 
This staff member must be able to provide a Police or authorised council officer 
copies of recent CCTV images or data with the absolute minimum of delay when 
requested. 

 
6.  A Challenge 21 proof of age scheme shall be operated at the premises where 

the only acceptable forms of identification are recognised photographic 
identification cards, such as a driving licence, passport or proof of age card with 
the PASS Hologram. 

 
7.  Where the provision of food and/or drink includes delivery to the customer, the 

page 105



licence holder shall ensure that specific procedures are in place and that the 
activity does not cause nuisance at or near to the premises. 
 

8.  No noise shall emanate from the premises nor vibration be transmitted through 
the structure of the premises which gives rise to a nuisance. 

 
9.  Loudspeakers shall not be located in the entrance lobby or outside the premises 

building. 
 

10.  All windows and external doors shall be kept closed after 22:00 hours except for 
the immediate access and egress of persons. 

 
11.  All outside tables and chairs shall be rendered unusable by 22:00 each day. 
 
12.  There shall be no striptease or nudity, and all persons shall be decently attired at 

all times, except when the premises are operating under the authority of a Sexual 
Entertainment Venue licence.  
 

13.  No rubbish, including bottles, shall be removed or placed in an outside area 
between 23:00 hours to 07:00 hours, Monday to Friday, and 23:00 hours to 
08:00 hours, Saturday and Sunday. 

 
14.  All waste shall be properly presented and placed out for collection no earlier than 

30 minutes before collection time. 
 
15.  The means of escape provided for the premises shall be maintained 

unobstructed, free of trip hazards, be immediately available and clearly identified 
in accordance with the plans provided. 

 
16.  All emergency exit doors shall be available at all material times without the use of 

a key, code, card or similar means. 
 
17.  An incident log shall be kept at the premises, and made available on request to 

an authorised officer of the City Council or the Police, which will record the 
following: 
(a)  all crimes reported to the venue 
(b)  all ejections of patrons 
(c)  any complaints received concerning crime and disorder 
(d)  any incidents of disorder 
(e)  all seizures of drugs or offensive weapons 
(f)  any faults in the CCTV system, searching equipment or scanning 

equipment 
(g)  any refusal of the sale of alcohol 
(h)  any visit by a relevant authority or emergency service. 
 

18.  During the hours of operation of the premises, the licence holder shall ensure 
sufficient measures are in place to remove and prevent litter or waste arising or 
accumulating from customers in the area immediately outside the premises, and 
that this area shall be swept and or washed, and litter and sweepings collected 
and stored in accordance with the approved refuse storage arrangements by 
close of business. 
 

page 106



19.  The Licence will have no effect until the premises have been assessed as 
satisfactory by the Environmental Health Consultation Team and this condition 
has been removed from the Licence. 
 

20.  Before the premises open to the public, the plans as deposited will be checked 
by the Environmental Health Consultation T earn to ensure they are an accurate 
reflection of the premises constructed. Where the premises layout has changed 
during the course of construction new plans shall be provided to the 
Environmental Health Consultation Team and the Licensing Authority. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

page 107



 

 
 
 

page 108



 
 

page 109



 

page 110



 
 

page 111



 

page 112



 
 

page 113



 
 
 

page 114



 

page 115



 

page 116



 

page 117



 

page 118



 

page 119



 

page 120



 

page 121



 

page 122



 

page 123



 

page 124



 

page 125



 
 

page 126



 
 

page 127



 

page 128



 
 

page 129



 
 

page 130



 
 

page 131



 
 

page 132



 
 

page 133



 
 

page 134



page 135



        Appendix 3 
Premises History 

 
There is no licence or appeal history for the premises. 

page 136



Appendix 4 
 
CONDITIONS CONSISTENT WITH THE OPERATING SCHEDULE AND CONDITIONS 
PROPOSED BY A PARTY TO THE HEARING  
 
When determining an application for a new premises licence under the provisions of the 
Licensing Act 2003, the licensing authority must, unless it decides to reject the application, grant 
the licence subject to the conditions which are indicated as mandatory in this schedule. 
 
At a hearing the licensing authority may, in addition, and having regard to any representations 
received, grant the licence subject to such conditions which are consistent with the operating 
schedule submitted by the applicant as part of their application, or alter or omit these conditions, 
or add any new condition to such extent as the licensing authority considers necessary for the 
promotion of the licensing objectives. 
 
This schedule lists those conditions which are consistent with the operating schedule, or 
proposed as necessary for the promotion of the licensing objectives by a responsible authority 
or an interested party as indicated. These conditions have not been submitted by the licensing 
service but reflect the positions of the applicant, responsible authority or interested party and 
have not necessarily been agreed 
 
Mandatory Conditions 
 
1. No supply of alcohol may be made at a time when there is no designated premises 

supervisor in respect of this licence. 
 
2. No supply of alcohol may be made at a time when the designated premises supervisor 

does not hold a personal licence or the personal licence is suspended. 
 
3. Every supply of alcohol under this licence must be made or authorised by a person who 

holds a personal licence. 
 
4.          (1)  The responsible person must ensure that staff on relevant premises do not carry 

out, arrange or participate in any irresponsible promotions in relation to the 
premises. 

 
(2)  In this paragraph, an irresponsible promotion means any one or more of the 

following activities, or substantially similar activities, carried on for the purpose of 
encouraging the sale or supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises— 

 
(a)  games or other activities which require or encourage, or are designed to require 

or encourage, individuals to; 
 

(i)  drink a quantity of alcohol within a time limit (other than to drink alcohol 
sold or supplied on the premises before the cessation of the period in 
which the responsible person is authorised to sell or supply alcohol), or 

(ii)  drink as much alcohol as possible (whether within a time limit or 
otherwise); 

 
(b)  provision of unlimited or unspecified quantities of alcohol free or for a fixed or 

discounted fee to the public or to a group defined by a particular characteristic in 
a manner which carries a significant risk of undermining a licensing objective; 

 
(c)  provision of free or discounted alcohol or any other thing as a prize to encourage 

or reward the purchase and consumption of alcohol over a period of 24 hours or 
less in a manner which carries a significant risk of undermining a licensing 
objective; 

page 137



 
(d)  selling or supplying alcohol in association with promotional posters or flyers on, 

or in the vicinity of, the premises which can reasonably be considered to 
condone, encourage or glamorise anti-social behaviour or to refer to the effects 
of drunkenness in any favourable manner; 

 
 (e) dispensing alcohol directly by one person into the mouth of another (other than 

where that other person is unable to drink without assistance by reason of a 
disability). 

 
5.  The responsible person must ensure that free potable water is provided on request to 

customers where it is reasonably available. 
 
6.          (1)  The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder must ensure that 

an age verification policy is adopted in respect of the premises in relation to the 
sale or supply of alcohol. 

 
(2)  The designated premises supervisor in relation to the premises licence must 

ensure that the supply of alcohol at the premises is carried on in accordance with 
the age verification policy. 

 

(3) The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person to be 

under 18 years of age (or such older age as may be specified in the policy) to 

produce on request, before being served alcohol, identification bearing their 

photograph, date of birth and either— 

 (a)  a holographic mark, or 

 (b)  an ultraviolet feature. 

 
7.  The responsible person must ensure that— 

(a)  where any of the following alcoholic drinks is sold or supplied for consumption on 

the premises (other than alcoholic drinks sold or supplied having been made up 

in advance ready for sale or supply in a securely closed container) it is available 

to customers in the following measures— 

  (i)  beer or cider: ½ pint;  

(ii)  gin, rum, vodka or whisky: 25 ml or 35 ml; and 

   (iii)  still wine in a glass: 125 ml; 

 
(b)  these measures are displayed in a menu, price list or other printed material 

which is available to customers on the premises; and 
 
(c) where a customer does not in relation to a sale of alcohol specify the quantity of 

alcohol to be sold, the customer is made aware that these measures are 
available. 

 
A responsible person in relation to a licensed premises means the holder of the premise licence 
in respect of the premises, the designated premises supervisor (if any) or any individual aged 
18 or over who is authorised by either the licence holder or designated premises supervisor.  
For premises with a club premises certificate, any member or officer of the club present on the 
premises in a capacity that which enables him to prevent the supply of alcohol. 
 

page 138



8(i) A relevant person shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption on or 
off the premises for a price which is less than the permitted price. 

 
8(ii) For the purposes of the condition set out in paragraph 8(i) above - 
 

(a)  "duty" is to be construed in accordance with the Alcoholic Liquor Duties Act 
1979; 

 
(b)  "permitted price" is the price found by applying the formula - 

 
P = D+(DxV) 

 
Where - 

  
(i) P is the permitted price, 
(ii) D is the amount of duty chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the duty     

were charged on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol, and 
(iii) V is the rate of value added tax chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if 

the value added tax were charged on the date of the sale or supply of the 
alcohol; 

 
(c)  "relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in 

force a premises licence - 
   

(i)  the holder of the premises licence, 
(ii)  the designated premises supervisor (if any) in respect of such a licence, 

or 
(iii)  the personal licence holder who makes or authorises a supply of    

alcohol under such a licence; 
 

(d)   "relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in 
force a club premises certificate, any member or officer of the club present on the 
premises in a capacity which enables the member or officer to prevent the supply 
in question; and 

 
(e)  "value added tax" means value added tax charged in accordance with the Value 

Added Tax Act 1994. 
 
8(iii). Where the permitted price given by Paragraph 8(ii)(b) above would (apart from this 

paragraph) not be a whole number of pennies, the price given by that sub-paragraph 
shall be taken to be the price actually given by that sub-paragraph rounded up to the 
nearest penny. 

 
8(iv).     (1)  Sub-paragraph 8(iv)(2) below applies where the permitted price given by 

Paragraph 8(ii)(b) above on a day ("the first day") would be different from the 
permitted price on the next day ("the second day") as a result of a change to the 
rate of duty or value added tax. 

(2)  The permitted price which would apply on the first day applies to sales or 
supplies of alcohol which take place before the expiry of the period of 14 days 
beginning on the second day. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

page 139



Conditions consistent with the operating schedule 
 
9.  The premises shall only operate as a restaurant 

(i)  in which customers are shown to their table, 
(ii)  where the supply of alcohol is by waiter or waitress service only, 
(iii)  which provide food in the form of substantial table meals that are prepared 

on the premises and are served and consumed at the table using non 
disposable crockery or chopsticks, 

(iv)  which do not provide any take away service of food or drink for immediate 
consumption, 

(v)  where alcohol shall not be sold, supplied, or consumed on the premises 
otherwise than to persons who are seated in the premises and bona fide 
taking substantial table meals there and provided always that the 
consumption of alcohol by such persons is ancillary to taking such meals. 

 
Notwithstanding this condition customers are permitted to take from the premises 
part consumed and resealed bottles of wine supplied ancillary to their meal.  
 

10.  There shall be no sales of hot food or hot drink for consumption 'Off" the 
premises after 23.00 hours. 

 
11.  The maximum number of persons permitted in the premises at any one time 

(excluding staff) shall not exceed:- 
Ground Floor – 
 

12.  The premises shall install and maintain a comprehensive CCTV system as per 
the minimum requirements of the Westminster Police Licensing Team. All entry 
and exit points will be covered enabling frontal identification of every person 
entering in any light condition. The CCTV system shall continually record whilst 
the premises is open for licensable activities and during all times when 
customers remain on the premises. All recordings shall be stored for a minimum 
period of 31 days with date and time stamping. Viewing of recordings shall be 
made available immediately upon the request of Police or authorised officer 
throughout the preceding 31 day period. 

 
13.  A staff member from the premises who is conversant with the operation of the 

CCTV system shall be on the premises at all times when the premises are open. 
This staff member must be able to provide a Police or authorised council officer 
copies of recent CCTV images or data with the absolute minimum of delay when 
requested. 

 
14.  A Challenge 21 proof of age scheme shall be operated at the premises where 

the only acceptable forms of identification are recognised photographic 
identification cards, such as a driving licence, passport or proof of age card with 
the PASS Hologram. 

 
15.  Where the prov1s1on of food and/or drink includes delivery to the customer, the 

licence holder shall ensure that specific procedures are in place and that the 
activity does not cause nuisance at or near to the premises. 
 

16.  No noise shall emanate from the premises nor vibration be transmitted through 
the structure of the premises which gives rise to a nuisance. 

page 140



 
17.  Loudspeakers shall not be located in the entrance lobby or outside the premises 

building. 
 

18.  All windows and external doors shall be kept closed after 22:00 hours except for 
the immediate access and egress of persons. 

 
19.  All outside tables and chairs shall be rendered unusable by 22:00 each day. 
 
20  There shall be no striptease or nudity, and all persons shall be decently attired at 

all times, except when the premises are operating under the authority of a Sexual 
Entertainment Venue licence.  
 

21.  No rubbish, including bottles, shall be removed or placed in an outside area 
between 23:00 hours to 07:00 hours, Monday to Friday, and 23:00 hours to 
08:00 hours, Saturday and Sunday. 

 
22.  All waste shall be properly presented and placed out for collection no earlier than 

30 minutes before collection time. 
 
23.  The means of escape provided for the premises shall be maintained 

unobstructed, free of trip hazards, be immediately available and clearly identified 
in accordance with the plans provided. 

 
24.  All emergency exit doors shall be available at all material times without the use of 

a key, code, card or similar means. 
 
25.  An incident log shall be kept at the premises, and made available on request to 

an authorised officer of the City Council or the Police, which will record the 
following: 
(a)  all crimes reported to the venue 
(b)  all ejections of patrons 
(c)  any complaints received concerning crime and disorder 
(d)  any incidents of disorder 
(e)  all seizures of drugs or offensive weapons 
(f)  any faults in the CCTV system, searching equipment or scanning 

equipment 
(g)  any refusal of the sale of alcohol 
(h)  any visit by a relevant authority or emergency service. 
 

26.  During the hours of operation of the premises, the licence holder shall ensure 
sufficient measures are in place to remove and prevent litter or waste arising or 
accumulating from customers in the area immediately outside the premises, and 
that this area shall be swept and or washed, and litter and sweepings collected 
and stored in accordance with the approved refuse storage arrangements by 
close of business. 
 

27.  The Licence will have no effect until the premises have been assessed as 
satisfactory by the Environmental Health Consultation Team and this condition 
has been removed from the Licence. 
 

page 141



28.  Before the premises open to the public, the plans as deposited will be checked 
by the Environmental Health Consultation T earn to ensure they are an accurate 
reflection of the premises constructed. Where the premises layout has changed 
during the course of construction new plans shall be provided to the 
Environmental Health Consultation Team and the Licensing Authority. 

 
Conditions proposed by the Police (agreed by applicant)  
 
29. Patrons permitted to temporarily leave and then re-enter the premises, e.g. to 

smoke, shall not be permitted to take drinks or glass containers with them.  
 
 
 Conditions proposed by the Environmental Health 
 

page 142



 Appendix 5 
Residential Map and List of Premises in the Vicinity 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

page 143



This page is intentionally left blank



            

 City of Westminster 

 

 

 

 
Item No:   

 
   

Date:  13th July 2017  
   

Licensing Ref No:  17/04660/LIPV - Premises Licence Variation 
   

Title of Report:  Sketch 
9 Conduit Street 
London 
W1S 2XG 

   

Report of:  Director of Public Protection and Licensing 
   

Wards involved:  West End 
   

Policy context:  City of Westminster Statement of Licensing Policy  
 

   

Financial summary:  None 
   

Report Author:  Miss Heidi Lawrance 
Senior Licensing Officer 

   

Contact details  Telephone: 020 7641 2751 
Email: hlawrance@westminster.gov.uk 

 

 

Licensing Sub-Committee 
Report 

page 145

Agenda Item 5



 
1. Application 

 
1-A Applicant and premises 

 

Application Type: Variation of a Premises Licence, Licensing Act 2003 
 

Application received 
date: 

4 May 2017 

Applicant: Sacred River Limited 
 

Premises: Sketch 
 

Premises address: 9 Conduit Street 
London 
W1S 2XG 
 

Ward: 
 

West End  

Cumulative 
Impact Area: 

West End  

Premises description: 
 

The premises is currently appears to be operating as a 
restaurant and bar.  
 

Variation description: The applicant has applied to :  
 
1. Extend the terminal hour for the sale of alcohol to 01:00 
on Sundays - no change to Sundays before Bank 
holidays: 02:00.  
 
NB. No change to the permitted hours for regulated 
entertainment. 
 
and 
 
to tidy up the licence as follows :  
 
2. (a). Late Night Refreshment: delete Sundays before 
Bank Holidays to 02:00 (inconsistent with normal Sunday 
hours to 05:00). 
 
2. (b). To vary the conditions of the licence as set out 
below, to address the licensing objectives in connection 
with 1 above, and to tidy up the licence. 
 
The variation application is proposing a significant change 
to the conditions on the licence which will remove the 
requirements for the sale and consumption of alcohol be 
ancillary to some other activity.  
 
The variation will remove the requirement for alcohol to be 
ancillary to music and dancing and substantial 
refreshment on Monday to Saturday and for it to be 
ancillary to a table meal / provision of entertainment on a 
Sunday.  

page 146



Premises licence history: 
 

The premises has been licensed since September 2005. 
 
Please see premises licence 15/04058/LIPV attached at 
Appendix 6.  
 

Applicant submissions: Please see Appendix 2  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1-B Current and proposed licensable activities, areas and hours 
 

Regulated Entertainment 
 

Exhibition of films 
 

 Current  
Hours 

Proposed  
Hours 

Licensable Area 

Start: End: Start: End: Current: Proposed: 

Monday 00:00 00:00  
 
No Change.  

 
See Plan 
attached at 
Appendix 1 

 
 
No Change. 

Tuesday 00:00 00:00 

Wednesday 00:00 00:00 

Thursday 00:00 00:00 

Friday 00:00 00:00 

Saturday 00:00 00:00 

Sunday 00:00 00:00 

Seasonal  
Variations / 
Non-standard  
timings: 

Current: Proposed: 

 
For times authorised for 
Christmas, New Year and Good 
Friday see Appendix 4. 
 

 
See Appendix 4 

 

Performance of Dance, Live Music and anything of a similar description 
 

 Current  
Hours 

Proposed  
Hours 

Licensable Area 

Start: End: Start: End: Current: Proposed: 

Monday 09:00 02:00  
 
No Change. 

 
 
See Plan 
attached at 
Appendix 1 

 
 
No Change. 

Tuesday 09:00 02:00 

Wednesday 09:00 02:00 

Thursday 09:00 02:00 

Friday 09:00 02:00 

Saturday 09:00 02:00 

Sunday 09:00 23:00 

Seasonal Current: Proposed: 

page 147



variations/ 
Non-standard 
timings: 

 
Sundays before Bank Holidays : 
09:00 until 02:00  
 
For times authorised for 
Christmas, New Year and Good 
Friday see Appendix 4. 
 
 

 
See Appendix 4 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Late night refreshment 
 

 Current  
Hours 

Proposed  
Hours 

Licensable Area 

Start: End: Start: End: Current: Proposed: 

Monday 23:00 05:00  
 
No Change.  

 
 
See Plan 
attached at 
Appendix 1 

 
 
No Change. 

Tuesday 23:00 05:00 

Wednesday 23:00 05:00 

Thursday 23:00 05:00 

Friday 23:00 05:00 

Saturday 23:00 05:00 

Sunday 23:00 05:00 

Seasonal 
variations/ 
Non-standard 
timings: 

Current: Proposed: 

 
Sundays before Bank Holidays : 
09:00 until 02:00  
 
For times authorised for 
Christmas, New Year and Good 
Friday see Appendix 4. 
 
 

 
Removed Sundays before Bank 
Holidays 09:00 until 02:00. 
 
See Appendix 4 

 

Sale by Retail of Alcohol 
 

On or off sales Current : Proposed: 

Both  No Change  

 Current  
Hours 

Proposed  
Hours 

Licensable Area 

Start: End: Start: End: Current: Proposed: 

Monday 10:00 02:00  
 
No change.  

 
 
See Plan 
attached at 
Appendix 1 

 
 
No Change. 

Tuesday 10:00 02:00 

Wednesday 10:00 02:00 

Thursday 10:00 02:00 

Friday 10:00 02:00 

Saturday 10:00 02:00 

page 148



Sunday 12:00 00:30 12:00 01:00 

Seasonal 
variations/ 
Non-standard 
timings: 

Current: Proposed: 

 
Sundays before Bank Holidays : 
09:00 until 02:00  
 
For times authorised for 
Christmas, New Year and Good 
Friday see Appendix 4. 
 
 

 
See Appendix 4 

 
 
 
 

Hours premises are open to the public 
 

 Current  
Hours 

Proposed  
Hours 

Premises Area 

Start: End: Start: End: Current: Proposed: 

Monday 00:00 00:00  
 
No Change.  

 
 
See Plan 
attached at 
Appendix 1 

 
 
No Change. 

Tuesday 00:00 00:00 

Wednesday 00:00 00:00 

Thursday 00:00 00:00 

Friday 00:00 00:00 

Saturday 00:00 00:00 

Sunday 00:00 00:00 

Seasonal 
variations/ 
Non-standard 
timings: 

Current: Proposed: 

 
None.  

 
No Change.  

 

1-C Layout alteration 
 

 
No changes applied for.  

 

1-D Conditions being varied, added or removed 
 

Condition Proposed variation 

 
Condition 11 
 
This licence is subject to all the former 
Rules of Management for Places of Public 
Entertainment licensed by Westminster 
City Council, in force from 4 September 
1998 and incorporating amendments 
agreed by the Council on 25 October 
1999, 30 June 2000, 16 January 2001 and 

 
To be deleted  
 

page 149



1 October 2001. 
 

Condition 12  
 
On New Year's Eve the premises can 
remain open for the purpose of providing 
regulated entertainment from the time 
when the provision of regulated 
entertainment must otherwise cease on 
New Year's Eve to the time when 
regulated entertainment can commence on 
New Year's Day (or until midnight on New 
Year's Eve where no regulated 
entertainment takes place on New Year's 
Day). 

To be deleted and replaced with model 
Condition 38 
 
The premises may remain open for the 
sale of alcohol, regulated entertainment, 
and the provision of late night refreshment 
from the terminal hour for those activities 
on New Year's Eve through to the 
commencement time for those activities on 
New Year's Day 
 

Condition 13 
 
Notwithstanding the provisions of Rule of 
Management No.6 the premises may 
remain open for the purposes of this 
licence from 11pm on each of the days 
Monday to Saturday to 2am on the day 
following. 
 

To be deleted  
 

Condition 14  
 
The entertainment to be provided under 
this licence shall be limited to "World 
music", cabaret and dancing by patrons. 
 

To be deleted  
 

Condition 15  
 
The entertainment to be provided under 
this licence shall remain purely ancillary to 
the main / lawful planning use of the 
premises (i.e. Class A3 - food and drink) 
 

To be deleted  
 

Condition 16 
 
 
The music systems shall be fitted with 
sound limiting devices to be set, sealed 
and maintained at a level to the 
satisfaction of the Council's Environmental 
Health Officer. 

To be deleted and replaced with Model 
Condition 11  
 
A noise limiter must be fitted to the musical 
amplification system set at a level 
determined by and to the satisfaction of an 
authorised officer of the Environmental 
Health Service, so as to ensure that no 
noise nuisance is caused to local residents 
or businesses. The operational panel of 
the noise limiter shall then be secured by 
key or password to the satisfaction of 
officers from the Environmental Health 
Service and access shall only be by 
persons authorised by the Premises 

page 150



Licence holder. The limiter shall not be 
altered without prior agreement with the 
Environmental Health Service. No 
alteration or modification to any existing 
sound system(s) should be effected 
without prior knowledge of an authorised 
Officer of the Environmental Health 
Service. No additional sound generating 
equipment shall be used on the premises 
without being routed through the sound 
limiter device. 
 

Condition 17 
 
The pavement outside sketch will be 
washed down daily. 

To be deleted and replaced with Model 
Condition 42:  
 
During the hours of operation of the 
premises, the licence holder shall ensure 
sufficient measures are in place to remove 
and prevent litter or waste arising or 
accumulating from customers in the area 
immediately outside the premises, and that 
this area shall be swept and or washed, 
and litter and sweepings collected and 
stored in accordance with the approved 
refuse storage arrangements by close of 
business. 
 

Condition 18  
 
The number of persons accommodated 
(excluding staff) at the premises shall not 
exceed: 
Ground Floor - 300 
First Floor - 150. 

To be amended:  
 
The number of persons accommodated 
(excluding staff) at the premises shall not 
exceed:  
Ground Floor – 300  
First Floor – 150.  
After 0030 hours on Sunday in the area 
hatched green: 120 
 

Condition 20 (i) (a) 
 
(i) Monday to Saturday 
 
(a) Subject to the following paragraphs, 
the permitted hours on weekdays shall 
commence at 10.00 (12.00 on Christmas 
Day and Good Friday) and extend until 
02.00 on the morning following, except 
that - 
  
(i) the permitted hours shall end at 00.00 
midnight on any day on which music and 
dancing is not provided after midnight; and 
  

To be deleted  
 
 
 

page 151



(ii) on any day that music and dancing end 
between 00.00 midnight and 02.00, the 
permitted hours shall end when the music 
and dancing end; 
 
 
 

Condition 20 (i) (b)  
 
(i) Monday to Saturday 

 
(b) In relation to the morning on which 
summer time begins, paragraph (a) of this 
condition shall have effect-  
 
(i) with the substitution of references to 
03.00 for references to 02.00. 

To be deleted and replaced with Model 
Condition 84 
 
On the morning that Greenwich Mean 
Time changes to British Summer Time one 
hour will be added to the terminal hour of 
any activities and to the closing time for 
the premises where the existing terminal 
hour for the activities and/or closing hour 
for the premises ends after 01.00. 
 

Condition 20 (i) (c) and (d) 
 
(c) The sale of alcohol must be ancillary to 
the use of the premises for music and 
dancing and substantial refreshment. 
 
(d) The permitted hours on New Year's 
Eve will extend to the start of permitted 
hours on the following day, or if there are 
no permitted hours on 1 January, to 00.00 
on New Year's Eve. 
 

To be deleted  
 

Condition 20 (ii) and (iii)   
 
(ii) Sunday 
 
Alcohol shall not be sold, supplied, 
consumed in or taken from the premises 
except during permitted hours. 
 
In this condition, permitted hours means: 
 
(a)On Sundays, other than Christmas Day 
or New Year's Eve, 12.00 noon to 22.30; 
 
(b)On Christmas Day, 12.00 to 15.00 and 
19.00 to 22.30; 
 
(c)On New Year's Eve on a Sunday, 12.00 
to 22.30; 
 
(d)On New Year's Eve from the end of 
permitted hours on New Year's Eve to the 
start of permitted hours on the following 

To be deleted 
 

page 152



day (or, if there are no permitted hours on 
the following day, 00.00 midnight on 31st 
December). 
 
(ii) Alcohol may be sold or supplied for one 
hour following the hours set out above 
(other than Christmas Day and New Year's 
Eve), and on Christmas Day, between 
15.00 and 19.00, to persons taking table 
meals in the premises in a part of the 
premises usually set apart for the service 
of such persons and for consumption by 
such a person in that part of the premises 
as an ancillary to his meal. For other 
purposes or in other parts of the premises 
the hours set out above shall continue to 
apply. 
 
(iii)  
(a) Alcohol may be sold or supplied until 
00.30 a.m. in the morning following 
Sundays (other than Christmas Day) and 
00.30 in the morning following Good 
Friday to persons taking table meals in the 
premises in a part of the premises usually 
set apart for the service of such persons 
and for consumption by that person in that 
part of the premises as an ancillary to his 
meal. 
 
(b) That part of the premises must also be 
used for the provision of entertainment by 
persons present and performing to which 
the sale or supply of alcohol is also 
ancillary. 
 
(c) The alcohol must be sold or supplied at 
a time before  
(i) the provision of entertainment by 
persons present and performing or  
(ii) the provision of substantial 
refreshment, has ended. For other 
purposes or in other parts of the premises 
the hours set out above shall continue to 
apply.  
 
(d) This condition does not authorise any 
sale or supply to any person admitted to 
the premises either after 23.00 on Sunday 
or less than half an hour before the 
entertainment is due to end, except in 
accordance with condition number 20(ii) 

page 153



above. 
 
NOTE - The above restrictions do not 
prohibit: 
 
(a) during the first thirty minutes after  the 
above hours the consumption of the 
alcohol on the premises; 
 
(b) during the first twenty  minutes after the 
above hours, the taking of the alcohol from 
the premises unless the alcohol is supplied 
or taken in an open vessel; 
 
(c) during the first thirty minutes on a 
Sunday after the above hours the 
consumption of the alcohol on the 
premises by persons taking table meals 
there if the alcohol was supplied for 
consumption as ancillary to the meals;  
  
(d) the sale or supply of alcohol to or the 
consumption of alcohol by any person 
residing in the licensed premises; 
 
(e) the ordering of alcohol to be consumed 
off the premises, or the despatch by the 
vendor of the alcohol so ordered; 
 
(f) the sale of alcohol to a trader or 
registered club for the purposes of the 
trade or club; 
 
(g) the sale or supply of alcohol to any 
canteen or mess, being a canteen in which 
the sale or supply of alcohol is carried out 
under the authority of the Secretary of 
State or an authorised mess of members 
of her Majesty's naval, military or air 
forces; 
 
(h) the taking of alcohol from the premises 
by a person residing there; 
 
(i) the supply of alcohol for consumption 
on the premises to any private friends of a 
person residing there who are bona fide 
entertained by him at his own expense, or 
the consumption of alcohol by persons so 
supplied; 
 
(j) the supply of alcohol for consumption 

page 154



on the premises to persons employed 
there for the purposes of the business 
carried on by the holder of the licence, or 
the consumption of liquor so supplied, if 
the liquor is supplied at the expense of 
their employer or of the person carrying on 
or in charge of the business on the 
premises. 
 
In this condition, any reference to a person 
residing in the premises shall be construed 
as including a person not residing there 
but carrying on or in charge of the 
business on the premises. 
 

Condition 21 
 
No person under fourteen shall be in the 
bar of the licensed premises during the 
permitted hours unless one of the following 
applies: 
 
(a) He is the child of the holder of the 
premises licence. 
 
(b) He resides in the premises, but is not 
employed there. 
 
(c) He is in the bar solely for the purpose 
of passing to or from some part of the 
premises which is not a bar and to or from 
which there is no other convenient means 
of access or egress. 
 
(d) The bar is in railway refreshment 
rooms or other premises constructed, fitted 
and intended to be used bona fide for any 
purpose to which the holding of the licence 
is ancillary. 
 
In this condition "bar" includes any place 
exclusively or mainly used for the 
consumption of intoxicating liquor. But an 
area is not a bar when it is usual for it to 
be, and it is, set apart for the service of 
table meals and alcohol is only sold or 
supplied to persons as an ancillary to their 
table meals. 
 

To be deleted  

Condition 22 
 
If any entertainment is provided for 

To be deleted  

page 155



children or if an entertainment is provided 
at which the majority of persons attending 
are children, then, if the number of children 
attending the entertainment exceeds 100, 
it shall be the duty of the holder of the 
premises licence (or the holder of the club 
premises certificate): 
 
(a) to station and keep stationed wherever 
necessary a sufficient number of adult 
attendants, properly instructed as to their 
duties, to prevent more children or other 
persons being admitted to the building, or 
to any part thereof, than the building or 
part can properly accommodate; 
 
(b) to control the movement of the children 
and other persons admitted while entering 
and leaving the building or any part 
thereof; and 
 
(c) to take all other reasonable precautions 
for the safety of the children. 
 

Condition 23  
 
This licence (or certificate) will be subject 
to any restrictions imposed on the use of 
the premises by any of the provisions 
contained in the former Cinematograph 
(Safety) Regulations 1955 as amended by 
the Cinematograph (Safety) Regulations 
1958, the Cinematograph (Safety) 
Regulations 1965, the Cinematograph 
(Safety) (Amendment) Regulations 1976, 
the Cinematograph (Safety) (Amendment) 
Regulations 1982 and the Cinematograph 
(Safety) (Amendment) Regulations 2002. 
 

To be deleted  

Condition 24 
 
The premises shall install and maintain a 
comprehensive CCTV system. All entry 
points will be covered enabling frontal 
identification of every person entering in 
any light condition. The CCTV system 
shall continually record whilst the premises 
is open for licensable activities and during 
all times when customers remain on the 
premises. All recordings shall be stored for 
a minimum period of 31 days with date 
and time stamping. Viewing of recordings 

To be deleted and replaced with Model 
Condition 01  
 
The premises shall install and maintain a 
comprehensive CCTV system as per the 
minimum requirements of the Westminster 
Police Licensing Team. All entry and exit 
points will be covered enabling frontal 
identification of every person entering in 
any light condition. The CCTV system 
shall continually record whilst the premises 
is open for licensable activities and during 
all times when customers remain on the 

page 156



shall be made available immediately upon 
the request of Police or authorised officer 
throughout the preceding 31 day period. 

premises. All recordings shall be stored for 
a minimum period of 31 days with date 
and time stamping. Viewing of recordings 
shall be made available immediately upon 
the request of Police or authorised officer 
throughout the entire 31 day period. 
 
 

Condition 25 
 
A staff member from the premises who is 
conversant with the operation of the CCTV 
system shall be on the premises at all 
times when the premises is open. This 
staff member must be able to provide 
Police or authorised Council Officer copies 
of recent CCTV images or data with the 
absolute minimum of delay when 
requested. 

To be deleted and replaced with Model 
Condition 02  
 
A staff member from the premises who is 
conversant with the operation of the CCTV 
system shall be on the premises at all 
times when the premises is open. This 
staff member must be able to provide a 
Police or authorised council officer copies 
of recent CCTV images or data with the 
absolute minimum of delay when 
requested. 
 
 

Condition 29  
 
All patrons shall have left the premises no 
later than 45 minutes after the permitted 
terminal hour for the sale of alcohol. 

To be amended:  
 
All patrons shall have left the premises no 
later than 30 minutes after licensable 
activities have ended. 
 

 Condition to be added:  
 
The following apply to the area hatched 
green on the plan:  
 
There shall be no entry or re-entry save for 
smokers to the area hatched green on the 
plan after 23:00 hours on Sundays. 
 

 Condition to be added:  
 
The following apply to the area hatched 
green on the plan:  
 
After 23:00 hours on Sundays the supply 
of alcohol in the area hatched green on the 
plan shall only be to a person seated 
taking a table meal there and for 
consumption by such a person as ancillary 
to their meal. 
 

Adult entertainment: Current position: Proposed position: 

Not applicable.  No Change.  

 

page 157



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2. Representations 
 

2-A Responsible Authorities 
 

Responsible 
Authority: 

Metropolitan Police Service  

Representative:  PC Toby Janes  
 

Received:  
 

30th May 2017 

  
I am writing to inform you that the Metropolitan Police, as a Responsible Authority, 
make a representation against the above application. 
 
 It is our belief that if granted the application would undermine the licensing objectives in 
relation to the prevention of crime and 
disorder. 
  
The conditions already attached to the licence do address some of our concerns. 
However the venue is situated in the West End cumulative impact area, a locality where 
there is traditionally high crime and disorder. The hours sought are well beyond core 
hours as set out in the Westminster Policy and we have concerns that this application 
may cause further policing problems in an already demanding area. 

 

 

Responsible 
Authority: 

Licensing Authority  

Representative: Mr David Sycamore 
 

Received: 
 

1st June 2017  

 
I write in relation to the application submitted to vary an existing Premises Licence for 
the above premises.  
 
 As a responsible authority under section 13 (4) of the Licensing Act 2003 as amended 
under the Police and Social Responsibility Act 2011 the Licensing Authority have 
considered your application in full. The Licensing Authority has concerns in relation to 
this application and how the premises would promote the Licensing Objectives:  
 

page 158



 •           Public Nuisance  
 
 •           Prevention of Crime & Disorder  
 
 •           Public Safety  
 
 The application is currently seeking hours which will go beyond the Core Hours Policy 
and is located in the already busy West End Cumulative Impact areas as defined by 
Westminster Statement of Licensing Policy 2016. The applicant seeks to increase the 
hours permitted for the sale of alcohol on Sundays, in an area defined on the plans 
submitted. HRS1,PB2 and CIP1 are our key policy concerns.  
 
This is a large capacity venue and we are concerned that a relaxation of the old 
conditions could lead this undermining the licensing objectives. There is an area 
marked on the plans which has green shading, this a large area that would appear to 
have a large capacity. The additional 30 minutes will mean that there will be an increase 
in people leaving the premises and contributing to the cumulative impact.  
 
 We would like to see information as to why the premises should be considered an 
exemption to policy.  
 
 Please accept this as email as formal representation.  
 

Responsible 
Authority: 

Environmental Health Consultation Team   

Representative: Mr David Nevitt  
 

Received: 
 

1st June 2017  

 
I wish to make Representations on the following grounds: 
 
Representation is made in relation to the application, as the proposals are likely to 
increase Public Nuisance and may impact upon Public Safety. 
 

 
3. Policy & Guidance 

 
The following policies within the City Of Westminster Statement of Licensing Policy 
apply: 
 

Policy CIA1applies (i)It is the Licensing Authoritys policy to refuse applications in 
the Cumulative Impact Areas for: pubs and bars, fast food 
premises, and premises offering facilities for music and 
dancing; other than applications to vary hours within the Core 
Hours under Policy HRS1. 

(ii) Applications for other licensable activities in the Cumulative 
Impact Areas will be subject to other policies, and must 
demonstrate that they will not add to cumulative impact in the 

page 159



Cumulative Impact Areas. 

 

Policy HRS1 applies: 
 

 (i) Applications for hours within the core hours set out below in 
this policy will generally be granted, subject to not being 
contrary to other policies in the Statement of Licensing Policy. 
(ii) Applications for hours outside the core hours set out below 
in this policy will be considered on their merits, subject to other 
relevant policies. 
 

Policy PB2 applies: 

 

It is the Licensing Authority’s policy to refuse applications in 
the Cumulative Impact Areas other than applications to vary 
hours within the Core Hours under Policy HRS1. 

4. Appendices 
 

Appendix 1 
 

Premises plans 

Appendix 2 
 

Applicant supporting documents  

Appendix 3 
 

Premises history 
 

Appendix 4 
 

Proposed conditions 

Appendix 5 Residential map and list of premises in the vicinity 
 

Appendix 6 Current Premises Licence 15/04058/LIPV 
 

 
Report author: Miss Heidi Lawrance 

Senior Licensing Officer 

Contact: Telephone: 020 7641 2751 
Email: hlawrance@westminster.gov.uk 
 

 
If you have any queries about this report or wish to inspect one of the 
background papers please contact the report author. 

 
Background Documents – Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1972 
 

1 Licensing Act 2003 N/A 
 

2 City of Westminster Statement of Licensing  
Policy  

7th January 2016 

3 Amended Guidance issued under section 182 of  
the Licensing Act 2003  

March 2015 

4 Application Form  4th May 2017  

5 Representation – MET Police            30th May 2017 

6 Representation – Licensing Authority  1st June 2017 

7 Representation – Environmental Health  1st June 2017  

 

page 160



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

         Appendix 1 
Premises Plans 
 

page 161



 
 

page 162



  
 

page 163



  

page 164



 

page 165



 

page 166



     Appendix 2 
Applicant Supporting Documents 

 

 

page 167



 
 

page 168



 

page 169



Appendix 3 
 

Licence & Appeal History  
 

 
 

Application 

 

 

Details of 

Application 

 

Date Determined 

 

Decision 

06/06449/WCCMAP New Premises 

Application 

10.09.2005 Granted Under 

Delegated Authority 

13/10123/LIPVM Minor Variation 

Application 

08.01.2014 Granted Under 

Delegated Authority 

14/01125/LIPVM Minor Variation 

Application 

25.02.2014 Granted Under 

Delegated Authority 

15/04058/LIPV Variation Application 28.06.2015 Granted Under 

Delegated Authority 

 

 

Application 

 

 

Details of 

Application 

 

Date Determined 

 

Decision 

14/07966/LITENP Temporary Event 

Notice 

29.12.2014 Notice Granted 

14/08692/LITENP Temporary Event 
Notice 

24.10.2014 Notice Granted 

17/04698/LITENP Temporary Event 
Notice 

24.05.2017 Notice Granted 

 
There is no appeal history 

page 170



Appendix 4 
 

CONDITIONS CONSISTENT WITH THE OPERATING SCHEDULE AND CONDITIONS 
PROPOSED BY A PARTY TO THE HEARING  
 
 
When determining an application to Vary a Premises Licence under the provisions of the 
Licensing Act 2003, the licensing authority must, unless it decides to reject the application, grant 
the licence subject to the conditions which are indicated as mandatory in this schedule. 
 
At a hearing the licensing authority may, in addition, and having regard to any representations 
received, grant the licence subject to such conditions which are consistent with the operating 
schedule submitted by the applicant as part of their application, or alter or omit these conditions, 
or add any new condition to such extent as the licensing authority considers appropriate for the 
promotion of the licensing objectives. 
 
This schedule lists those conditions which are consistent with the operating schedule, or 
proposed as appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives by a responsible authority 
or an interested party as indicated. These conditions have not been submitted by the licensing 
service but reflect the positions of the applicant, responsible authority or interested party and 
have not necessarily been agreed 
 
Conditions: On Current Licence -  
 
Mandatory: 
 

1. No supply of alcohol may be made at a time when there is no designated 
premises supervisor in respect of this licence. 

 
2. No supply of alcohol may be made at a time when the designated premises 

supervisor does not hold a personal licence or the personal licence is 
suspended. 

 
3. Every supply of alcohol under this licence must be made or authorised by a 

person who holds a personal licence. 
 
4.          (1)  The responsible person must ensure that staff on relevant premises do 

not carry out, arrange or participate in any irresponsible promotions in 
relation to the premises. 

 
(2)  In this paragraph, an irresponsible promotion means any one or more of 

the following activities, or substantially similar activities, carried on for the 
purpose of encouraging the sale or supply of alcohol for consumption on 
the premises— 

 
(a)  games or other activities which require or encourage, or are designed to 

require or encourage, individuals to; 
 

(i)  drink a quantity of alcohol within a time limit (other than to drink 
alcohol sold or supplied on the premises before the cessation of the 
period in which the responsible person is authorised to sell or 
supply alcohol), or 

(ii)  drink as much alcohol as possible (whether within a time limit or 
otherwise); 

page 171



 
(b)  provision of unlimited or unspecified quantities of alcohol free or for a fixed 

or discounted fee to the public or to a group defined by a particular 
characteristic in a manner which carries a significant risk of undermining a 
licensing objective; 

 
(c)  provision of free or discounted alcohol or any other thing as a prize to 

encourage or reward the purchase and consumption of alcohol over a 
period of 24 hours or less in a manner which carries a significant risk of 
undermining a licensing objective; 

 
(d)  selling or supplying alcohol in association with promotional posters or 

flyers on, or in the vicinity of, the premises which can reasonably be 
considered to condone, encourage or glamorise anti-social behaviour or to 
refer to the effects of drunkenness in any favourable manner; 

 
 (e) dispensing alcohol directly by one person into the mouth of another (other 

than where that other person is unable to drink without assistance by 
reason of a disability). 

 
5.  The responsible person must ensure that free potable water is provided on 

request to customers where it is reasonably available. 
 
6.          (1)  The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder must 

ensure that an age verification policy is adopted in respect of the premises 
in relation to the sale or supply of alcohol. 

 
(2)  The designated premises supervisor in relation to the premises licence 

must ensure that the supply of alcohol at the premises is carried on in 
accordance with the age verification policy. 

 

(3) The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person 

to be under 18 years of age (or such older age as may be specified in the 

policy) to produce on request, before being served alcohol, identification 

bearing their photograph, date of birth and either— 

 (a)  a holographic mark, or 

 (b)  an ultraviolet feature. 

 
7.  The responsible person must ensure that— 

(a)  where any of the following alcoholic drinks is sold or supplied for 

consumption on the premises (other than alcoholic drinks sold or supplied 

having been made up in advance ready for sale or supply in a securely 

closed container) it is available to customers in the following measures— 

  (i)  beer or cider: ½ pint;  

(ii)  gin, rum, vodka or whisky: 25 ml or 35 ml; and 

   (iii)  still wine in a glass: 125 ml; 

page 172



 
(b)  these measures are displayed in a menu, price list or other printed 

material which is available to customers on the premises; and 
 
(c) where a customer does not in relation to a sale of alcohol specify the 

quantity of alcohol to be sold, the customer is made aware that these 
measures are available. 

 
A responsible person in relation to a licensed premises means the holder of the premise 
licence in respect of the premises, the designated premises supervisor (if any) or any 
individual aged 18 or over who is authorised by either the licence holder or designated 
premises supervisor.  For premises with a club premises certificate, any member or 
officer of the club present on the premises in a capacity that which enables him to 
prevent the supply of alcohol. 
 
8(i) A relevant person shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption 

on or off the premises for a price which is less than the permitted price. 
 
8(ii) For the purposes of the condition set out in paragraph 8(i) above - 
 

(a)  "duty" is to be construed in accordance with the Alcoholic Liquor Duties 
Act 1979; 

 
(b)  "permitted price" is the price found by applying the formula - 

 
P = D+(DxV) 

 
Where - 

  
(i) P is the permitted price, 
(ii) D is the amount of duty chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if 

the duty     were charged on the date of the sale or supply of the 
alcohol, and 

(iii) V is the rate of value added tax chargeable in relation to the alcohol 
as if the value added tax were charged on the date of the sale or 
supply of the alcohol; 

 
(c)  "relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there 

is in force a premises licence - 
   

(i)  the holder of the premises licence, 
(ii)  the designated premises supervisor (if any) in respect of such a 

licence, or 
(iii)  the personal licence holder who makes or authorises a supply of    

alcohol under such a licence; 
 

(d)   "relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there 
is in force a club premises certificate, any member or officer of the club 
present on the premises in a capacity which enables the member or 
officer to prevent the supply in question; and 

 

page 173



(e)  "value added tax" means value added tax charged in accordance with the 
Value Added Tax Act 1994. 

 
8(iii). Where the permitted price given by Paragraph 8(ii)(b) above would (apart from 

this paragraph) not be a whole number of pennies, the price given by that sub-
paragraph shall be taken to be the price actually given by that sub-paragraph 
rounded up to the nearest penny. 

 
8(iv).     (1)  Sub-paragraph 8(iv)(2) below applies where the permitted price given by 

Paragraph 8(ii)(b) above on a day ("the first day") would be different from 
the permitted price on the next day ("the second day") as a result of a 
change to the rate of duty or value added tax. 

(2)  The permitted price which would apply on the first day applies to sales or 
supplies of alcohol which take place before the expiry of the period of 14 
days beginning on the second day. 

 
9.  Admission of children to the premises must be restricted in accordance with the 

film classification recommended by the British Board of Film Classification or 
recommended by this licensing authority as appropriate. 

 
10.   All persons guarding premises against unauthorised access or occupation or 

against outbreaks of disorder or against damage (door supervisors) must be 
licensed by the Security Industry Authority. 

 
Conditions reproducing the effect of conditions subject to which the relevant 
existing licences have effect 
 
Conditions relating to regulated entertainment - Music, Dancing and 
Entertainment of a Like Kind 
 
Condition 11 to be deleted as proposed by the applicant   
 
11.  This licence is subject to all the former Rules of Management for Places of Public 

Entertainment licensed by Westminster City Council, in force from 4 September 
1998 and incorporating amendments agreed by the Council on 25 October 1999, 
30 June 2000, 16 January 2001 and 1 October 2001. 

 
Condition 12 to be deleted and replaced with model condition 83 as proposed by 
the applicant 
 
12.  On New Year's Eve the premises can remain open for the purpose of providing 

regulated entertainment from the time when the provision of regulated 
entertainment must otherwise cease on New Year's Eve to the time when 
regulated entertainment can commence on New Year's Day (or until midnight on 
New Year's Eve where no regulated entertainment takes place on New Year's 
Day). 

 
12. The premises may remain open for the sale of alcohol, regulated 

entertainment, and the provision of late night refreshment from the 
terminal hour for those activities on New Year's Eve through to the 
commencement time for those activities on New Year's Day 

 

page 174



Condition 13 to be deleted as proposed by the applicant   
 
13.  Notwithstanding the provisions of Rule of Management No.6 the premises may 

remain open for the purposes of this licence from 11pm on each of the days 
Monday to Saturday to 2am on the day following. 

 
Condition 14 to be deleted as proposed by the applicant   
 
14.  The entertainment to be provided under this licence shall be limited to "World 

music", cabaret and dancing by patrons. 
 
Condition 15 to be deleted as proposed by the applicant   
 
15.  The entertainment to be provided under this licence shall remain purely ancillary 

to the main / lawful planning use of the premises (i.e. Class A3 - food and drink) 
 
Condition 16 to be deleted and replaced with model condition 11 as proposed by 
the applicant 
 
16.  The music systems shall be fitted with sound limiting devices to be set, sealed 

and maintained at a level to the satisfaction of the Council's Environmental 
Health Officer. 

 
16. A noise limiter must be fitted to the musical amplification system set at a 

level determined by and to the satisfaction of an authorised officer of the 
Environmental Health Service, so as to ensure that no noise nuisance is 
caused to local residents or businesses. The operational panel of the noise 
limiter shall then be secured by key or password to the satisfaction of 
officers from the Environmental Health Service and access shall only be by 
persons authorised by the Premises Licence holder. The limiter shall not 
be altered without prior agreement with the Environmental Health Service. 
No alteration or modification to any existing sound system(s) should be 
effected without prior knowledge of an authorised Officer of the 
Environmental Health Service. No additional sound generating equipment 
shall be used on the premises without being routed through the sound 
limiter device. 

 
Condition 17 to be deleted and replaced with model condition 42 as proposed by 
the applicant 
 
17.  The pavement outside sketch will be washed down daily. 
 
17. During the hours of operation of the premises, the licence holder shall 

ensure sufficient measures are in place to remove and prevent litter or 
waste arising or accumulating from customers in the area immediately 
outside the premises, and that this area shall be swept and or washed, and 
litter and sweepings collected and stored in accordance with the approved 
refuse storage arrangements by close of business. 

 
 
 
 

page 175



Condition 18 to be amended as proposed by the applicant  
 
18.  The number of persons accommodated (excluding staff) at the premises shall not 

exceed: 
       Ground Floor - 300 
       First Floor - 150. 
 
18. The number of persons accommodated (excluding staff) at the premises 

shall not exceed:  
Ground Floor – 300  
First Floor – 150.  
After 0030 hours on Sunday in the area hatched green: 120 

 
19.  The exhibition of a film is restricted to films not involving the use of real film (e.g. 

video) where exhibition are incidental or subsidiary to the main use of the 
premises. 

  
Conditions which reproduce the effect of any restriction imposed on the use of 
the premises by specified enactments 
 
Conditions related to the Sale of Alcohol 
 
Condition 20 (i) (a) to be deleted as proposed by the applicant  
 
20. (i) Monday to Saturday 
 
(a)  Subject to the following paragraphs, the permitted hours on weekdays shall 

commence at 10.00 (12.00 on Christmas Day and Good Friday) and extend until 
02.00 on the morning following, except that - 

  
(i)  the permitted hours shall end at 00.00 midnight on any day on which 

music and dancing is not provided after midnight; and  
(ii)  on any day that music and dancing end between 00.00 midnight and 

02.00, the permitted hours shall end when the music and dancing end; 
 
Condition 20 (i) (b) to be deleted and replaced by model condition 84 as proposed 
by the applicant  
 
(b)  In relation to the morning on which summer time begins, paragraph (a) of this 

condition shall have effect-  
 

(i)  with the substitution of references to 03.00 for references to 02.00. 
 
On the morning that Greenwich Mean Time changes to British Summer Time one 
hour will be added to the terminal hour of any activities and to the closing time 
for the premises where the existing terminal hour for the activities and/or closing 
hour for the premises ends after 01.00. 
 
 
 
 
 

page 176



Condition 20 (i) (c) to be deleted as proposed by the applicant  
 
(c)  The sale of alcohol must be ancillary to the use of the premises for music and 

dancing and substantial refreshment. 
 
Condition 20 (i) (d) to be deleted as proposed by the applicant  
 
(d)  The permitted hours on New Year's Eve will extend to the start of permitted 

hours on the following day, or if there are no permitted hours on 1 January, to 
00.00 on New Year's Eve. 

 
Condition 20 (ii) & (iii) to be deleted as proposed by the applicant  
 
(ii) Sunday 
 
Alcohol shall not be sold, supplied, consumed in or taken from the premises except 
during permitted hours. 
 
In this condition, permitted hours means: 
 

(a) On Sundays, other than Christmas Day or New Year's Eve, 12.00 noon to 22.30; 
(b) On Christmas Day, 12.00 to 15.00 and 19.00 to 22.30; 
(c) On New Year's Eve on a Sunday, 12.00 to 22.30; 
(d) On New Year's Eve from the end of permitted hours on New Year's Eve to the 

start of permitted hours on the following day (or, if there are no permitted hours 
on the following day, 00.00 midnight on 31st December). 

 
(ii)  Alcohol may be sold or supplied for one hour following the hours set out above 

(other than Christmas Day and New Year's Eve), and on Christmas Day, between 
15.00 and 19.00, to persons taking table meals in the premises in a part of the 
premises usually set apart for the service of such persons and for consumption by 
such a person in that part of the premises as an ancillary to his meal. For other 
purposes or in other parts of the premises the hours set out above shall continue to 
apply. 

 
(iii) (a) Alcohol may be sold or supplied until 00.30 a.m. in the morning following 

Sundays (other than Christmas Day) and 00.30 in the morning following Good 
Friday to persons taking table meals in the premises in a part of the premises 
usually set apart for the service of such persons and for consumption by that person 
in that part of the premises as an ancillary to his meal. 

 
(b)  That part of the premises must also be used for the provision of entertainment by 

persons present and performing to which the sale or supply of alcohol is also 
ancillary. 

 
(c)  The alcohol must be sold or supplied at a time before (i) the provision of 

entertainment by persons present and performing or (ii) the provision of substantial 
refreshment, has ended. For other purposes or in other parts of the premises the 
hours set out above shall continue to apply.  

 
(d)  This condition does not authorise any sale or supply to any person admitted to 

the premises either after 23.00 on Sunday or less than half an hour before the 

page 177



entertainment is due to end, except in accordance with condition number 20(ii) 
above. 

 
NOTE - The above restrictions do not prohibit: 
 
(a) during the first thirty minutes after  the above hours the consumption of the alcohol 

on the premises; 
(b) during the first twenty  minutes after the above hours, the taking of the alcohol from 

the premises unless the alcohol is supplied or taken in an open vessel; 
(c) during the first thirty minutes on a Sunday after the above hours the consumption of 

the alcohol on the premises by persons taking table meals there if the alcohol was 
supplied for consumption as ancillary to the meals;   

(d) the sale or supply of alcohol to or the consumption of alcohol by any person residing 
in the licensed premises; 

(e) the ordering of alcohol to be consumed off the premises, or the despatch by the 
vendor of the alcohol so ordered; 

(f) the sale of alcohol to a trader or registered club for the purposes of the trade or club; 
(g) the sale or supply of alcohol to any canteen or mess, being a canteen in which the 

sale or supply of alcohol is carried out under the authority of the Secretary of State 
or an authorised mess of members of her Majesty's naval, military or air forces; 

(h) the taking of alcohol from the premises by a person residing there; 
(i) the supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises to any private friends of a 

person residing there who are bona fide entertained by him at his own expense, or 
the consumption of alcohol by persons so supplied; 

(j) the supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises to persons employed there 
for the purposes of the business carried on by the holder of the licence, or the 
consumption of liquor so supplied, if the liquor is supplied at the expense of their 
employer or of the person carrying on or in charge of the business on the premises. 

 
In this condition, any reference to a person residing in the premises shall be 
construed as including a person not residing there but carrying on or in charge of the 
business on the premises.  

 
Condition 21 to be deleted as proposed by the applicant  
 
21.  No person under fourteen shall be in the bar of the licensed premises during the 

permitted hours unless one of the following applies: 
 

(a) He is the child of the holder of the premises licence. 
(b) He resides in the premises, but is not employed there. 
(c) He is in the bar solely for the purpose of passing to or from some part of the 

premises which is not a bar and to or from which there is no other convenient 
means of access or egress. 

(d) The bar is in railway refreshment rooms or other premises constructed, fitted 
and intended to be used bona fide for any purpose to which the holding of the 
licence is ancillary. 

 
In this condition "bar" includes any place exclusively or mainly used for the 
consumption of intoxicating liquor. But an area is not a bar when it is usual for it 
to be, and it is, set apart for the service of table meals and alcohol is only sold or 
supplied to persons as an ancillary to their table meals.  

 

page 178



 
Condition 22 to be deleted as proposed by the applicant  
 
22.  If any entertainment is provided for children or if an entertainment is provided at 

which the majority of persons attending are children, then, if the number of 
children attending the entertainment exceeds 100, it shall be the duty of the 
holder of the premises licence (or the holder of the club premises certificate): 

 
(a) to station and keep stationed wherever necessary a sufficient number of adult 

attendants, properly instructed as to their duties, to prevent more children or 
other persons being admitted to the building, or to any part thereof, than the 
building or part can properly accommodate; 

(b) to control the movement of the children and other persons admitted while 
entering and leaving the building or any part thereof; and 

(c) to take all other reasonable precautions for the safety of the children.  
 
Condition 23 to be deleted as proposed by the applicant  
 
23. This licence (or certificate) will be subject to any restrictions imposed on the use 

of the premises by any of the provisions contained in the former Cinematograph 
(Safety) Regulations 1955 as amended by the Cinematograph (Safety) 
Regulations 1958, the Cinematograph (Safety) Regulations 1965, the 
Cinematograph (Safety) (Amendment) Regulations 1976, the Cinematograph 
(Safety) (Amendment) Regulations 1982 and the Cinematograph (Safety) 
(Amendment) Regulations 2002. 

page 179



Annex 2 – Conditions consistent with the operating Schedule 
 
Condition 24 to be deleted and replaced with model condition 1 as proposed by 
the applicant 
 
24. The premises shall install and maintain a comprehensive CCTV system. All entry 

points will be covered enabling frontal identification of every person entering in 
any light condition. The CCTV system shall continually record whilst the 
premises is open for licensable activities and during all times when customers 
remain on the premises. All recordings shall be stored for a minimum period of 
31 days with date and time stamping. Viewing of recordings shall be made 
available immediately upon the request of Police or authorised officer throughout 
the preceding 31 day period. 

 
24. The premises shall install and maintain a comprehensive CCTV system as 

per the minimum requirements of the Westminster Police Licensing Team. 
All entry and exit points will be covered enabling frontal identification of 
every person entering in any light condition. The CCTV system shall 
continually record whilst the premises is open for licensable activities and 
during all times when customers remain on the premises. All recordings 
shall be stored for a minimum period of 31 days with date and time 
stamping. Viewing of recordings shall be made available immediately upon 
the request of Police or authorised officer throughout the entire 31 day 
period. 

 
Condition 25 to be deleted and replaced with model condition 2 as proposed by 
the applicant 
 
25. A staff member from the premises who is conversant with the operation of the 

CCTV system shall be on the premises at all times when the premises is open. 
This staff member must be able to provide Police or authorised Council Officer 
copies of recent CCTV images or data with the absolute minimum of delay when 
requested. 

 
25. A staff member from the premises who is conversant with the operation of 

the CCTV system shall be on the premises at all times when the premises 
is open. This staff member must be able to provide a Police or authorised 
council officer copies of recent CCTV images or data with the absolute 
minimum of delay when requested. 

 
26. At least one door supervisor licensed by the Security Industry Authority shall be 

on duty at the entrance of the premises after 21:00 hours. 
 
27. An incident log shall be kept at the premises and made available on request to 

an authorised office of the City Council or the Police, which will record the 
following: 

 
(a) all crimes reported to the venue; 
(b) all ejections of patrons; 
(c) any complaints received concerning crime and disorder; 
(d) any incidents of disorder; 
(e) all seizures of drugs or offensive weapons; 

page 180



(f)  any faults in the CCTV system or searching equipment or scanning 
equipment; 
(g)  any refusal of the sale of alcohol; 
(h) any visit by a relevant authority or emergency service. 

 
28. A daily Door Supervisor Log shall be maintained at the premises and signed at 

the end of each day by the Duty Manager.  Details will include:  
 

(i)  the printed name of the door supervisor 
(ii)  their badge number 
(iii)  expiry date of their SIA Licence and  
(iv)  their signature 

 
Condition 29 to be amended as proposed by the applicant  
 
29. All patrons shall have left the premises no later than 45 minutes after the 

permitted terminal hour for the sale of alcohol. 
 
29. All patrons shall have left the premises no later than 30 minutes after 

licensable activities have ended 
 
30. A personal licence holder shall be on duty at the premises after 21:00 hours. 

 
Additional conditions proposed by the applicant 
 
The following apply to the area hatched green on the plan  
 
31.  There shall be no entry or re-entry save for smokers to the area hatched green 

on the plan after 23:00 hours on Sundays.  
 
32.  After 23:00 hours on Sundays the supply of alcohol in the area hatched green on 

the plan shall only be to a person seated taking a table meal there and for 
consumption by such a person as ancillary to their meal.  

page 181



 Appendix 5 
Residential Map and List of Premises in the Vicinity 
 

 
 
Resident Count: 31  
 
 
 
 
 

page 182



Appendix 6 
Premises Licence – 15/04058/LIPV 
 

 
 

page 183



 
 

page 184



 
 
 
 
 
 

page 185



 
 
 
 
 
 

page 186



 
 
 
 
 
 

page 187



 
 
 
 
 
 

page 188



 
 
 

page 189



 
 

page 190



 
 

page 191



 
 
 

page 192



 

page 193



 

page 194



 
 

page 195



 
 

page 196



            

 City of Westminster 

 

 

 

 
Item No:   

 
   

Date:  13 July 2017 
   

Licensing Ref No:  17/05581/LIPN - New Premises Licence 
   

Title of Report:  Restaurant  
Ground Floor 
Strand Palace Hotel 
372 Strand 
London 
WC2R 0JJ 

   

Report of:  Director of Public Protection and Licensing 
   

Wards involved:  St James's 
   

Policy context:  City of Westminster Statement of Licensing Policy  
 

   

Financial summary:  None 
   

Report Author:  Miss Heidi Lawrance 
Senior Licensing Officer 

   

Contact details  Telephone: 020 7641 2751 
Email: hlawrance@westminster.gov.uk 

 

 

Licensing Sub-Committee 
Report 

page 197

Agenda Item 6



 
1. Application 

 
1-A Applicant and premises 

 

Application Type: New Premises Licence, Licensing Act 2003 
 

Application received 
date: 

23 May 2017 

Applicant: Finlaw 652 Limited 
 

Premises: Restaurant  
 

Premises address: Ground Floor  
Strand Palace Hotel 
372 Strand 
London 
WC2R 0JJ 
 

Ward: 
 

St James’s  

Cumulative 
Impact Area: 

West End.   

Premises description: 
 

The premises intends to operate as a restaurant  

Premises licence history: 
 

This is an application for a new premises licence.  
 
The premises does currently have the benefit of a 
premises licence (16/04629/LIPVM) and a copy of this 
can be found at Appendix 6.  
 
This application is being made in conjunction with a new 
premises application for a restaurant situated on the 
ground floor of 372 Strand (17/05624/LIPN).  
 

Applicant submissions: See Appendix 2 
 

 

1-B Proposed licensable activities and hours 
 

Late Night Refreshment: Indoors, outdoors or both Both  
 

Day: Mon Tues Wed Thur Fri Sat Sun 
 

Start: 23:00 23:00 23:00 23:00 23:00 23:00 23:00 

End: 00:30 00:30 00:30 00:30 00:30 00:30 00:00 

Seasonal variations/ Non-
standard timings: 

Sunday before a Bank Holiday 23:00 until 00:30 hours. 

 

Recorded Music: Indoors, outdoors or both Indoors  
 

Day: Mon Tues Wed Thur Fri Sat Sun 
 

Start: 09:00 09:00 09:00 09:00 09:00 09:00 09:00 

End: 00:30 00:30 00:30 00:30 00:30 00:30 00:00 

page 198



Seasonal variations/ Non-
standard timings: 

Bank Holiday Sunday 09:00 until 00:30 hours.  
 
From the end of permitted hours on New Year’s Eve to 
the start of the permitted hours on New Year’s Day.  
 

 

Sale by retail of alcohol On or off sales or both: 
 

Both 

Day: Mon Tues Wed Thur Fri Sat Sun 
 

Start: 10:00 10:00 10:00 10:00 10:00 10:00 10:00 

End: 00:00 00:00 00:00 00:00 00:00 00:00 23:30 

Seasonal variations/ Non-
standard timings: 

Sunday before a Bank Holiday 10:00 hours to 00:00 
hours. 
 
From the end of permitted hours on New Year's Eve to 
the start of the permitted hours on New Year's Day. 
 

 

Hours premises are open to the public 
 

Day: Mon Tues Wed Thur Fri Sat Sun 
 

Start: 09:00 09:00 09:00 09:00 09:00 09:00 09:00 

End: 00:30 00:30 00:30 00:30 00:30 00:30 00:00 

Seasonal variations/ Non-
standard timings: 

Sunday before a Bank Holiday 09:00 hours to 00:30 
hours. 
 
From the end of permitted hours on New Year's Eve to 
the start of the permitted hours on New Year's Day. 
 

Adult Entertainment:  Not applicable.  
 

 

2. Representations 
 

2-A Responsible Authorities 
 

Responsible 
Authority: 

Licensing Authority  

Representative:  Mr David Sycamore  
 

Received:  
 

15th June 2017  
 

  
As a responsible authority under section 13 (4) of the Licensing Act 2003 as amended 
under the Police and Social Responsibility Act 2011 the Licensing Authority have 
considered your application in full. The Licensing Authority has concerns in relation to 
this application and how the premises would promote the Licensing Objectives:  
  
 

page 199



•           Public Nuisance  
 
 •           Prevention of Crime & Disorder  
 
 •           Public Safety  
 
The premises is located in the West End Cumulative Impact Area as defined by the 
Westminster Statement of Licensing Policy and as such the applicants must show how 
they will not add to cumulative impact. The capacity is for 150 people and whilst we 
accept MC 66 goes some way to address our concerns, it is still a large number of 
additional people in the CIA.  
 
The hours sought (HRS1) go beyond the core hours as defined in the policy and no 
reason or rational is given as to why they should have additional hours granted.  
 
We would expect to see the hours brought in line with core hours, for licensable 
activities and when the public are permitted to be on the premises.  
 
Please accept this as a formal representation to the application 
 
 

Responsible 
Authority: 

Environmental Health Consultation Team  

Representative: Mr Ian Watson  
 

Received: 
 

19th June 2017  

 
The premises are located within the West End Cumulative Impact Area as stated 
in the City of Westminster’s Statement of Licensing Policy. 

 
The applicant has submitted floor plans of the premises dated March 2017. 

 

This representation is based on the plans and operating schedule submitted. 

 

The applicant is seeking the following 

 

1. To provide for the Supply of Alcohol ‘On’ and ‘Off’ the premises Monday to Saturday 
between 10.00 and 00.00 hours and Sunday between 10.00 to 23.30 hours. Bank 
Holiday Sunday 10.00 to 00.00 hours. 
 

2. To provide Late Night Refreshment ‘Indoors’ and ‘Outdoors’ Monday to Saturday 
between 23.00 and 00.30 hours and Sunday between 23.00 to 00.00 hours. Bank 
Holiday Sunday 23.00 to 00.30 hours. 

 

3. To provide regulated entertainment ‘indoors’ comprising 

 Recorded Music 
Monday to Saturday between 09.00 and 00.30 hours and Sunday between 09.00 to 
00.00 hours. Bank Holiday Sunday 09.00 to 00.30 hours. 

page 200



 
4. On New Year’s Eve to provide regulated entertainment, late night refreshment and 

Supply of Alcohol from the end of authorised hours to commencement of authorised 
hours on New Year’s Day. 

 

I wish to make the following representation 

1. The hours requested for the Supply of Alcohol will have the likely effect of causing 
an increase in Public Nuisance within the West End Cumulative Impact Area. 
 

2. The hours requested to permit the provision of late night refreshment will have the 
likely effect of causing an increase in Public Nuisance and impact on Public Safety 
within the West End Cumulative Impact Area. 

 

3. The hours requested to permit the provision of regulated entertainment will have the 
likely effect of causing an increase in Public Nuisance within the West End 
Cumulative Impact Area. 

 

4. The hours requested to permit regulated entertainment, late night refreshment and 
supply of alcohol on New Year’s Eve will have the likely effect of causing an 
increase in Public Nuisance within the West End Cumulative Impact Area. 

 

The applicant has provided additional information with the application which is being 
addressed. 

 

3. Policy & Guidance 
 

The following policies within the City Of Westminster Statement of Licensing Policy 
apply: 
 

Policy HRS1 applies (i) Applications for hours within the core hours set out below in 
this policy will generally be granted, subject to not being 
contrary to other policies in the Statement of Licensing Policy. 

(ii) Applications for hours outside the core hours set out below 
in this policy will be considered on their merits, subject to other 
relevant policies. 

 

Policy HOT1 applies: 

 

Subject to the effect on the promotion of the licensing 
objectives and other relevant policies in this Statement, 
premises licences for hotels will generally be granted so that:  

(a) Alcohol is permitted to be sold at any time to people staying 
in hotel rooms for consumption on the premises. 

(b) The hours of serving of alcohol to the general public will be 
subject to conditions limiting the sale of alcohol after a 
specified time to those attending pre-booked events held at the 
hotel, 

page 201



(c) The exhibition of film, in the form of recordings or non-
broadcast television programmes to be viewed in hotel 
bedrooms, will generally be permitted. 

 

Policy CIA1 applies: 

 

(i)It is the Licensing Authoritys policy to refuse applications in 
the Cumulative Impact Areas for: pubs and bars, fast food 
premises, and premises offering facilities for music and 
dancing; other than applications to vary hours within the Core 
Hours under Policy HRS1. 

(ii)Applications for other licensable activities in the Cumulative 
Impact Areas will be subject to other policies, and must 
demonstrate that they will not add to cumulative impact in the 
Cumulative Impact Areas. 

 

Policy RNT2 applies: 

 

Applications will be granted subject to other policies in this 
Statement and subject to the relevant criteria in Policies CD1, 
PS1, PN1 and CH1, provided it can be demonstrated that they 
will not add to cumulative impact in the Cumulative Impact 
Areas. 

 

 
4. Appendices 

 
Appendix 1 
 

Premises plans 

Appendix 2 
 

Applicant supporting documents  

Appendix 3 
 

Premises history 
 

Appendix 4 
 

Proposed conditions 

Appendix 5 Residential map and list of premises in the vicinity 
 

Appendix 6 Premises Licence – 16/04629/LIPVM 
 

 
Report author: Miss Heidi Lawrance 

Senior Licensing Officer 

Contact: Telephone: 020 7641 2751 
Email: hlawrance@westminster.gov.uk 
 

 
 
 
 
 

page 202



If you have any queries about this report or wish to inspect one of the 
background papers please contact the report author. 

 
Background Documents – Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1972 
 

1 Licensing Act 2003 N/A 
 

2 City of Westminster Statement of Licensing  
Policy  

7th January 2016 

3 Amended Guidance issued under section 182 of  
the Licensing Act 2003  

March 2015 

4 Application form  23rd May 2017  

5 Representation – Licensing Authority            15th June 2017 

6 Representation – Environmental Health  19th June 2017 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

page 203



        Appendix 1 
Premises Plans 
 

 

page 204



      Appendix 2 
Applicant Supporting Documents 

 
Proposed Conditions 

 
Restaurant, Ground Floor The Strand Palace Hotel, 372 Strand, London, WC2R 

OJJ 
 

1.  The premises shall only operate as a restaurant 
(i)  in which customers are shown to their table, 
(ii)  where the supply of alcohol is by waiter or waitress service only, 
(iii)  which provide food in the form of substantial table meals that are prepared 

on the premises and are served and consumed at the table using non 
disposable crockery or chopsticks, 

(iv)  which do not provide any take away service of food or drink for immediate 
consumption, 

(v)  where alcohol shall not be sold, supplied, or consumed on the premises 
otherwise than to persons who are seated in the premises and bona fide 
taking substantial table meals there and provided always that the 
consumption of alcohol by such persons is ancillary to taking such meals. 

(vi)  Notwithstanding this condition customers are permitted to take from the 
premises part consumed and resealed bottles of wine supplied ancillary to 
their meal. 
 

2.  Substantial food and non-intoxicating beverages, including drinking water, shall 
be available in all parts of the premises where alcohol is sold or supplied for 
consumption on the premises.  
 

3.  The number of persons accommodated at any one time, (excluding staff) shall 
not exceed: 

 
Restaurant - 150 persons. 
 

4.  There shall be no sales of hot food or hot drink for consumption off the premises 
after 23.00 hours. 

 
5.  There shall be no sales of alcohol for consumption off the premises after 23 .00 

hours  
 
6.  A Challenge 21 proof of age scheme shall be operated at the premises where 

the only acceptable forms of identification are recognised photographic 
identification cards, such as a driving licence, passport or proof of age card with 
the PASS Hologram. 

 
7.  Patrons permitted to temporarily leave and then re-enter the premises, e.g. to 

smoke, shall not be permitted to take drinks or glass containers with them. 
 
8.  There shall be no striptease or nudity, and all persons shall be decently attired at 

all times, except when the premises are operating under the authority of a Sexual 
Entertainment Venue licence.  
 

page 205



9.  No noise generated on the premises, or by its associated plant or equipment, 
shall emanate from the premises nor vibration be transmitted through the 
structure of the premises which gives rise to a nuisance. 

 
10.  All sales of alcohol for consumption 'Off' the premises shall be in sealed 

containers only, and shall not be consumed on the premises. 
 
11 .  The premises shall install and maintain a comprehensive CCTV system as per 

the minimum requirements of the Westminster Police Licensing Team. All entry 
and exit points will be covered enabling frontal identification of every person 
entering in any light condition. The CCTV system shall continually record whilst 
the premises is open for licensable activities and during all times when 
customers remain on the premises. All recordings shall be stored for a minimum 
period of 31 days with date and time stamping. Viewing of recordings shall be 
made available immediately upon the request of Police or authorised officer 
throughout the entire 31 day period.  

 
12.  A staff member from the premises who is conversant with the operation of the 

CCTV system shall be on the premises at all times when the premises are open. 
This staff member must be able to provide a Police or authorised council officer 
copies of recent CCTV images or data with the absolute minimum of delay when 
requested.  

 
13.  An incident log shall be kept at the premises, and made available on request to 

an authorised officer of the City Council or the Police, which will record the 
following: 
(a)  all crimes reported to the venue 
(b)  all ejections of patrons 
(c)  any complaints received concerning crime and disorder 
(d)  any incidents of disorder 
(e)  all seizures of drugs or offensive weapons 
(f)  any faults in the CCTV system or searching equipment or scanning 

equipment 
(g)  any refusal of the sale of alcohol 
(h)  any visit by a relevant authority or emergency service. 
 

14.  The approved arrangements at the premises, including means of escape 
provisions, emergency warning equipment, the electrical installation and 
mechanical equipment, shall at all material times be maintained in good condition 
and full working order. 

 
15.  The means of escape provided for the premises shall be maintained 

unobstructed, free of trip hazards, be immediately available and clearly identified 
in accordance with the plans provided. 

 
16.  All emergency exit doors shall be available at all material times without the use of 

a key, code, card or similar means. 
 
17.  All emergency doors shall be maintained effectively self-closing and not held 

open other than by an approved device. 
 
18.  The edges of the treads of steps and stairways shall be maintained so as to be 

page 206



conspicuous.  
 

19.  Curtains and hangings shall be arranged so as not to obstruct emergency safety 
signs or emergency equipment.  
 

20.  During the hours of operation of the premises, the licence holder shall ensure 
sufficient measures are in place to remove and prevent litter or waste arising or 
accumulating from customers in the area immediately outside the premises, and 
that this area shall be swept and or washed, and litter and sweepings collected 
and stored in accordance with the approved refuse storage arrangements by 
close of business. 
 

21.  Notices shall be prominently displayed at all exits requesting patrons to respect 
the needs of local residents and businesses and leave the area quietly. 

 
22.  Flashing or particularly bright lights on or outside the premises shall not cause a 

nuisance to nearby properties, save insofar as they are necessary for the 
prevention of crime. 
 

23.  No waste or recyclable materials, including bottles, shall be moved, removed 
from or placed in outside areas between 23.00 hours and 08.00 hours on the 
following day. 

 
24.  No licensable activities shall take place at the premises until the premises have 

been assessed as satisfactory by the Environmental Health Consultation Team 
at which time this condition shall be removed from the Licence by the Licensing 
Authority. 

 
25.  Before the premises open to the public, the plans as deposited will be checked 

by the Environmental Health Consultation Team to ensure they are an accurate 
reflection of the premises constructed. Where the premises layout has changed 
during the course of construction new plans shall be provided to the 
Environmental Health Consultation Team and the Licensing Authority. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

page 207



 

 
 
 
 

page 208



 

 
 
 
 
 

page 209



 
 

page 210



page 211



 

page 212



 
 

page 213



 
 

page 214



 

page 215



 

page 216



 

page 217



 

page 218



 

page 219



 
 

page 220



 
 
 
 
 

page 221



 

 
 
 
 

page 222



 

 
 
 

page 223



 
 
 
 
 
 

page 224



 
 
 
 
 
 

page 225



 

 
 

page 226



 
 
 

page 227



 
 

page 228



 
 

page 229



 
 

page 230



 
 

page 231



 
 
 
 
 

page 232



 

 
 
 
 

page 233



 
 

page 234



page 235



       Appendix 3 
Licence & Appeal History - 16/04629/LIPVM  
 

 

 
Application 
 

 
Details of 
Application 

 
Date Determined 

 
Decision 

 
05/09587/LIPC 

 
Application for a new 
premises  

 
28th September 
2005 

 
Granted under 
Delegated Authority  
 

 
11/02147/LIPCH 

 
Change of details  

 
16th March 2011   

 
Granted under 
Delegated Authority  
 

 
13/01699/LIPVM 

 
Application for a 
Minor Variation:  
 
To vary the plans 
attached to the 
existing premises 
licence so as to 
incorporate changes 
to bedroom 
configuration, on first 
floor to add bedroom 
numbered 166 to 
169, and on second 
floor add bedrooms 
numbered 203 and 
204.  
 
There are no 
changes to existing 
licensable activities 
and/or timings 
 
 

 
25th March 2013 

 
Granted under 
Delegated Authority  
 

 
14/04086/LIPVM 

 
Application for a 
Minor Variation: 
 
To approve minor 
internal 
refurbishment works 
to the Nook Bar at 
the Strand Palace 
hotel (formerly 
known as the Strand 
Palace Bar, then the 
Hops Bar).  

 
13th June 2014 

 
Application refused.  

page 236



 
14/05310/LIPV 

 
Application to Vary 
the Premises 
Licence:  
 
To approve minor 
internal 
refurbishment works 
to the ground floor of 
the hotel.  
 
To remove 
Conditions 9, 11, 14, 
15, 16 and 17 and,  
replace with  new  
conditions proposed 
by the applicant. 
 

 
14th August 2014  

 
Granted under 
Delegated Authority  

 
15/08402/LIPV 

 
Application to Vary 
the Premises 
Licence:  
 
To vary the start time 
for the sale of alcohol 
on Sundays to 10.00, 
to allow flexibility to 
offer pre-lunch 
drinks and to bring 
the start time into line 
with the rest of the 
week. There will be 
no change to the 
times for any other 
licensable activity 
and there will be no 
proposed change to 
the existing licence 
conditions. 
 

 
4th November 2015 

 
Granted under 
Delegated Authority 

 
16/04629/LIPVM 

 
Application for a 
Minor Variation: 
 
to approve minor 
internal 
refurbishment works 
to the coffee shop at 
the Strand Palace 
hotel 
 

 
6th June 2016 

 
Granted under 
Delegated Authority 
 

There is no appeal history 

page 237



Appendix 4 
 
CONDITIONS CONSISTENT WITH THE OPERATING SCHEDULE AND CONDITIONS 
PROPOSED BY A PARTY TO THE HEARING  
 
When determining an application for a new premises licence under the provisions of the 
Licensing Act 2003, the licensing authority must, unless it decides to reject the application, grant 
the licence subject to the conditions which are indicated as mandatory in this schedule. 
 
At a hearing the licensing authority may, in addition, and having regard to any representations 
received, grant the licence subject to such conditions which are consistent with the operating 
schedule submitted by the applicant as part of their application, or alter or omit these conditions, 
or add any new condition to such extent as the licensing authority considers necessary for the 
promotion of the licensing objectives. 
 
This schedule lists those conditions which are consistent with the operating schedule, or 
proposed as necessary for the promotion of the licensing objectives by a responsible authority 
or an interested party as indicated. These conditions have not been submitted by the licensing 
service but reflect the positions of the applicant, responsible authority or interested party and 
have not necessarily been agreed 
 
Mandatory Conditions 
 
1. No supply of alcohol may be made at a time when there is no designated premises 

supervisor in respect of this licence. 
 
2. No supply of alcohol may be made at a time when the designated premises supervisor 

does not hold a personal licence or the personal licence is suspended. 
 
3. Every supply of alcohol under this licence must be made or authorised by a person who 

holds a personal licence. 
 
4.          (1)  The responsible person must ensure that staff on relevant premises do not carry 

out, arrange or participate in any irresponsible promotions in relation to the 
premises. 

 
(2)  In this paragraph, an irresponsible promotion means any one or more of the 

following activities, or substantially similar activities, carried on for the purpose of 
encouraging the sale or supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises— 

 
(a)  games or other activities which require or encourage, or are designed to require 

or encourage, individuals to; 
 

(i)  drink a quantity of alcohol within a time limit (other than to drink alcohol 
sold or supplied on the premises before the cessation of the period in 
which the responsible person is authorised to sell or supply alcohol), or 

(ii)  drink as much alcohol as possible (whether within a time limit or 
otherwise); 

 
(b)  provision of unlimited or unspecified quantities of alcohol free or for a fixed or 

discounted fee to the public or to a group defined by a particular characteristic in 
a manner which carries a significant risk of undermining a licensing objective; 

 
(c)  provision of free or discounted alcohol or any other thing as a prize to encourage 

or reward the purchase and consumption of alcohol over a period of 24 hours or 
less in a manner which carries a significant risk of undermining a licensing 
objective; 

page 238



 
(d)  selling or supplying alcohol in association with promotional posters or flyers on, 

or in the vicinity of, the premises which can reasonably be considered to 
condone, encourage or glamorise anti-social behaviour or to refer to the effects 
of drunkenness in any favourable manner; 

 
 (e) dispensing alcohol directly by one person into the mouth of another (other than 

where that other person is unable to drink without assistance by reason of a 
disability). 

 
5.  The responsible person must ensure that free potable water is provided on request to 

customers where it is reasonably available. 
 
6.          (1)  The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder must ensure that 

an age verification policy is adopted in respect of the premises in relation to the 
sale or supply of alcohol. 

 
(2)  The designated premises supervisor in relation to the premises licence must 

ensure that the supply of alcohol at the premises is carried on in accordance with 
the age verification policy. 

 

(3) The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person to be 

under 18 years of age (or such older age as may be specified in the policy) to 

produce on request, before being served alcohol, identification bearing their 

photograph, date of birth and either— 

 (a)  a holographic mark, or 

 (b)  an ultraviolet feature. 

 
7.  The responsible person must ensure that— 

(a)  where any of the following alcoholic drinks is sold or supplied for consumption on 

the premises (other than alcoholic drinks sold or supplied having been made up 

in advance ready for sale or supply in a securely closed container) it is available 

to customers in the following measures— 

  (i)  beer or cider: ½ pint;  

(ii)  gin, rum, vodka or whisky: 25 ml or 35 ml; and 

   (iii)  still wine in a glass: 125 ml; 

 
(b)  these measures are displayed in a menu, price list or other printed material 

which is available to customers on the premises; and 
 
(c) where a customer does not in relation to a sale of alcohol specify the quantity of 

alcohol to be sold, the customer is made aware that these measures are 
available. 

 
A responsible person in relation to a licensed premises means the holder of the premise licence 
in respect of the premises, the designated premises supervisor (if any) or any individual aged 
18 or over who is authorised by either the licence holder or designated premises supervisor.  
For premises with a club premises certificate, any member or officer of the club present on the 
premises in a capacity that which enables him to prevent the supply of alcohol. 
 

page 239



8(i) A relevant person shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption on or 
off the premises for a price which is less than the permitted price. 

 
8(ii) For the purposes of the condition set out in paragraph 8(i) above - 
 

(a)  "duty" is to be construed in accordance with the Alcoholic Liquor Duties Act 
1979; 

 
(b)  "permitted price" is the price found by applying the formula - 

 
P = D+(DxV) 

 
Where - 

  
(i) P is the permitted price, 
(ii) D is the amount of duty chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the duty     

were charged on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol, and 
(iii) V is the rate of value added tax chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if 

the value added tax were charged on the date of the sale or supply of the 
alcohol; 

 
(c)  "relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in 

force a premises licence - 
   

(i)  the holder of the premises licence, 
(ii)  the designated premises supervisor (if any) in respect of such a licence, 

or 
(iii)  the personal licence holder who makes or authorises a supply of    

alcohol under such a licence; 
 

(d)   "relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in 
force a club premises certificate, any member or officer of the club present on the 
premises in a capacity which enables the member or officer to prevent the supply 
in question; and 

 
(e)  "value added tax" means value added tax charged in accordance with the Value 

Added Tax Act 1994. 
 
8(iii). Where the permitted price given by Paragraph 8(ii)(b) above would (apart from this 

paragraph) not be a whole number of pennies, the price given by that sub-paragraph 
shall be taken to be the price actually given by that sub-paragraph rounded up to the 
nearest penny. 

 
8(iv).     (1)  Sub-paragraph 8(iv)(2) below applies where the permitted price given by 

Paragraph 8(ii)(b) above on a day ("the first day") would be different from the 
permitted price on the next day ("the second day") as a result of a change to the 
rate of duty or value added tax. 

(2)  The permitted price which would apply on the first day applies to sales or 
supplies of alcohol which take place before the expiry of the period of 14 days 
beginning on the second day. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

page 240



Conditions consistent with the operating schedule 
 
9.  The premises shall only operate as a restaurant 

(i)  in which customers are shown to their table, 
(ii)  where the supply of alcohol is by waiter or waitress service only, 
(iii)  which provide food in the form of substantial table meals that are prepared 

on the premises and are served and consumed at the table using non 
disposable crockery or chopsticks, 

(iv)  which do not provide any take away service of food or drink for immediate 
consumption, 

(v)  where alcohol shall not be sold, supplied, or consumed on the premises 
otherwise than to persons who are seated in the premises and bona fide 
taking substantial table meals there and provided always that the 
consumption of alcohol by such persons is ancillary to taking such meals. 

(vi)  Notwithstanding this condition customers are permitted to take from the 
premises part consumed and resealed bottles of wine supplied ancillary to 
their meal. 
 

10.  Substantial food and non-intoxicating beverages, including drinking water, shall 
be available in all parts of the premises where alcohol is sold or supplied for 
consumption on the premises.  
 

11.  The number of persons accommodated at any one time, (excluding staff) shall 
not exceed: 

 
Restaurant - 150 persons. 
 

12.  There shall be no sales of hot food or hot drink for consumption off the premises 
after 23.00 hours. 

 
13.  There shall be no sales of alcohol for consumption off the premises after 23 .00 

hours  
 
14.  A Challenge 21 proof of age scheme shall be operated at the premises where 

the only acceptable forms of identification are recognised photographic 
identification cards, such as a driving licence, passport or proof of age card with 
the PASS Hologram. 

 
15.  Patrons permitted to temporarily leave and then re-enter the premises, e.g. to 

smoke, shall not be permitted to take drinks or glass containers with them. 
 
16.  There shall be no striptease or nudity, and all persons shall be decently attired at 

all times, except when the premises are operating under the authority of a Sexual 
Entertainment Venue licence.  
 

17.  No noise generated on the premises, or by its associated plant or equipment, 
shall emanate from the premises nor vibration be transmitted through the 
structure of the premises which gives rise to a nuisance. 

 
18.  All sales of alcohol for consumption 'Off' the premises shall be in sealed 

containers only, and shall not be consumed on the premises. 
 

page 241



19 .  The premises shall install and maintain a comprehensive CCTV system as per 
the minimum requirements of the Westminster Police Licensing Team. All entry 
and exit points will be covered enabling frontal identification of every person 
entering in any light condition. The CCTV system shall continually record whilst 
the premises is open for licensable activities and during all times when 
customers remain on the premises. All recordings shall be stored for a minimum 
period of 31 days with date and time stamping. Viewing of recordings shall be 
made available immediately upon the request of Police or authorised officer 
throughout the entire 31 day period.  

 
20.  A staff member from the premises who is conversant with the operation of the 

CCTV system shall be on the premises at all times when the premises are open. 
This staff member must be able to provide a Police or authorised council officer 
copies of recent CCTV images or data with the absolute minimum of delay when 
requested.  

 
21.  An incident log shall be kept at the premises, and made available on request to 

an authorised officer of the City Council or the Police, which will record the 
following: 
(a)  all crimes reported to the venue 
(b)  all ejections of patrons 
(c)  any complaints received concerning crime and disorder 
(d)  any incidents of disorder 
(e)  all seizures of drugs or offensive weapons 
(f)  any faults in the CCTV system or searching equipment or scanning 

equipment 
(g)  any refusal of the sale of alcohol 
(h)  any visit by a relevant authority or emergency service. 
 

22.  The approved arrangements at the premises, including means of escape 
provisions, emergency warning equipment, the electrical installation and 
mechanical equipment, shall at all material times be maintained in good condition 
and full working order. 

 
23.  The means of escape provided for the premises shall be maintained 

unobstructed, free of trip hazards, be immediately available and clearly identified 
in accordance with the plans provided. 

 
24.  All emergency exit doors shall be available at all material times without the use of 

a key, code, card or similar means. 
 
25.  All emergency doors shall be maintained effectively self-closing and not held 

open other than by an approved device. 
 
26.  The edges of the treads of steps and stairways shall be maintained so as to be 

conspicuous.  
 

27.  Curtains and hangings shall be arranged so as not to obstruct emergency safety 
signs or emergency equipment.  
 

28.  During the hours of operation of the premises, the licence holder shall ensure 
sufficient measures are in place to remove and prevent litter or waste arising or 

page 242



accumulating from customers in the area immediately outside the premises, and 
that this area shall be swept and or washed, and litter and sweepings collected 
and stored in accordance with the approved refuse storage arrangements by 
close of business. 
 

29.  Notices shall be prominently displayed at all exits requesting patrons to respect 
the needs of local residents and businesses and leave the area quietly. 

 
30.  Flashing or particularly bright lights on or outside the premises shall not cause a 

nuisance to nearby properties, save insofar as they are necessary for the 
prevention of crime. 
 

31.  No waste or recyclable materials, including bottles, shall be moved, removed 
from or placed in outside areas between 23.00 hours and 08.00 hours on the 
following day. 

 
32.  No licensable activities shall take place at the premises until the premises have 

been assessed as satisfactory by the Environmental Health Consultation Team 
at which time this condition shall be removed from the Licence by the Licensing 
Authority. 

 
33.  Before the premises open to the public, the plans as deposited will be checked 

by the Environmental Health Consultation Team to ensure they are an accurate 
reflection of the premises constructed. Where the premises layout has changed 
during the course of construction new plans shall be provided to the 
Environmental Health Consultation Team and the Licensing Authority. 

 
 
Conditions proposed by Environmental Health 
 

page 243



  Appendix 5 
Residential Map and List of Premises in the Vicinity 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

page 244



Appendix 6 
Premises Licence – 16/04629/LIPVM 
 

 
 

page 245



 

 

page 246



 

 
 

page 247



 
 

page 248



 
 

page 249



 

page 250



 
 

page 251



 
 

page 252



 

page 253



 
 

page 254



            

 City of Westminster 

 

 

 

 
Item No:   

 
   

Date:  13 July 2017 
   

Licensing Ref No:  17/05624/LIPN - New Premises Licence 
   

Title of Report:  Bar  
Ground Floor 
Strand Palace Hotel 
372 Strand 
London 
WC2R 0JJ 

   

Report of:  Director of Public Protection and Licensing 
   

Wards involved:  St James's 
   

Policy context:  City of Westminster Statement of Licensing Policy  
 

   

Financial summary:  None 
   

Report Author:  Miss Heidi Lawrance 
Senior Licensing Officer 

   

Contact details  Telephone: 020 7641 2751 
Email: hlawrance@westminster.gov.uk 

 

 

Licensing Sub-Committee 
Report 

page 255

Agenda Item 7



 
1. Application 

 
1-A Applicant and premises 

 

Application Type: New Premises Licence, Licensing Act 2003 
 

Application received 
date: 

23 May 2017 

Applicant: Finlaw 652 Limited 
 

Premises: Bar  
 

Premises address: Ground Floor 
Strand Palace Hotel 
372 Strand 
London 
WC2R 0JJ 
 

Ward: 
 

St James’s 

Cumulative 
Impact Area: 

None. 

Premises description: 
 

The premises will operate as bar.  

Premises licence history: 
 

This is an application for a new premises licence.  
 
The premises does currently have the benefit of a 
premises licence (16/04629/LIPVM) and a copy of this 
can be found at Appendix 6.  
 
This application is being made in conjunction with a new 
premises application for a restaurant situated on the 
ground floor of 372 Strand (17/05581/LIPN).  
 

Applicant submissions: See Appendix 2 
 

 

1-B Proposed licensable activities and hours 
 

Late Night Refreshment: Indoors, outdoors or both Both  
 

Day: Mon Tues Wed Thur Fri Sat Sun 
 

Start: 23:00 23:00 23:00 23:00 23:00 23:00 23:00 

End: 00:30 00:30 00:30 00:30 00:30 00:30 00:00 

Seasonal variations/ Non-
standard timings: 

Sunday before a Bank Holiday 23:00 until 00:30 hours.  
 
From the end of permitted hours on New Years Eve to 
the start of permitted hours on New Years Day.  
 

 
 
 
 

page 256



Films / Recorded Music: Indoors, outdoors or both Indoors  
 

Day: Mon Tues Wed Thur Fri Sat Sun 
 

Start: 09:00 09:00 09:00 09:00 09:00 09:00 09:00 

End: 00:30 00:30 00:30 00:30 00:30 00:30 00:00 

Seasonal variations/ Non-
standard timings: 

Sunday before a Bank Holiday 09:00 until 00:30 hours.  
 
From the end of permitted hours on New Years Eve to 
the start of permitted hours on New Years Day.  
 

 

Sale by retail of alcohol On or off sales or both: 
 

Both  

Day: Mon Tues Wed Thur Fri Sat Sun 
 

Start: 10:00 10:00 10:00 10:00 10:00 10:00 10:00 

End: 00:00 00:00 00:00 00:00 00:00 00:00 23:30 

Seasonal variations/ Non-
standard timings: 

Sunday before a Bank Holiday 23:00 until 00:30 hours.  
 
From the end of permitted hours on New Years Eve to 
the start of permitted hours on New Years Day.  
 

 

Hours premises are open to the public 
 

Day: Mon Tues Wed Thur Fri Sat Sun 
 

Start: 09:00 09:00 09:00 09:00 09:00 09:00 09:00 

End: 00:30 00:30 00:30 00:30 00:30 00:30 00:00 

Seasonal variations/ Non-
standard timings: 

Sunday before a Bank Holiday 09:00 until 00:30 hours.  
 
From the end of permitted hours on New Years Eve to 
the start of permitted hours on New Years Day.  
 

Adult Entertainment:  Not applicable.  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

page 257



2. Representations 
 

2-A Responsible Authorities 
 

Responsible 
Authority: 

Licensing Authority  

Representative:  Mr David Sycamore  
 

Received:  
 

15th June 2017  

  
As a responsible authority under section 13 (4) of the Licensing Act 2003 as amended 
under the Police and Social Responsibility Act 2011 the Licensing Authority have 
considered your application in full. The Licensing Authority has concerns in relation to 
this application and how the premises would promote the Licensing Objectives:  
  
•           Public Nuisance  
 
•           Prevention of Crime & Disorder  
 
 •           Public Safety  
 
The application is for a bar in the cumulative impact area and as such the Westminster 
City Council Policy is to refuse new applications(PB2). The application states that the 
premises will have a capacity of 100 people who are not limited to guests of the 
proposed hotel, so the premises will operate as a public bar. It is the Licensing 
Authority’s policy to refuse applications in the Cumulative Impact Areas for pubs and 
bars premises offering facilities for music and dancing, other than applications to vary 
hours within the Core Hours under Policy HRS1.  
 
 The hours sought currently exceed the core hours policy for licensable activities and 
times the public can be on the premises (HRS1) In the application there is no reason 
has been given to as to why the application should be granted contrary to the 
Westminster City Council Policy.   
 
We accept a number of conditions have been proposed, but do not feel they address 
the cumulative impact of 100 additional persons who will be at the premises primarily to 
drink.  
 
Please accept this as a representation.  
 

Responsible 
Authority: 

Environmental Health Consultation Team  

Representative: Mr Ian Watson  
 

Received: 
 

20th June 2017  

 
The premises are located within the West End Cumulative Impact Area as stated 
in the City of Westminster’s Statement of Licensing Policy. 

 

page 258



The applicant has submitted floor plans of the premises dated March 2017. 

This representation is based on the plans and operating schedule submitted. 

The applicant is seeking the following 

1. To provide for the Supply of Alcohol ‘On’ and ‘Off’ the premises Monday to Saturday 
between 10.00 and 00.00 hours and Sunday between 10.00 to 23.30 hours. Bank 
Holiday Sunday 23.00 to 00.30 hours. 
 

2. To provide Late Night Refreshment ‘Indoors’ and ‘Outdoors’ Monday to Saturday 
between 23.00 and 00.30 hours and Sunday between 23.00 to 00.00 hours. Bank 
Holiday Sunday 23.00 to 00.30 hours. 

 

3. To provide regulated entertainment ‘indoors’ comprising 

 Recorded Music 

 Films 
Monday to Saturday between 09.00 and 00.30 hours and Sunday between 09.00 to 
00.00 hours. Bank Holiday Sunday 09.00 to 00.30 hours. 

 
4. On New Year’s Eve to provide regulated entertainment, late night refreshment and 

Supply of Alcohol from the end of authorised hours to commencement of authorised 
hours on New Year’s Day. 

 

I wish to make the following representation 

 

1. The hours requested for the Supply of Alcohol will have the likely effect of causing 
an increase in Public Nuisance within the West End Cumulative Impact Area. 
 

2. The hours requested to permit the provision of late night refreshment will have the 
likely effect of causing an increase in Public Nuisance and impact on Public Safety 
within the West End Cumulative Impact Area. 

 

3. The hours requested to permit the provision of regulated entertainment will have the 
likely effect of causing an increase in Public Nuisance within the West End 
Cumulative Impact Area. 

 

4. The hours requested to permit regulated entertainment, late night refreshment and 
supply of alcohol on New Year’s Eve will have the likely effect of causing an 
increase in Public Nuisance within the West End Cumulative Impact Area. 

 

The applicant has provided additional information with the application which is being 
addressed. 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

page 259



 
3. Policy & Guidance 

 
The following policies within the City Of Westminster Statement of Licensing Policy 
apply: 
 

Policy HRS1 applies (i) Applications for hours within the core hours set out below in 
this policy will generally be granted, subject to not being 
contrary to other policies in the Statement of Licensing Policy. 

(ii) Applications for hours outside the core hours set out below 
in this policy will be considered on their merits, subject to other 
relevant policies. 

 

Policy HOT1 applies: 

 

Subject to the effect on the promotion of the licensing 
objectives and other relevant policies in this Statement, 
premises licences for hotels will generally be granted so that:  

(a) Alcohol is permitted to be sold at any time to people staying 
in hotel rooms for consumption on the premises. 

(b) The hours of serving of alcohol to the general public will be 
subject to conditions limiting the sale of alcohol after a 
specified time to those attending pre-booked events held at the 
hotel, 

(c) The exhibition of film, in the form of recordings or non-
broadcast television programmes to be viewed in hotel 
bedrooms, will generally be permitted. 

 

Policy PB2 applies: 

 

It is the Licensing Authority’s policy to refuse applications in 
the Cumulative Impact Areas other than applications to vary 
hours within the Core Hours under Policy HRS1. 

 

Policy CIA1 applies: 

 

(i) It is the Licensing Authority’s policy to refuse applications in 
the Cumulative Impact Areas for: pubs and bars, fast food 
premises, and premises offering facilities for music and 
dancing; other than applications to vary hours within the Core 
Hours under Policy HRS1. 

(ii) Applications for other licensable activities in the Cumulative 
Impact Areas will be subject to other policies, and must 
demonstrate that they will not add to cumulative impact in the 
Cumulative Impact Areas. 

 

 
 

page 260



4. Appendices 
 

Appendix 1 
 

Premises plans 

Appendix 2 
 

Applicant supporting documents  

Appendix 3 
 

Premises history 
 

Appendix 4 
 

Proposed conditions 

Appendix 5 Residential map and list of premises in the vicinity 
 

Appendix 6  Premises Licence 16/04629/LIPVM 
 

 
Report author: Miss Heidi Lawrance 

Senior Licensing Officer 

Contact: Telephone: 020 7641 2751 
Email: hlawrance@westminster.gov.uk 
 

 
If you have any queries about this report or wish to inspect one of the 
background papers please contact the report author. 

 
Background Documents – Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1972 
 

1 Licensing Act 2003 N/A 
 

2 City of Westminster Statement of Licensing  
Policy  

7th January 2016 

3 Amended Guidance issued under section 182 of  
the Licensing Act 2003  

March 2015 

4 Application Form  23rd May 2017 

5 Representation – Licensing Authority           15th June 2017 

6  Representation – Environmental Health  20th June 2017  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

page 261



        Appendix 1 
Premises Plans 
 

 

page 262



      Appendix 2 
Applicant Supporting Documents 

 
Bar, Ground Floor 

Strand Palace Hotel, 372 Strand, London, WC2R OJJ 
 
1.  A minimum of 80 seats shall be provided within the premises at all times. 
 
2.  Substantial food and non-intoxicating beverages, including drinking water, shall 

be available in all parts of the premises where alcohol is sold or supplied for 
consumption on the premises.  
 

3. The number of persons accommodated at any one time, (excluding staff) shall 
not exceed: 

 
 Bar- 100 persons. 

 
4.  There shall be no sales of hot food or hot drink for consumption off the premises 

after 23.00 hours. 
 
5.  There shall be no sales of alcohol for consumption off the premises after 23.00 

hours.  
 

6.  Patrons permitted to temporarily leave and then re-enter the premises, e.g. to 
smoke, shall not be permitted to take drinks or glass containers with them. 

 
7.  The entrance door shall be kept closed after 22.00 hours, or at any time when 

regulated entertainment takes place, except for the immediate access and 
egress of persons. 
 

8.  Loudspeakers shall not be located in the entrance lobby or outside the premises 
building.  
 

9.  A Challenge 21 proof of age scheme shall be operated at the premises where 
the only acceptable forms of identification are recognised photographic 
identification cards, such as a driving licence, passport or proof of age card with 
the PASS Hologram. 

 
10.  There shall be no striptease or nudity, and all persons shall be decently attired at 

all times, except when the premises are operating under the authority of a Sexual 
Entertainment Venue licence.  
 

11.  No noise generated on the premises, or by its associated plant or equipment, 
shall emanate from the premises nor vibration be transmitted through the 
structure of the premises which gives rise to a nuisance. 

 
12.  All sales of alcohol for consumption 'Off' the premises shall be in sealed 

containers only, and shall not be consumed on the premises. 
 
13.  The premises shall install and maintain a comprehensive CCTV system as per 

the minimum requirements of the Westminster Police Licensing Team. All entry 
and exit points will be covered enabling frontal identification of every person 

page 263



entering in any light condition. The CCTV system shall continually record whilst 
the premises is open for licensable activities and during all times when 
customers remain on the premises. All recordings shall be stored for a minimum 
period of 31 days with date and time stamping. Viewing of recordings shall be 
made available immediately upon the request of Police or authorised officer 
throughout the entire 31 day period. 

 
14.  A staff member from the premises who is conversant with the operation of the 

CCTV system shall be on the premises at all times when the premises are open. 
This staff member must be able to provide a Police or authorised council officer 
copies of recent CCTV images or data with the absolute minimum of delay when 
requested. 

 
15.  An incident log shall be kept at the premises, and made available on request to 

an authorised officer of the City Council or the Police, which will record the 
following: 
(a)  all crimes reported to the venue 
(b)  all ejections of patrons 
(c)  any complaints received concerning crime and disorder 
(d)  any incidents of disorder 
(e)  all seizures of drugs or offensive weapons 
(f)  any faults in the CCTV system or searching equipment or scanning 

equipment 
(g)  any refusal of the sale of alcohol 
(h)  any visit by a relevant authority or emergency service.  
 

16.  The approved arrangements at the premises, including means of escape 
provisions, emergency warning equipment, the electrical installation and 
mechanical equipment, shall at all material times be maintained in good condition 
and full working order. 

 
17.  The means of escape provided for the premises shall be maintained 

unobstructed, free of trip hazards, be immediately available and clearly identified 
in accordance with the plans provided. 

 
18.  All emergency exit doors shall be available at all material times without the use of 

a key, code, card or similar means.  
 
19.  All emergency doors shall be maintained effectively self-closing and not held 

open other than by an approved device.  
 
20.  The edges of the treads of steps and stairways shall be maintained so as to be 

conspicuous.  
 

21.  Curtains and hangings shall be arranged so as not to obstruct emergency safety 
signs or emergency equipment.  
 

22. During the hours of operation of the premises, the licence holder shall ensure 
sufficient measures are in place to remove and prevent litter or waste arising or 
accumulating from customers in the area immediately outside the premises, and 
that this area shall be swept and or washed, and litter and sweepings collected 

page 264



and stored in accordance with the approved refuse storage arrangements by 
close of business. 
 

23.  Notices shall be prominently displayed at all exits requesting patrons to respect 
the needs of local residents and businesses and leave the area quietly. 

 
24.  No waste or recyclable materials, including bottles, shall be moved, removed 

from or placed in outside areas between 23.00 hours and 08.00 hours on the 
following day.  

 
25.  No licensable activities shall take place at the premises until the premises have 

been assessed as satisfactory by the Environmental Health Consultation Team 
at which time this condition shall be removed from the Licence by the Licensing 
Authority. 

 
26.  Before the premises open to the public, the plans as deposited will be checked 

by the Environmental Health Consultation Team to ensure they are an accurate 
reflection of the premises constructed. Where the premises layout has changed 
during the course of construction new plans shall be provided to the 
Environmental Health Consultation Team and the Licensing Authority. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

page 265



 

 
 

page 266



 
 

page 267



 
 

page 268



 

page 269



 
 

page 270



 
 
 

page 271



 
 
 

page 272



 
 
 

page 273



 

page 274



 

page 275



page 276



page 277



page 278



page 279



 
 
 

page 280



 
 

page 281



 
 

page 282



 

page 283



 

page 284



 

page 285



 
 

page 286



 

page 287



 
 

page 288



 
 

page 289



 
 
 

page 290



 
 

page 291



 
 
 
 
 

page 292



 

page 293



        Appendix 3 
Licence & Appeal History - 16/04629/LIPVM  
 

 

 
Application 
 

 
Details of 
Application 

 
Date Determined 

 
Decision 

 
05/09587/LIPC 

 
Application for a new 
premises  

 
28th September 
2005 

 
Granted under 
Delegated Authority  
 

 
11/02147/LIPCH 

 
Change of details  

 
16th March 2011   

 
Granted under 
Delegated Authority  
 

 
13/01699/LIPVM 

 
Application for a 
Minor Variation:  
 
To vary the plans 
attached to the 
existing premises 
licence so as to 
incorporate changes 
to bedroom 
configuration, on first 
floor to add bedroom 
numbered 166 to 
169, and on second 
floor add bedrooms 
numbered 203 and 
204.  
 
There are no 
changes to existing 
licensable activities 
and/or timings 
 
 

 
25th March 2013 

 
Granted under 
Delegated Authority  
 

 
14/04086/LIPVM 

 
Application for a 
Minor Variation: 
 
To approve minor 
internal 
refurbishment works 
to the Nook Bar at 
the Strand Palace 
hotel (formerly 
known as the Strand 
Palace Bar, then the 
Hops Bar).  

 
13th June 2014 

 
Application refused.  

page 294



 
14/05310/LIPV 

 
Application to Vary 
the Premises 
Licence:  
 
To approve minor 
internal 
refurbishment works 
to the ground floor of 
the hotel.  
 
To remove 
Conditions 9, 11, 14, 
15, 16 and 17 and,  
replace with  new  
conditions proposed 
by the applicant. 
 

 
14th August 2014  

 
Granted under 
Delegated Authority  

 
15/08402/LIPV 

 
Application to Vary 
the Premises 
Licence:  
 
To vary the start time 
for the sale of alcohol 
on Sundays to 10.00, 
to allow flexibility to 
offer pre-lunch 
drinks and to bring 
the start time into line 
with the rest of the 
week. There will be 
no change to the 
times for any other 
licensable activity 
and there will be no 
proposed change to 
the existing licence 
conditions. 
 

 
4th November 2015 

 
Granted under 
Delegated Authority 

 
16/04629/LIPVM 

 
Application for a 
Minor Variation: 
 
to approve minor 
internal 
refurbishment works 
to the coffee shop at 
the Strand Palace 
hotel 
 

 
6th June 2016 

 
Granted under 
Delegated Authority 
 

There is no appeal history 

page 295



Appendix 4 
 
CONDITIONS CONSISTENT WITH THE OPERATING SCHEDULE AND CONDITIONS 
PROPOSED BY A PARTY TO THE HEARING  
 
When determining an application for a new premises licence under the provisions of the 
Licensing Act 2003, the licensing authority must, unless it decides to reject the application, grant 
the licence subject to the conditions which are indicated as mandatory in this schedule. 
 
At a hearing the licensing authority may, in addition, and having regard to any representations 
received, grant the licence subject to such conditions which are consistent with the operating 
schedule submitted by the applicant as part of their application, or alter or omit these conditions, 
or add any new condition to such extent as the licensing authority considers necessary for the 
promotion of the licensing objectives. 
 
This schedule lists those conditions which are consistent with the operating schedule, or 
proposed as necessary for the promotion of the licensing objectives by a responsible authority 
or an interested party as indicated. These conditions have not been submitted by the licensing 
service but reflect the positions of the applicant, responsible authority or interested party and 
have not necessarily been agreed 
 
Mandatory Conditions 
 
1. No supply of alcohol may be made at a time when there is no designated premises 

supervisor in respect of this licence. 
 
2. No supply of alcohol may be made at a time when the designated premises supervisor 

does not hold a personal licence or the personal licence is suspended. 
 
3. Every supply of alcohol under this licence must be made or authorised by a person who 

holds a personal licence. 
 
4.          (1)  The responsible person must ensure that staff on relevant premises do not carry 

out, arrange or participate in any irresponsible promotions in relation to the 
premises. 

 
(2)  In this paragraph, an irresponsible promotion means any one or more of the 

following activities, or substantially similar activities, carried on for the purpose of 
encouraging the sale or supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises— 

 
(a)  games or other activities which require or encourage, or are designed to require 

or encourage, individuals to; 
 

(i)  drink a quantity of alcohol within a time limit (other than to drink alcohol 
sold or supplied on the premises before the cessation of the period in 
which the responsible person is authorised to sell or supply alcohol), or 

(ii)  drink as much alcohol as possible (whether within a time limit or 
otherwise); 

 
(b)  provision of unlimited or unspecified quantities of alcohol free or for a fixed or 

discounted fee to the public or to a group defined by a particular characteristic in 
a manner which carries a significant risk of undermining a licensing objective; 

 
(c)  provision of free or discounted alcohol or any other thing as a prize to encourage 

or reward the purchase and consumption of alcohol over a period of 24 hours or 
less in a manner which carries a significant risk of undermining a licensing 
objective; 

page 296



 
(d)  selling or supplying alcohol in association with promotional posters or flyers on, 

or in the vicinity of, the premises which can reasonably be considered to 
condone, encourage or glamorise anti-social behaviour or to refer to the effects 
of drunkenness in any favourable manner; 

 
 (e) dispensing alcohol directly by one person into the mouth of another (other than 

where that other person is unable to drink without assistance by reason of a 
disability). 

 
5.  The responsible person must ensure that free potable water is provided on request to 

customers where it is reasonably available. 
 
6.          (1)  The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder must ensure that 

an age verification policy is adopted in respect of the premises in relation to the 
sale or supply of alcohol. 

 
(2)  The designated premises supervisor in relation to the premises licence must 

ensure that the supply of alcohol at the premises is carried on in accordance with 
the age verification policy. 

 

(3) The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person to be 

under 18 years of age (or such older age as may be specified in the policy) to 

produce on request, before being served alcohol, identification bearing their 

photograph, date of birth and either— 

 (a)  a holographic mark, or 

 (b)  an ultraviolet feature. 

 
7.  The responsible person must ensure that— 

(a)  where any of the following alcoholic drinks is sold or supplied for consumption on 

the premises (other than alcoholic drinks sold or supplied having been made up 

in advance ready for sale or supply in a securely closed container) it is available 

to customers in the following measures— 

  (i)  beer or cider: ½ pint;  

(ii)  gin, rum, vodka or whisky: 25 ml or 35 ml; and 

   (iii)  still wine in a glass: 125 ml; 

 
(b)  these measures are displayed in a menu, price list or other printed material 

which is available to customers on the premises; and 
 
(c) where a customer does not in relation to a sale of alcohol specify the quantity of 

alcohol to be sold, the customer is made aware that these measures are 
available. 

 
A responsible person in relation to a licensed premises means the holder of the premise licence 
in respect of the premises, the designated premises supervisor (if any) or any individual aged 
18 or over who is authorised by either the licence holder or designated premises supervisor.  
For premises with a club premises certificate, any member or officer of the club present on the 
premises in a capacity that which enables him to prevent the supply of alcohol. 
 

page 297



8(i) A relevant person shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption on or 
off the premises for a price which is less than the permitted price. 

 
8(ii) For the purposes of the condition set out in paragraph 8(i) above - 
 

(a)  "duty" is to be construed in accordance with the Alcoholic Liquor Duties Act 
1979; 

 
(b)  "permitted price" is the price found by applying the formula - 

 
P = D+(DxV) 

 
Where - 

  
(i) P is the permitted price, 
(ii) D is the amount of duty chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the duty     

were charged on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol, and 
(iii) V is the rate of value added tax chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if 

the value added tax were charged on the date of the sale or supply of the 
alcohol; 

 
(c)  "relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in 

force a premises licence - 
   

(i)  the holder of the premises licence, 
(ii)  the designated premises supervisor (if any) in respect of such a licence, 

or 
(iii)  the personal licence holder who makes or authorises a supply of    

alcohol under such a licence; 
 

(d)   "relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in 
force a club premises certificate, any member or officer of the club present on the 
premises in a capacity which enables the member or officer to prevent the supply 
in question; and 

 
(e)  "value added tax" means value added tax charged in accordance with the Value 

Added Tax Act 1994. 
 
8(iii). Where the permitted price given by Paragraph 8(ii)(b) above would (apart from this 

paragraph) not be a whole number of pennies, the price given by that sub-paragraph 
shall be taken to be the price actually given by that sub-paragraph rounded up to the 
nearest penny. 

 
8(iv).     (1)  Sub-paragraph 8(iv)(2) below applies where the permitted price given by 

Paragraph 8(ii)(b) above on a day ("the first day") would be different from the 
permitted price on the next day ("the second day") as a result of a change to the 
rate of duty or value added tax. 

(2)  The permitted price which would apply on the first day applies to sales or 
supplies of alcohol which take place before the expiry of the period of 14 days 
beginning on the second day. 

 
9. Admission of children to the premises must be restricted in accordance with the film 

classification recommended by the British Board of Film Classification or recommended 
by this licensing authority as appropriate. 

 
 

page 298



Conditions consistent with the operating schedule 
 
10.  A minimum of 80 seats shall be provided within the premises at all times. 
 
11.  Substantial food and non-intoxicating beverages, including drinking water, shall 

be available in all parts of the premises where alcohol is sold or supplied for 
consumption on the premises.  
 

12. The number of persons accommodated at any one time, (excluding staff) shall 
not exceed: 

 
 Bar- 100 persons. 

 
13.  There shall be no sales of hot food or hot drink for consumption off the premises 

after 23.00 hours. 
 
14.  There shall be no sales of alcohol for consumption off the premises after 23.00 

hours.  
 

15.  Patrons permitted to temporarily leave and then re-enter the premises, e.g. to 
smoke, shall not be permitted to take drinks or glass containers with them. 

 
16.  The entrance door shall be kept closed after 22.00 hours, or at any time when 

regulated entertainment takes place, except for the immediate access and 
egress of persons. 
 

17.  Loudspeakers shall not be located in the entrance lobby or outside the premises 
building.  
 

18.  A Challenge 21 proof of age scheme shall be operated at the premises where 
the only acceptable forms of identification are recognised photographic 
identification cards, such as a driving licence, passport or proof of age card with 
the PASS Hologram. 

 
19.  There shall be no striptease or nudity, and all persons shall be decently attired at 

all times, except when the premises are operating under the authority of a Sexual 
Entertainment Venue licence.  
 

20.  No noise generated on the premises, or by its associated plant or equipment, 
shall emanate from the premises nor vibration be transmitted through the 
structure of the premises which gives rise to a nuisance. 

 
21.  All sales of alcohol for consumption 'Off' the premises shall be in sealed 

containers only, and shall not be consumed on the premises. 
 
22.  The premises shall install and maintain a comprehensive CCTV system as per 

the minimum requirements of the Westminster Police Licensing Team. All entry 
and exit points will be covered enabling frontal identification of every person 
entering in any light condition. The CCTV system shall continually record whilst 
the premises is open for licensable activities and during all times when 
customers remain on the premises. All recordings shall be stored for a minimum 
period of 31 days with date and time stamping. Viewing of recordings shall be 

page 299



made available immediately upon the request of Police or authorised officer 
throughout the entire 31 day period. 

 
23.  A staff member from the premises who is conversant with the operation of the 

CCTV system shall be on the premises at all times when the premises are open. 
This staff member must be able to provide a Police or authorised council officer 
copies of recent CCTV images or data with the absolute minimum of delay when 
requested. 

 
24.  An incident log shall be kept at the premises, and made available on request to 

an authorised officer of the City Council or the Police, which will record the 
following: 
(a)  all crimes reported to the venue 
(b)  all ejections of patrons 
(c)  any complaints received concerning crime and disorder 
(d)  any incidents of disorder 
(e)  all seizures of drugs or offensive weapons 
(f)  any faults in the CCTV system or searching equipment or scanning 

equipment 
(g)  any refusal of the sale of alcohol 
(h)  any visit by a relevant authority or emergency service.  
 

25.  The approved arrangements at the premises, including means of escape 
provisions, emergency warning equipment, the electrical installation and 
mechanical equipment, shall at all material times be maintained in good condition 
and full working order. 

 
26.  The means of escape provided for the premises shall be maintained 

unobstructed, free of trip hazards, be immediately available and clearly identified 
in accordance with the plans provided. 

 
27.  All emergency exit doors shall be available at all material times without the use of 

a key, code, card or similar means.  
 
28.  All emergency doors shall be maintained effectively self-closing and not held 

open other than by an approved device.  
 
29.  The edges of the treads of steps and stairways shall be maintained so as to be 

conspicuous.  
 

30.  Curtains and hangings shall be arranged so as not to obstruct emergency safety 
signs or emergency equipment.  
 

31. During the hours of operation of the premises, the licence holder shall ensure 
sufficient measures are in place to remove and prevent litter or waste arising or 
accumulating from customers in the area immediately outside the premises, and 
that this area shall be swept and or washed, and litter and sweepings collected 
and stored in accordance with the approved refuse storage arrangements by 
close of business. 
 

32.  Notices shall be prominently displayed at all exits requesting patrons to respect 
the needs of local residents and businesses and leave the area quietly. 

page 300



 
33.  No waste or recyclable materials, including bottles, shall be moved, removed 

from or placed in outside areas between 23.00 hours and 08.00 hours on the 
following day.  

 
34.  No licensable activities shall take place at the premises until the premises have 

been assessed as satisfactory by the Environmental Health Consultation Team 
at which time this condition shall be removed from the Licence by the Licensing 
Authority. 

 
35.  Before the premises open to the public, the plans as deposited will be checked 

by the Environmental Health Consultation Team to ensure they are an accurate 
reflection of the premises constructed. Where the premises layout has changed 
during the course of construction new plans shall be provided to the 
Environmental Health Consultation Team and the Licensing Authority. 

 
 
Conditions proposed by the Environmental Health 
 

page 301



  Appendix 5 
Residential Map and List of Premises in the Vicinity 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

page 302



Appendix 6 
Premises Licence – 16/04629/LIPVM 
 

 
 

page 303



 
 

page 304



 
 
 
 
 

page 305



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

page 306



 
 

page 307



 
 

page 308



 

 
 
 
 

page 309



 
 
 
 
 

page 310



 
 

page 311



 

page 312



            

 City of Westminster 

 

 

 

 
Item No:   

 
   

Date:  13 July 2017 
   

Licensing Ref No:  17/05429/LIPN - New Premises Licence 
   

Title of Report:  Victory House 
14 Leicester Place 
London 
WC2H 7BP 

   

Report of:  Director of Public Protection and Licensing 
   

Wards involved:  St James's 
   

Policy context:  City of Westminster Statement of Licensing Policy  
 

   

Financial summary:  None 
   

Report Author:  Miss Heidi Lawrance 
Senior Licensing Officer 

   

Contact details  Telephone: 020 7641 2751 
Email: hlawrance@westminster.gov.uk 

 

 

Licensing Sub-Committee 
Report 

page 313

Agenda Item 8



 
1. Application 

 
1-A Applicant and premises 

 

Application Type: New Premises Licence, Licensing Act 2003 
 

Application received 
date: 

19 May 2017 

Applicant: Victory House (London) Hotel Limited 
 

Premises: Victory House London Leicester Square Gallery by Sofitel 
 

Premises address: Victory House 
14 Leicester Place 
London 
WC2H 7BP 
 

Ward: 
 

St James’s  

Cumulative 
Impact Area: 

West End  

Premises description: 
 

Hotel with 86 bedrooms located over 6 floors with 
bedroom suites being located at mezzanine level. 
 
 

Premises licence history: 
 

 
 

Applicant submissions: This application is being made to license the bedrooms 
for the sale of alcohol. Room service will also be provided 
to residents and guests. Licensable activities to be 
available to residents and guests (maximum of 4 guests) 
24 hours a day. 
 
There will be a bar and restaurant on the ground floor. 
Access to the bar and restaurant by members of the 
public will be permitted between the hours of 07:00 and 
01:00 hours each day and to residents and to bona fide 
guests 24 hours. 
 
The ground floor will operate predominantly as a 
restaurant, although bar service will be available at all 
times to residents and guests. Bar service will also be 
available to members of the public up to 21:00 hours each 
day, after which time service will be restricted to members 
of the public who are dining. All customers will be seated 
and there is no bar counter; all food and drinks will be 
served by waiter/waitress service. 
 
There will be an external area for the consumption of food 
and/or drink on Leicester Place to customers who shall be 
seated. (The use of this area to be subject to the grant of 
a Street Trading Licence.) 

 
 

1-B Proposed licensable activities and hours 

page 314



 

Late Night Refreshment: Indoors, outdoors or both Both  
 

Day: Mon Tues Wed Thur Fri Sat Sun 
 

Start: 23:00 23:00 23:00 23:00 23:00 23:00 23:00 

End: 01:00 01:00 01:00 01:00 01:00 01:00 01:00 

Seasonal variations/ Non-
standard timings: 

24 hours for residents and bona fide guests. 

 

Live Music / Recorded Music / 
Performance of Dance: 

Indoors, outdoors or both Indoors  
 

Day: Mon Tues Wed Thur Fri Sat Sun 
 

Start: 10:00 10:00 10:00 10:00 10:00 10:00 10:00 

End: 01:00 01:00 01:00 01:00 01:00 01:00 01:00 

Seasonal variations/ Non-
standard timings: 

None applied for.  

 

Sale by retail of alcohol On or off sales or both: 
 

Both  

Day: Mon Tues Wed Thur Fri Sat Sun 
 

Start: 10:00 10:00 10:00 10:00 10:00 10:00 10:00 

End: 01:00 01:00 01:00 01:00 01:00 01:00 01:00 

Seasonal variations/ Non-
standard timings: 

Off sales of alcohol to be limited to supplies to residents 
and guests, and to supplies to the external area shown 
upon the deposited plan. 
 
For residents and guests (maximum of 4), the supply of 
alcohol will be permissible 24 hours a day.  
 
The service of alcohol to members of the public in the 
ground floor bar and restaurant to be restricted to 21:00 
hours each day without a substantial table meal. 

 

Hours premises are open to the public 
 

Day: Mon Tues Wed Thur Fri Sat Sun 
 

Start: 00:00 00:00 00:00 00:00 00:00 00:00 00:00 

End: 00:00 00:00 00:00 00:00 00:00 00:00 00:00 

Seasonal variations/ Non-
standard timings: 

None.  

Adult Entertainment:  Not applicable.  
 

 
 
 
 

2. Representations 
 

page 315



2-A Responsible Authorities 
 

Responsible 
Authority: 

Environmental Health Consultation Team  

Representative:  Mr Ian Watson  
 

Received:  
 

14th June 2017  

  
The premises are located within the West End Cumulative Impact Area as stated 
in the City of Westminster’s Statement of Licensing Policy. 

The applicant has submitted floor plans of the premises dated May 2017. 

This representation is based on the plans and operating schedule submitted. 

The applicant is seeking the following 

1. To provide for the Supply of Alcohol ‘On’ and ‘Off’ the premises Monday to Sunday 
between 10.00 to 01.00 hours for public with 24 hours for residents and their guests. 
 

2. To provide Late Night Refreshment ‘Indoors’ and ‘Outdoors’ Monday to Sunday 
between 23.00 to 01.00 hours for public with 24 hours for residents and their guests. 

 

3. To provide regulated entertainment ‘Indoors’ comprising 

 Live Music 

 Recorded Music 

 Performance of Dance 
Monday to Sunday between 10.00 to 01.00 hours. 

 
I wish to make the following representation 

1. The hours requested for the Supply of Alcohol will have the likely effect of causing 
an increase in Public Nuisance within the West End CI Area. 
 

2. The hours requested to permit the provision of late night refreshment will have the 
likely effect of causing an increase in Public Nuisance within the West End CI Area. 

 

3. The hours requested to permit the provision of regulated entertainment will have the 
likely effect of causing an increase in Public Nuisance within the West End CI Area. 

 

The granting of the application as presented would have the likely effect of causing an 
increase in Public Nuisance and impact on Public Safety within the West End CI Area. 

The applicant has provided additional information and conditions with the application 
which are being addressed. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Responsible 
Authority: 

Licensing Authority  

Representative: Mr David Sycamore 

page 316



 

Received: 
 

15th June 2017  

 
As a responsible authority under section 13 (4) of the Licensing Act 2003 as amended 
under the Police and Social Responsibility Act 2011 the Licensing Authority have 
considered your application in full. The Licensing Authority has concerns in relation to 
this application and how the premises would promote the Licensing Objectives:  
 
•           Public Nuisance  
 
•           Prevention of Crime & Disorder  
 
•           Public Safety  
 
We acknowledge this application is in the form of a hotel and as such our  
representation is concerned with the bar area shown as hatched green on the plan (and 
the outside area). The premises is located in the Cumulative Impact (CIP1)area and as 
such the bar area for the public is contrary to PB2. The application form states that this 
bar will be open to non-residents until 9 pm, we would like this reduced to 8 pm as per 
the Statement of Licensing Policy( 2.4.21)and the policy specifically mentions hotel bars 
which have directs access to the public (2.5.57). We are also concerned as to how 
many pre-booked private and corporate events there will be and how these will defined.  
  
We would also like to clarify who is able to use the outside table and chair area? Will 
this area be used only by residents at any time? We would be concerned again if this 
was an area that the public could use as this would advertise the availability of alcohol 
to the public.  
  
Please accept this as a formal representation and we look forward to hearing from the 
applicant with regards to the concerns raised above.  
 

Responsible 
Authority: 

Metropolitan Police Service  

Representative: PC Adam Deweltz  
 

Received: 
 

25th May 2017  

 
With reference to the above, I am writing to inform you that the Metropolitan Police, as a 
Responsible Authority, will be making a representation against this application.  
 
 The venue is situated within the Cumulative Impact Area. It is our belief that if granted 
the application would undermine the Licensing Objectives in relation to The Prevention 
of Crime and Disorder.  
 
Following the agreement of conditions the Metropolitan Police have now 
withdrawn their representation.  
 

3. Policy & Guidance 
 

The following policies within the City Of Westminster Statement of Licensing Policy 
apply: 

page 317



 

Policy CIA1 applies (i) It is the Licensing Authoritys policy to refuse applications in 
the Cumulative Impact Areas for: pubs and bars, fast food 
premises, and premises offering facilities for music and 
dancing; other than applications to vary hours within the Core 
Hours under Policy HRS1. 

(ii) Applications for other licensable activities in the Cumulative 
Impact Areas will be subject to other policies, and must 
demonstrate that they will not add to cumulative impact in the 
Cumulative Impact Areas. 

 

Policy HOT1 applies: 

 

Subject to the effect on the promotion of the licensing 
objectives and other relevant policies in this Statement, 
premises licences for hotels will generally be granted so that:  

(a) Alcohol is permitted to be sold at any time to people staying 
in hotel rooms for consumption on the premises. 

(b) The hours of serving of alcohol to the general public will be 
subject to conditions limiting the sale of alcohol after a 
specified time to those attending pre-booked events held at the 
hotel, 

(c) The exhibition of film, in the form of recordings or non-
broadcast television programmes to be viewed in hotel 
bedrooms, will generally be permitted. 

 

Policy HRS1 applies: 

 

 (i) Applications for hours within the core hours set out below in 
this policy will generally be granted, subject to not being 
contrary to other policies in the Statement of Licensing Policy. 

(ii) Applications for hours outside the core hours set out below 
in this policy will be considered on their merits, subject to other 
relevant policies. 

 

Policy PB2 applies: 

 

It is the Licensing Authoritys policy to refuse applications in the 
Cumulative Impact Areas other than applications to vary hours 
within the Core Hours under Policy HRS1. 

 

Policy RNT2 applies: 

 

Applications will be granted subject to other policies in this 
Statement and subject to the relevant criteria in Policies CD1, 
PS1, PN1 and CH1, provided it can be demonstrated that they 
will not add to cumulative impact in the Cumulative Impact 
Areas. 

 
 
 

page 318



4. Appendices 
 

Appendix 1 
 

Premises plans 

Appendix 2 
 

Applicant supporting documents  

Appendix 3 
 

Premises history 
 

Appendix 4 
 

Proposed conditions 

Appendix 5 Residential map and list of premises in the vicinity 
 

 
Report author: Miss Heidi Lawrance 

Senior Licensing Officer 

Contact: Telephone: 020 7641 2751 
Email: hlawrance@westminster.gov.uk 
 

 
If you have any queries about this report or wish to inspect one of the 
background papers please contact the report author. 

 
Background Documents – Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1972 
 

1 Licensing Act 2003 N/A 
 

2 City of Westminster Statement of Licensing  
Policy  

7th January 2016 

3 Amended Guidance issued under section 182 of  
the Licensing Act 2003  

March 2015 

4 Application Form  19th May 2017 

5 Representation – Environmental Health           14th June 2017 

6 Representation – Licensing Authority  15th June 2017 

7 Representation – MET Police (withdrawn)  25th May 2017  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

page 319



         Appendix 1 
Premises Plans 
 

 
 

page 320



 

page 321



 
 

page 322



 
 

page 323



  
 

page 324



  
 

page 325



  
 

page 326



  
 

page 327



  
 

page 328



 

page 329



      Appendix 2 
Applicant Supporting Documents 
 

 
 
 

page 330



         Appendix 3 
Premises History 

 
There is no licence or appeal history for the premises. 

page 331



Appendix 4 
 
CONDITIONS CONSISTENT WITH THE OPERATING SCHEDULE AND CONDITIONS 
PROPOSED BY A PARTY TO THE HEARING  
 
When determining an application for a new premises licence under the provisions of the 
Licensing Act 2003, the licensing authority must, unless it decides to reject the application, grant 
the licence subject to the conditions which are indicated as mandatory in this schedule. 
 
At a hearing the licensing authority may, in addition, and having regard to any representations 
received, grant the licence subject to such conditions which are consistent with the operating 
schedule submitted by the applicant as part of their application, or alter or omit these conditions, 
or add any new condition to such extent as the licensing authority considers necessary for the 
promotion of the licensing objectives. 
 
This schedule lists those conditions which are consistent with the operating schedule, or 
proposed as necessary for the promotion of the licensing objectives by a responsible authority 
or an interested party as indicated. These conditions have not been submitted by the licensing 
service but reflect the positions of the applicant, responsible authority or interested party and 
have not necessarily been agreed 
 
Mandatory Conditions 
 
1. No supply of alcohol may be made at a time when there is no designated premises 

supervisor in respect of this licence. 
 
2. No supply of alcohol may be made at a time when the designated premises supervisor 

does not hold a personal licence or the personal licence is suspended. 
 
3. Every supply of alcohol under this licence must be made or authorised by a person who 

holds a personal licence. 
 
4.          (1)  The responsible person must ensure that staff on relevant premises do not carry 

out, arrange or participate in any irresponsible promotions in relation to the 
premises. 

 
(2)  In this paragraph, an irresponsible promotion means any one or more of the 

following activities, or substantially similar activities, carried on for the purpose of 
encouraging the sale or supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises— 

 
(a)  games or other activities which require or encourage, or are designed to require 

or encourage, individuals to; 
 

(i)  drink a quantity of alcohol within a time limit (other than to drink alcohol 
sold or supplied on the premises before the cessation of the period in 
which the responsible person is authorised to sell or supply alcohol), or 

(ii)  drink as much alcohol as possible (whether within a time limit or 
otherwise); 

 
(b)  provision of unlimited or unspecified quantities of alcohol free or for a fixed or 

discounted fee to the public or to a group defined by a particular characteristic in 
a manner which carries a significant risk of undermining a licensing objective; 

 
(c)  provision of free or discounted alcohol or any other thing as a prize to encourage 

or reward the purchase and consumption of alcohol over a period of 24 hours or 
less in a manner which carries a significant risk of undermining a licensing 
objective; 

 

page 332



(d)  selling or supplying alcohol in association with promotional posters or flyers on, 
or in the vicinity of, the premises which can reasonably be considered to 
condone, encourage or glamorise anti-social behaviour or to refer to the effects 
of drunkenness in any favourable manner; 

 
 (e) dispensing alcohol directly by one person into the mouth of another (other than 

where that other person is unable to drink without assistance by reason of a 
disability). 

 
5.  The responsible person must ensure that free potable water is provided on request to 

customers where it is reasonably available. 
 
6.          (1)  The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder must ensure that 

an age verification policy is adopted in respect of the premises in relation to the 
sale or supply of alcohol. 

 
(2)  The designated premises supervisor in relation to the premises licence must 

ensure that the supply of alcohol at the premises is carried on in accordance with 
the age verification policy. 

 

(3) The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person to be 

under 18 years of age (or such older age as may be specified in the policy) to 

produce on request, before being served alcohol, identification bearing their 

photograph, date of birth and either— 

 (a)  a holographic mark, or 

 (b)  an ultraviolet feature. 

 
7.  The responsible person must ensure that— 

(a)  where any of the following alcoholic drinks is sold or supplied for consumption on 

the premises (other than alcoholic drinks sold or supplied having been made up 

in advance ready for sale or supply in a securely closed container) it is available 

to customers in the following measures— 

  (i)  beer or cider: ½ pint;  

(ii)  gin, rum, vodka or whisky: 25 ml or 35 ml; and 

   (iii)  still wine in a glass: 125 ml; 

 
(b)  these measures are displayed in a menu, price list or other printed material 

which is available to customers on the premises; and 
 
(c) where a customer does not in relation to a sale of alcohol specify the quantity of 

alcohol to be sold, the customer is made aware that these measures are 
available. 

 
A responsible person in relation to a licensed premises means the holder of the premise licence 
in respect of the premises, the designated premises supervisor (if any) or any individual aged 
18 or over who is authorised by either the licence holder or designated premises supervisor.  
For premises with a club premises certificate, any member or officer of the club present on the 
premises in a capacity that which enables him to prevent the supply of alcohol. 
 
8(i) A relevant person shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption on or 

off the premises for a price which is less than the permitted price. 
 

page 333



8(ii) For the purposes of the condition set out in paragraph 8(i) above - 
 

(a)  "duty" is to be construed in accordance with the Alcoholic Liquor Duties Act 
1979; 

 
(b)  "permitted price" is the price found by applying the formula - 

 
P = D+(DxV) 

 
Where - 

  
(i) P is the permitted price, 
(ii) D is the amount of duty chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the duty     

were charged on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol, and 
(iii) V is the rate of value added tax chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if 

the value added tax were charged on the date of the sale or supply of the 
alcohol; 

 
(c)  "relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in 

force a premises licence - 
   

(i)  the holder of the premises licence, 
(ii)  the designated premises supervisor (if any) in respect of such a licence, 

or 
(iii)  the personal licence holder who makes or authorises a supply of    

alcohol under such a licence; 
 

(d)   "relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in 
force a club premises certificate, any member or officer of the club present on the 
premises in a capacity which enables the member or officer to prevent the supply 
in question; and 

 
(e)  "value added tax" means value added tax charged in accordance with the Value 

Added Tax Act 1994. 
 
8(iii). Where the permitted price given by Paragraph 8(ii)(b) above would (apart from this 

paragraph) not be a whole number of pennies, the price given by that sub-paragraph 
shall be taken to be the price actually given by that sub-paragraph rounded up to the 
nearest penny. 

 
8(iv).     (1)  Sub-paragraph 8(iv)(2) below applies where the permitted price given by 

Paragraph 8(ii)(b) above on a day ("the first day") would be different from the 
permitted price on the next day ("the second day") as a result of a change to the 
rate of duty or value added tax. 

(2)  The permitted price which would apply on the first day applies to sales or 
supplies of alcohol which take place before the expiry of the period of 14 days 
beginning on the second day. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

page 334



Conditions consistent with the operating schedule 
 
9.  Licensable activities autt1orised under this licence shall remain ancillary to the 

main use of the premises as a hotel. 
 
10.  Save at all times for residents and their bona fide guests (maximum of 4); and to 

members of the public up to 21:00 hours each day; and to persons attending a 
pre-booked private or corporate function, the area hatched green on the ground 
floor shall operate as a restaurant 
(i)  in which customers are shown to their table, 
(ii)  where the supply of alcohol is by waiter or waitress service only, 
(iii)  which provide food in the form of substantial table meals that are prepared 

on the premises and are served and consumed at the table using non 
disposable crockery, 

(iv)  which do not provide any take away service of food or drink for immediate 
consumption save for the external seated area shown upon the deposited 
plan, 

(v)  which do not provide any take away service of food or drink after 23.00 
save for the external seated area shown upon the deposited plan; and 

(vi)  where alcohol shall not be sold or supplied, otherwise than for 
consumption by persons who are seated in the premises and bona fide 
taking substantial table meals there, and provided always that the 
consumption of alcohol by such persons is ancillary to taking such meals 

 
Notwithstanding this condition customers are permitted to take from the premises 
part consumed and resealed bottles of wine supplied ancillary to their meal. 
 

11.  With the exception of residents and guests, no alcohol shall be consumed more 
than 30 minutes after the permitted terminal hour for the supply of alcohol on the 
ground floor. 

 
12.  At least 1 SIA licensed door supervisor shall be on duty from 20:00 hours each 

day and shall remain on duty until the last non-resident (excluding bona fide 
guests of a resident) have left the bar/restaurant. 

 
 Police propose to amend condition 12 and agreed by the applicant:  
 

At least 1 SIA licensed door supervisor shall be on duty from 12:00 hours (noon) 
each day and shall remain on duty until the last non-resident (excluding bona fide 
guests of a resident) have left the bar/restaurant.  The need for additional door 
supervisors shall be subject to risk assessment by management.   

 
13.  There shall be no external advertising of the bar facilities within the premises nor 

the availability of alcohol for sale to members of the public without food. 
 
14.  'Off sales of alcohol shall only be to persons seated in the external area 

appropriately authorised for the use of tables and chairs on the highway by 
waiter or waitress service, and to hotel residents. 

 
15.  Alcohol consumed outside the premises building shall only be consumed by 

patrons seated at tables. 
 

page 335



16.  The premises shall install and maintain a comprehensive CCTV system as per 
the minimum requirements of the Westminster Police Licensing Team. All entry 
and exit points will be covered enabling frontal identification of every person 
entering in any light condition. The CCTV system shall continually record whilst 
the premises is open for licensable activities and during all times when 
customers remain on the premises. All recordings shall be stored for a minimum 
period of 31 days with date and time stamping. Viewing of recordings shall be 
made available immediately upon the request of Police or authorised officer 
throughout the entire 31 day period. 

 
17.  A staff member from the premises who is conversant with the operation of the 

CCTV system shall be on the premises at all times when the premise is open for 
licensable activities. This staff member must be able to provide a Police or 
authorised council officer copies of recent CCTV images or data with the 
absolute minimum of delay when requested. 

 
18. An incident log shall be kept at the premises, and made available on request to 

an authorised officer of the City Council or the Police. It must be completed 
within 24 hours of the incident and will record the following: 
(a)  all crimes reported to the venue 
(b)  all ejections of patrons 
(c)  any complaints received concerning crime and disorder 
(d)  any incidents of disorder 
(e)  any faults in the CCTV system 
(f)  any refusal of the sale of alcohol 
(g)  any visit by a relevant authority or emergency service. 
 

19.  A Challenge 21 proof of age scheme shall be operated at the premises where 
the only acceptable forms of identification are recognised photographic 
identification cards, such as a driving licence, passport or proof of age card with 
the PASS Hologram. 

 
20.  The number of persons permitted in the internal ground floor bar and restaurant 

at any one time (excluding staff) shall not exceed 50 persons. 
 
21.  Patrons permitted to temporarily leave and then re-enter the premises, e.g. to 

smoke, shall not be permitted to take drinks or glass containers with them other 
than to the external seated area shown upon the deposited plan. 

 
22.  No noise generated on the premises, or by its associated plant or equipment, 

shall emanate from the premises nor vibration be transmitted through the 
structure of the premises which gives rise to a nuisance.  

 
23.  Loudspeakers shall not be located in the entrance lobby or outside the premises 

building. 
 
24.  All windows shall be kept closed after 23:00 hours. 
 
25.  The approved arrangements at the premises, including means of escape 

provisions, emergency warning equipment, the electrical installation and 
mechanical equipment, hall at all material times be maintained in good condition 
and full working order. 

 

page 336



26.  The means of escape provided for the premises shall be maintained 
unobstructed, free of trip hazards, be immediately available and clearly identified 
in accordance with the plans provided. 

 
27.  All emergency exit doors shall be available at all material times without the use of 

a key, code, card or similar means. 
28.  All emergency doors shall be maintained effectively self-closing and not held 

open other than by an approved device. 
 
29.  The edges of the treads of steps and stairways shall be maintained so as to be 

conspicuous. 
 
30.  During the hours of operation of the premises, the licence holder shall ensure 

sufficient measures are in place to remove and prevent litter or waste arising or 
accumulating from customers in the area immediately outside the premises, and 
that this area shall be swept and or washed, and litter and sweepings collected 
and stored in accordance with the approved refuse storage arrangements by 
close of business. 

 

31.  Notices shall be prominently displayed at all exits requesting patrons to respect 
the needs of local residents and businesses and leave the area quietly. 

 
32.  No waste or recyclable materials, including bottles, shall be moved, removed 

from or placed in outside areas between 23.00 hours and 08.00 hours on the 
following day. 

 
33.  No licensable activities shall take place at the premises until the premises have 

been assessed as satisfactory by the Environmental Health Consultation Team 
at which time this condition shall be removed from the Licence by the Licensing 
Authority. 

 
34.  Before the premises open to the public, the plans as deposited will be checked 

by the Environmental Health Consultation Team to ensure they are an accurate 
reflection of the premises constructed. Where the premises layout has changed 
during the course of construction new plans shall be provided to the  
Environmental Health Consultation Team and the Licensing Authority. 

 
 
Conditions proposed by the Police  
 
35. All outside tables and chairs shall be rendered unusable by 01:00 hours each 

day. 
 
Conditions proposed by the Environmental Health 

 
None submitted.  

page 337



  Appendix 5 
Residential Map and List of Premises in the Vicinity 

 

 
 

page 338


	Agenda
	1 Cafe Baku Ltd, 22-24 Lansdowne Row, W1
	Report 13.07.17
	Appendix A1
	Appendix A2
	Appendix A3
	Appendix A4
	Appendix B1
	Appendix C1
	Appendix D1

	2 Serpentine Gallery, Kensington Gardens, Exhibition Road, W2
	3 The Serpentine Secker Gallery & The Magazine, Serpentine Gallery, Kensington Gardens, Exhibition Road, W2
	4 32 Henrietta Street, WC2
	5 Sketch, 9 Conduit Street, W1
	6 Restaurant, Ground Floor, Strand Palace Hotel, 372 Strand, WC2
	7 Bar, Ground Floor, Strand Palace Hotel, 372 Strand, WC2
	8 Victory House, 14 Leicester Place, WC2



